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To My Fellow
Investors

When | became CEQ of R.H. Donneiley in April 2002, 1 did so
with a profound sense of honor and responsibility to build a
future as bright as the one that was paved by my predecessors
during the 100+ year history of our Company. At that time,
together with members of my management team, | introduced
a vision and strategy to transform RHD from a vendor/agent
into the leading directional media company. | am very pleased
to report we successfully executed on the first step of this
strategy in 2003.

STEP 1: RHD Transformational Strategy

& Acquire a major yellow pages publisher to establish
transformaticnal operating platform

= [Establish an online platform to complement local
print product offering

We began 2003 by consummating the acquisition of Sprint
Publishing & Advertising from Sprint Corporation and we
ended the year with a fully integrated enterprise. Between those
two milestone events is where the major news occurred ~ and
that’s what | want to share with you in this letter.

First, we established a keen focus on cash flow for managing
the business as opposed to just the P&L. As our CFO Steve
Blondy puts it, “Cash is a fact and the true measure of value!”

Second, we laid very specific plans and stretch targets for inte-
grating the acquisition. Knowing full well that most acquisitions
do not live up to management’s projections for synergy, value
creation and time to integrate we were hell bent on delivering
what we promised and then some.

And third, we wanted to develop and implement into the market
an online product that would give users all the benefits of our
print products’ rich, rebust content and be profitable year one.

| am delighted to present the following accomplishments that
highlight our 2003 performance — however, before doing so,

true to form, the attorneys want to delay the fun and insist | tell
you that due to purchase accounting rules, many of the 2003
results discussed below are non-GAAP financial measures. They
do, however, portray what | believe is the best way to view the
business performance. And now the good news:

FINANCIAL
Created free cash flow of $236 million*

Generated adjusted EBITDA of $411 million*

m  Stock price at December 31, 2003, of $39.84 provided
impressive returns for cur sharsholders by increasing
36% during the calendar year

®»  Increased enterprise value by more than $2.5 billion

OPERATIONAL

n  [Launched our first online city guide and digital/search-
able version of our yellow pages product in Las Vegas
{June 2003} with seven additional markets online by the
end of the year

®  Successfully completed systems integration 6 moniths
ahead of schedule

m  Reduced headcount from 1,800 to 1,300

m  Significantly reduced bad debt expense

These key accomplishments do not do justice to what was
achieved - as usual, the devil is in the details. | cannot
begin to adequately cover in this letter, the myriad of signifi-
cant milestones that contributed to these results. The bottom
line is that all of this was achieved through our employees’
collective intelligence, hard work and laser-like focus on
executing on operating details. | began this letter by stating that
our goal is to become a leading directional media company -
our 2003 achievements created a strong foundation for us to
march aggressively toward becoming the leading directional
media company.

What is Directional Media and

why pursue our goal to be the leader?

For some time now, | have been describing R.H. Donneliey as
being in the “Directional Media” business. Simply stated, direc-
tional media is where consumers go to direct them to who sells
the goods and services that they want and need to purchase.
The power of directional media is that people generally use it
only when they are already interested and ready to buy! Contrast
that to creative media (like television, radio, etc.) that attempt
to create the need for the product or service, but are seldom
available when the consumer is actually ready to buy.

“See schedule following the 10-K for reconciliation of these and other non-GAAP measures to the most comparable GAAP measures.




Yellow Pages is the “crown jewel” directional media product.
In fact, nine out of ten adults in the U.S. used the yellow
pages last year more than 15 billion times. More than 80% of
the time they made contact with a business and an astounding
45% of the time they made a purchase. The conseguence:
yellow pages deliver advertisers with an ROl unrivaled by any
other advertising media.

The relevancy and immediacy of consumer usage drive the
economic underpinnings of the $14.5 billion U.S. yellow pages
industry that has historically had stable growth, strong cash
flow and predictable profitability. In fact, yellow pages represent
the fifth largest advertising market — exceeding the magazine,
outdoor and online categories. Most staggering is that yellow
pages are estimated to influence up to 17% of all U.S.
economic éctivity!

That said, you will notice RHD’s mission is not to be the best
yellow pages publisher but instead, the best directional media
company. This is because we recognize that consumers
are beginning to also turn to electronic products to search and
find information about where they can buy the products and
services they need. | view this trend as presenting a tremen-
dous opportunity for RHD for three reasons -

First, the market intelligence | have digested suggests Internet
searches are creating directional media market expansion

in terms of the gross number of consumer references to these
products. Consumers are also speaking loudly that they favor
the use of permission marketing like yeliow bages and online
search where they view ads only when they want, versus
highly intrusive e-mail and pop up advertising.

Second, the Internet is only one of many electronic channels
that will drive usage expansion - digital cable/satellite tele-
vision and wireless devices are other examples.

Third, RHD is well positioned to capitalize on this increasing
demand for directional advertising information. We are focused
on executing successfully on this opportunity by leveraging
our two most significant core assets: our rich data content
and our marketing reps’ personal relationships with SMEs

in the markets we serve. We believe we can accomplish this
more efficiently than anyone else by using the information-
we already collect in our marketing consultations to not only
build great yellow page ad programs, but extend our advertis-
ers’ message to these other digital distribution channels
as well. These innovations effectively make the information
available whenever, wherever and however users want it.
We refer to this as our integrated media strategy.

Our launch of bestredyp.com represents the first step in exe-
cuting our integrated media strategy. This exciting new city
guide product and Internet Yellow Pages was introduced in the
rapidly growing Las Vegas market in June 2003 - just six
short months after acquiring the Sprint Publishing business.
Offering our valuable advertising content and much more

to online users in an easy-to-use format will prove to be an
important product for users and advertisers alike. We are
very excited about the success we've had with this launch
so far, and expect to roll out approximately 50 sites like it

in important markets around the country in 2004. Again, this
is just the first step of our integrated media strategy. We
are acutely aware that the laws of economics dictate that
industries with strong financial characteristics attract new




competition. This is certainly the case with directional media
as evidenced by the significant and recent activity surround-
ing local search product initiatives. Along with the rest of my
management team, | have a healthy degree of respect for
these efforts and we are not taking them lightly. However, we
believe that, by leveraging our core competencies we will
become the leading diraectional media company in the markets
we serve by working hard to execute and successfully imple-
ment our integrated madia strategy.

Outlook and Opportunities

2004 is shaping up to be a very busy and exciting year for RHD
and I'm bullish about our outlook. While that’s what you might
expect the CEO to say, here are the whys:

First, we will complete the previously announced consolidation
and relocation of our headquarters from Purchase, New York
and Overland Park, Kansas, to Raleigh, North Carolina. After
experiencing the challenges of our year of integration with
corporate functions spread over several different locations,

| am confident that consolidating headquarters activities will
enhance our effectiveness while cultivating a more cohesive
corporate culture, which will better position us to maximize
opportunities for both employees and shareholders.

Next, we look forward o0 the anticipated improvements in the
nation’s economy that nistorically foreshadow the trends of
our industry.

Third, in 2003, we invested a tremendous amount of effort to
integrate two great companies and create a platform for growth
and performance excellence that we expect will benefit RHD

in 2004 and beyond. The most significant of these efforts were:

m  Established one operating technology platform
supported by best-demonsirated business processes

®m  Restructured our marketing organization to a) centralize
functions that benefit from economies of scale and b)
decentralize functions that are more effective when
close to our markets and customers

m  Bolstered our advertising spend and resources

m  QOverhauled and upgraded our sales recruiting and train-
ing resources and programs

®  Introduced pay for performance sales compensation
programs that provide significantly increased
earnings for top performers

& Reorganized and streamlined our sales organization to
improve productivity and effectiveness

m  |mpiemented new market coverage strategies
targeted to grow our customer base

We’ve characterized 2003 as the year that RHD was “under
construction.” 2004 is our year of learning how to execute as
one company under these new systems and processes. We
look forward to the challenge, and | know that the men and
women of RHD will not accept anything less than creating the
leading directional media company in the eyes of our share-
holders, advertisers, users and employees.

Sincerely,

N ) W

David C. Swanson

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer March 2004

*See schedule following the 10-K for reconciliation of these and other non-GAAP measures to the most comparable GAAP measures. 3
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A couple gets the exciting news that a baby is on the way - and it isn’t long before the new

people need us

parents go looking for a few things they’re going to need.

Life events of all kinds — marrying, having a baby, changing jobs, moving to a new home,
retiring — drive consumers to what we call directional media: where people go to find who

sells the products and services they seek when they are ready to buy.

Whenever consumers are ready to buy, R.H. Donnelley directional media is there to create

value by linking those buyers directly to the sellers they are seeking.

Life’s needs, large and small, are so important in driving purchases that experts estimate
the Yellow Pages influence an average $1.2 trillion of purchases across America, 11 percent

of the economy’s Gross Domestic Product.

Users of Yellow Pages and online directional media are ready buyers: well-educated,

higher-income, willing to try new brands, interested in quality and value, inclined to trust



advertising. Consumers using the Yellow Pages’ top 200 categories spend an average of

28 percent more annually than the typical customer.

Advertisers understand the value of reaching ready buyers. Unlike media that try to build
awareness or a sense of need in an otherwise passive audience, directional media deliver

a message to consumers when they are actively shopping. People picking up the Yellow
Pages or accessing online Yellow Pages are intentionally seeking the very messages

placed by sellers.

The spread of digitel technologies makes directional media a 24/7/365 opportunity.
Consumers can access our information anytime to help with their purchasing decisions.
Advertisers are not iimited to a 30-second message broadcast at a specific time, or a

print advertisement in a newspaper or magazine destined for a short stay in the home.

R.H. Donnelley is increasingly present at the moment when directional media make a con-

nection between American consumers and businesses.

5%

of all personal Yellow
Pages usage springs
from major life events
or changes.

Top Life Events Driving
Yellow Page Usage

(Percentage increase in directory use}
New Baby j 65%

" Changing Job 66%

Buying First Home | g3

Collect for Pension - ey

' Last Home :
Mortgage Payment 76%

Getting Married 85%
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A busy professional needs color copies of an important presentation. Pausing at a coffee

people need us

shop, she goes online to locate the nearest printer with color copy machines — and a
crisis is avoided.

Now consumers can access the rich, robust content of our directories in places other than
just at the kitchen table. From a street-side café. In the car. At the kids’ soccer game.

In another city a thousand miles from home.

Wherever consumers are, R.H. Donnelley directional media make valuable connections

to the sellers who can provide products and services they need.

Already, Yellow Pages are placed into nearly every home and business in our markets.
And now shoppers can access our advertisers’ messages even when the traditional print
directory is not nearby.

Online consumers can find all the information in our community pages, plus more. At
www.bestredyp.com, we provide a complete City Guide of enhanced interactive informa-
tion about the communities we serve. Local weather, movie and TV listings, national

and financial news, recreational activities, and much more is available at the click of a mouse.

R.H. Donnelley is growing our presence wherever consumers and advertisers need us.
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Flipping through the print Yellow Pages. Going online. Pushing buttons on a handheld Vision For Growth
Through Integrated Media

people need us

device or wireless phone. Or tuning to interactive cable television. Shopping is becoming

a whole new experience now - rich in choices, media and technologies. This new digital Print Yellow Pages

environment gives consumers many ways to get our advertisers’ messages.
Internet Yellow Pages
However consumers choose to access our information, R.H. Donnelley is there to connect

buyers with sellers. Qur integrated media strategy will allow us to leverage our content PDA

across muitiple platforms:
Wireless Search

B With roots in the publishing world, we continue to build our core business of print

, . . Digital Cable
Yellow Pages - a steady and growing driver of revenues and income.

' Human & El_ectronic
®  We are moving rapidly to provide Internet Yellow Pages in local markets, delivering Search Assistance

additional value for advertisers and users. We launched our first Internet Yellow
Pages in Las Vegas in 2003, followed by communities in Florida, Ohio, Pennsylvania
and Virginia. We plan to have 50 markets online in 2004. Anyone with Internet access

can visit www.bestredyp.com.

®  PDAs, wireless phones, cable TV and human-assisted locator services are other
potential emerging platforms for R.H. Donnelley content as our integrated media
strategy expands.

Taking advantage of these many technologies, R.H. Donnelley is setting the pace for the

future of interactive directional media.
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United States Securities and Exchange Commission
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

[ X] Annual Report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003
or
[ ] Transition Report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003

For the transition period from to
Commission File Number 001-07155

R.H. Donnelley Corporation

Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter

Delaware 13-2740040

State of (ncorporation I.R.S. Employer Identification Number
One Manhattanville Road, Purchase, New York 10577

Address of Frincipal Executive Offices Zip Code

914-933-6400
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b} of the Act:

Title of Class
Common Stock, par value $1 per share

Name of Exchange on Which Registered
New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant; (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Sections 13 or 15(d)

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the

registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.
YES _¢v_ NO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinguent filers pursuant to ltem 405 of Regulation S-K (Section 229.405 of this
chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of Registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or
information statements incorporated by reference in Part |1l of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

indicate by check mark if the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 12b-2 of the Act).
YES _¢_ NO

The aggregate market value at June 30, 2003, the last day of our most recently completed second quarter, of shares of
the Registrant’s common stock (based upon the closing price per share of $36.47 of such stock on The New York Stock
Exchange on such date) held by non-affiliates of the Registrant was approximately $1,115,526,000. At June 30, 20083,
there were 30,725,980 outstanding shares of the Registrant's common stock, not including any shares of common
stock beneficially owned by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. The aggregate market value at March 8, 2004 of shares of
the Registrant’s common stock (based upon the closing price per share of $43.81 of such stock on The New York
Stock Exchange on such date) held by non-affiliates of the Registrant was approximately $1,354,360,900. For purposes
of both of these calculations, only those shares held by directors and executive officers of the Registrant and shares
beneficially owned by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. have been excluded as held by affiliates. Such exclusion should
not be deemed a determination or an admission by the Registrant that such individuals or entities are, in fact, affiliates
of the Registrant. At March 8, 2004, there were 31,053,015 outstanding shares of the Registrant's common stock,
not including any shares of common stock beneficially owned by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

continued




Commission file number 333-59287

R.H. Donnelley Inc.”

Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter

Delaware 36-2467635

State of Incorporation I.R.S. Employer ldentification Number
One Manhattanville Road, Purchase, New York 10577

Address of Principal Executive Offices Zip Code

914-933-6400

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

*R.H. Donnelley Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of R.H. Donneliey Corporation. R.H. Donnelley Inc. meets the
conditions set forth in General Instructions | 1(a) and (b) of Form 10-K and is therefore filing this report with
respect to R.H. Donnelley Inc. with the reduced disclosure format. R.H. Donnelley Inc. became subject to the filing
requirements of Section 15(d) on October 1, 1998 in connection with the public offer and sale of its 9 1/8% Senior
Subordinated Notes, which Notes were redeemed in full on February 6, 2004. In addition, R.H. Donnelley Inc. is the
obligor of 8 7/8% Senior Notes due 2010 and 10 7/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2012 and is now subject
to the filing requirements of Section 15(d) as a result of such notes. As of March 8, 2004, 100 shares of R.H. Donnetiey
Inc. common stock, no par value, were outstanding.

Documents Incorporated by Reference
Part IHl

item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

information responsive to this ltem can be found under the captions “Board of Directors”

and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Company’s Proxy Statement to
be filed with the Commission prior to March 31, 2004.

Item 11. Executive Compensation
Information responsive {o this ltem can be found under the caption “Director and Executive Compensation”
in the Company's Proxy Statement to be filed with the Commission prior to March 31, 2004,

ltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and

Related Stockholder Matters

Information responsive to this ltem can be found under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management” in the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed with the Commission
prior to March 31, 2004.

item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information responsive to this item can be found under the caption “Director and Executive Compensation —
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation; Certain Relationships and Related Party
Transactions” in the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed with the Commission prior to March 31, 2004.

item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services i ; oo
Information responsive to this ltem can be found under the caption “Board of Directors - Committees of the

Board of Directors-Audit and Finance Committee” and “Report of the Audit and Finance Committee — Fees”

in the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed with the Commission prior to March 31, 2004.



n.r. gornneney Corporadon

Part |

Item 1. Business

Except where otherwise indicated, the terms “Company,”
“Donnelley,” "HHD,” "we,” “us” and “our” refer to R.H. Donnelley
Corporation and its direct and indirect wholly owned sub-
sidiaries. R.H. Donneliey Inc. is our wholly owned direct sub-
sidiary. Our executive offices are presently located at One
Manhattanvilie Road, Purchase, New York 10577 and our tele-
phone number is (914) 333-6400. We expect to relocate our
executive officzs to North Carolina during the first half of 2004,
At that time, our address will be 1001 Winstead Drive, Cary,
North Carolina 27513, and our telephcne number will be (800)
497-8329. Our Internet website address is www.rhd.com. We
make available: free of charge on our website cur annual, quar-
terly and current reports, including amendments to such reports,
as soon as practicable after we electronically file such material
with, or furnish such material to, the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC"). Our filings can also be obtained
from the SEC website at www.sec.gov or by calling tolt free

the SEC Office of Public Reference at (800) 942-8090. However,
the informatior: found on our website or the SEC website is not
part of this annual report.

Corporate Overview

We are the six:h largest directory publisher in the United States
based on revenue. We have been in the yellow pages business
in various capacities for over 100 years. We now publish 260
Sprint-branded, revenue-generating yellow pages directories in
18 states and nave a total circulation of approximately 18 million,
serving approximately 160,000 local and 4,000 national advertis-
ers. Through The DonTech il Partnership (“DonTech”), our part-
nership with an affiliate of SBC Communications Inc. {"SBC”), we
sell advertising for an additional 129 SBC-branded directories

in Itlinois and northwest Indiana with a total circulation of approx-
imately 10 mill on, serving approximately 100,000 local advertis-
ers. Many loce! advertisers rely on the yellow pages directories
as their primary or sole method of advertising.

On January 3, 2003, we acquired all the outstanding com-
mon stock of the various entities comprising Sprint Publishing
and Advertising ("SPA”), Sprint Corporation's (“Sprint”) directory
publishing business. See “SPA Acquisition” below for a further
description of the acquisition. The acquisition transformed
Donnelley from a sales agent and pre-press vendor into a
leading publisher of yellow pages directories. Prior to the SPA
acquisition, we were one of the largest independent sales
agents and pra-press vendors for yellow pages advertising in
the United Staies.

Commencing in 20083, our operating and financial results
reflect our yellow pages publishing business, rather than our for-
mer business as a sales agent and pre-press vendor for yellow
pagies advertising on behalf of other publishers, including SPA.
As a publisher, we report the full value of advertising sales and
certain direct costs under the deferral and amortization method.
As a sales agent and pre-press vendor for yellow pages adver-

tising, in 2001 and 2002 our revenue reflected sales commis-
sions and pre-press fees from, or other transactions with, our
business partners, including SPA, and our expenses were
charged to earnings as incurred. DonTech remained unchanged
following the SPA acquisition, and our financial presentation of
DonTech is consistent for all periods presented in

this annual report.

In addition, in the first quarter of 2003, we revised our his-
torical segment reporting to reflect the change in our business
that resuited from the SPA acquisition and to reflect the way
management now reviews and analyzes the business. Our
reportable operating segments are now Donnelley and DonTech.
The Donnelley segment includes the revenue from our 260
Sprint-branded yellow pages directories and our pre-press pub-
lishing services contract with SBC, and all operating and admin-
istrative expenses. The DonTech segment includes revenue
participation income and our 50% interest in the net profits of
DonTech. See Note 14 to the Company's audited consolidated
financial statements included in ltem 8 of this annual report and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” in ltem 7 of this annual report for
more information regarding the Company’s segments.

SPA Acquisition

On January 3, 2003, we completed the acquisition of SPA by
purchasing the stock of two subsidiaries of Sprint,
DirectoriesAmerica, Inc. and Centel Directory Company
(“Centel"), for $2.23 billion in cash. See “Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” in Item 7 of this annual report for more information
regarding the financing for, and financial implications of, the SPA
acquisition.

In connection with the acquisition of SPA, we entered into
a directory services license agreement, a trademark license
agreement and a non-competition agreement (collectively,
“Directory Services Agreements”) with Sprint. The directory serv-
ices license agreement gives us the exclusive right to produce,
publish and distribute directories for Sprint in the markets
in 18 states where Sprint provided local telephone service at
the time of the transaction. The trademark license agreement
gives us the exclusive right to use certain Sprint trademarks,
including the Sprint diamond logo, in those markets. The
non-competition agreement prohibits Sprint in those markets
from selling local directory advertising or producing, publishing
and distributing print directories, with certain limited exceptions.
These agreements are all interrelated and each has an initial
term of 50 years, subject to earlier termination under specified
circumstances.

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase business
combination. The purchase price was allocated to the tangible
and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities
assumed based on their respective fair values on the acquisition
date. The results of the SPA business have been included in our
consolidated results from and after January 3, 2003.
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Products and Services

We have two principal directory types: a core directory and a community directory. Core directories generally cover large population
areas, whereas community directories typically cover a sub-section of the areas addressed by a core directory. For example,
in Lee County, Florida, we publish one core directory and four community directories, Sanibel-Captiva island, South Fort Myers,
Cape Coral/North Fort Myers and Lehigh Acres, that together cover the majority of the core Lee County directory, but not the entire
market. Most core directories contain yellow pages, white pages and specialty sections, such as area information, guides and
government pages. Community directories also consist of yellow pages, white pages and specialty sections.

The table below details our principal revenue-generating product offerings.

Principal Products

Type Description

Stylized listings for white and yellow pages Listings appearing in-column consist of name, address and telephone
number and are available in a variety of type styles and limited color

Trade items Advertising space, designed to premote brand name of product or service,
placed alphabetically within the column listings of the yellow pages

Space items Advertising space sold in 1/2 inch increments appearing alphabestically within
the column listings of the yellow pages

Display ads Advertising placed within a heading by size and then by seniority —
our ad sizes range from a quarter column to a double fult page

Color Various levels of color including spot-four color, enhanced color, process
photo and hi-impact are available for display products

White page logos Listings allowing space for iliustrative art work

Bestredyp.com Internet (on-line) yellow pages and city guide available in targeted markets

with electronic “look and feel” version of related print directory and typical
Internet search engine view

in addition to these principal products, we offer a broad range of specialty products that advertisers use to differentiate
and enhance their display of information. The table below is an overview of the main revenue-generating specialty products
that we offer:

Specialty Products

Type Description

Cover products Adbvertising sold on the bottom-half of the front cover, the inside front cover,
the inside back cover and the outside back cover

Tabs Full page advertising bound into the directory, offering front and back space
printed on card stock with a tab protrusion or die-cut indented tab

Ride-alongs Advertisements placed with the directory delivery bag

Blow-in cards Loose postcard-like products inserted into directories

Guides (internet, golf, menu, etc.) Sections in the directories on a specific interest area with feature information

and banner advertising

Internet-based directory and electronic products

We recently began offering an Internet-based directory service, bestredyp.com, to cur advertisers in targeted markets and plan
to continue to expand this offering. Historically, SPA did not offer advertisers any significant Internet platform. Bestredyp.com
provides a city portal with information about the targeted market, along with electronic versions of the white and yellow pages
directories. We provide users a dual purpose interface that allows them to view the directory information in either a typical Internet
search engine view or the “lock and feel” view that emulates the appearance of our print directories. We currently view our internet-
based directory product as a complement to our print directory product rather than as a stand-alone business. We utilize our existing
sales force and customer relationships to enable us to provide the directory content in a digital format. Our electronic products
focus on a “local experience” by offering rich local content to consumers, which reguires little incremental effort by our sales force
to gather. We also utilize a low cost production platform. In DonTech markets, their sales force currently offers the SBC Smart Pages
Internet product and a Chicagoe city guide product.

We believe that increased usage of Internet-based directories will continue to support overali usage in the United States
directory advertising industry. We intend to continue to explore new means to deliver cur advertisers' content to consumers.



Business Cycie Overview

Our directories generally have a 12-month directory cycle peri-
od, except Las Vegas, which has two six-month directory cycles.
A publication cycle generally spans 15 to 20 months from the
beginning of the sales cycle to the end of a directory’s life and
is comprised of several stages. The marketing stage is generally
cornpleted betfore the end of the first month. The sales stage
picks up at the completion of the marketing stage and generally
runs through the following five months. The sales stage closes
approximately 70 days prior to publication. Production

and printing is the next stage, usually lasting an additional two
months. Finally, distribution generally occurs over the final
month. Customer service and billing and collections stages are
provided after distribution of a directory and throughout the
directory cycle.

Sales

Sales are conducted on the local level through premise repre-
sentatives, telephone representatives and letter renewals,

and, on the nztional level, through national account managers
who sell primarily to Certified Marketing Representatives
("CMRs") serving national advertisers, We distinguish between
national advertisers, which advertise in 20 or more directories
and span thre: or more states with at least two different publish-
ers, and local advertisers, which are primarily smali-and medi-
um-sized businesses located within our markets. In general,
advertising from the local channel continues to represent the
majority of our revenue, accounting for approximately 85%

of directory aclvertising revenue, while approximately 15% is
derived from the national channel.

Local Sales Organization

Our local sales channel is segmented into three sales sub-chan-
nels: premise sales, telephone sales and letter renewal. Premise
sales representatives conduct sales calls at customers’ business
locations and typically handle higher dollar and more complex
accounts. Telephone sales representatives handle lower

dollar value accounts and conduct their sales over the phone.
Letter renewal, is used to contact very low dollar value cus-
tomers that hzve renewed their account for the same product
for several years.

National Sales Organization

Our national sales channel is managed through our national
sales departrrent, which seeks to increase national directory
revenues by ceveloping and maintaining favorable relationships
with CMRs and national advertisers. CMRs have historically
been the national media buyers of yellow pages advertising for
national advertisers. During 2003, we began acting as a CMR
ourselves directly placing certain national advertising. National
account maneagers are the primary point of contact for alt com-
munication and business dealings between RHD and CMRs.
National account managers and national sales representatives
are accountable for overall national revenue objectives.

Pre-press and information Technology Management Services
Pre-press services include canvass and assignment prepara-
tion, graphics and ad composition, contract processing, data-
base management and pagination, We provide comprehensive
tools and information to effectively conduct sales and marketing
planning, sales management, sales compensation and customer
service activities. Our information management and pre-press
publishing systems are located primarily in facilities in
Morrisville, North Carolina, with additional services provided in
facilities located in Bristol, Tennessee and in Dunmore,
Pennsylvania. In addition, prior to closure during 2003, certain
pre-press publishing services were provided from a facility locat-
ed in Blountville, Tennessee.

Printing and Distribution

All directories are printed through our long-standing relationship
with printing vendor R.R. Donnelley & Sons Company (“R.R.
Donnelley”). We currently have two contracts for the printing of
our directories with R.R. Donnelley that expire in December
2005 and December 2007. Although we share a common her-
itage, no other common ownership or business relationship
exists between R.R. Donnelley and us. Printing is one of our
largest cost items accounting for approximately 10% of our total
operating and general and administrative expenses.

The delivery of directories is facilitated through several out-
sourcing relationships. Delivery methods utitized to distribute
directories to consumers are selected based on factors such as
cost, quality, geography and market need. Primary delivery
methods include United States Postal Service and hand delivery.
Occasionally we may use United Parcel Service or cther types of
expedited delivery methods. Frequently a combination of these
methods is required to meet the needs of the marketplace.

DonTech Overview

DonTech sells advertising for 129 SBC-branded directories in
lllinois and northwest Indiana with a combined circulation of
approximately 10 million in 2003. These directories provide
advertising for approximately 100,000 local advertisers. These
directories also provide advertising for national advertisers,
although DonTech plays no role with respect to the sale of
national advertising, which is performed by SBC itself.

Our relationship with SBC

DonTech is our 50/50 perpetual partnership with an affiliate of
SBC, which remained unchanged as a result of our acquisition
of SPA. Qur relationship with telephone companies presently
owned by SBC began in 1908. Since then, we have maintained
a variety of contractual relationships with these telephone com-
panies regarding directory publication and advertising sales.
Under the current partnership arrangements, DonTech is the
exclusive sales agent in perpetuity for the 129 yellow pages
directories published by SBC in lliinois and northwest indiana.
DonTech provides local advertising sales services for these
directories and earns a commission from SBC. Under our agree-
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ments with SBC, we have a 50% interest in the net profits of
DonTech and also receive revenue participation income directly
from SBC. The amount of revenue participation income we earn
is based on a percentage of DonTech advertising sales.
Revenue participation income comprises approximately 80% to
85% of our total income related to DonTech and is paid directly
to us through an affiliate of SBC.

We account for our investment in DonTech under the equity
method and record all our income from DonTech as partnership
income. DonTech is considered a separate operating segment
because, among other things, it has its own Board of Directors
and the employees of DonTech, including its officers and
managers, are not our employees. DonTech's Board of Directors
consists of six members. Each partner appoints two members,
one voting and one advisory, and the CEO and CFO of DenTech
are non-voting members. in general, most major decisions
are required to be made at the DonTech Board of Directors
level and require the affirmative vote of both our and SBC's
voting directors.

The revenue participation agreement between us and APIL
Partners (an SBC affiliate to whom Donnelley transferred its
membership interest in the publisher in exchange for the grant
of the revenue participation interests) provides that we are
entitled to a payment similar to a royalty. This interest is equal
to DonTech's specified gross advertising sales, subject to
allowances for claims (capped at 2.4%) and doubtful accounts
(capped at 3.7%), less the DonTech partnership commissions
of 27.0%, all multiplied by 35.9%.

The exclusive sales agency agreement between APIL
Partners and DonTech establishes that DonTech enjoys
exclusive agency status to solicit and sell local advertising for
SBC'’s directories in lllinois and northwest Indiana.

The DonTech partnership agreement and related SBC con-
tractual arrangements have perpetual terms. These arrange-
ments only terminate upon the occurrence of certain enumerat-
ed events, including, without limitation, the unremedied breach-
es of certain material provisions thereof, the mutual agreement
of the parties, the bankruplcy of a partner or parent or a change
in control of a partner (excluding a change in control of the ulti-
mate parent company of the partner), acquisition by one partner
of the other’s partnership interest, a transfer of a partner’s inter-
est in violation of the transfer provisions contained in the part-
nership agreement, or a decision by the Board to dissolve that
would require agreement of our representatives on the Board.

In addition, under applicable law, the contractual arrangements
potentially may not remain in effect in perpetuity. in the event
that APIL Partners breaches its obligations under the revenue
participation agreement, we have the right to reacquire our inter-
est in the publishing entity for a nominal amount.

We also provide certain pre-press publishing services to
SBC under a separate publishing services agreement that
extends through 2008, and billing and information technology
support services under separate agreements that extend
through 2005 and 2008, respectively.

Historical Overview of Donnelley

Prior to the SPA acquisition, we were one of the largest inde-
pendent sales agents and pre-press vendors for yellow pages
advertising in the United States. In that capacity, we sold adver-
tising for more than 170 yellow pages directories with a total cir-
culation of over 15 million. We sold yellow pages advertising
either directly through our own sales force on behalf of SPA, or
indirectly through DonTech. We aiso provided pre-press publish-
ing services for approximately 227 yellow pages directories,
including all of the directories for which Donnelley and DonTech
sold advertising as well as for an independent publisher for
whom our services ended in the first quarter of 2003. DonTech
remained unchanged foliowing the SPA acquisition, and our
financial presentation of DonTech is consistent for all periods
presented in this annual report.

Prior to the acquisition of SPA, Donneliey sold yellow pages
advertising in certain markets in Florida, Nevada, North. Carolina
and Virginia under contractual agreements with affiliates of
Sprint. The agreements governing the relationships allowed
Sprint to gain the benefits of Donnelley’s long-term presence in
these markets, its yellow pages advertising sales and pre-press
publishing expertise, its established infrastructure and its per-
formance-focused, non-union employees. Donnelley benefited
from its agreements with Sprint, as Sprint is the major incumbent
telephone company in those Florida, Nevada, North Carolina
and Virginia markets and one of two major incumbent telephone
companies in the greater Orlando market. See our annual
report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002
for further details regarding our historical relaticnship with
Sprint, SPA's operations prior to the acquisition and our prior
segment reporting.

Competition

Yellow Pages Advertising Sales

The United States directory advertising industry is highly com-
petitive. Approximately 90% of total United States directory
advertising sales are attributable to Regional Bell Operating
Company (“RBOC") directory publishers that typically publish
directories where they offer local phone service. In addition,
more than 240 independent publishers operating in the United
States compete with those RBOC publishers. In nearly all mar-
kets, we compete with one or more yellow pages directory pub-
lishers, which are predominantly independent publishers. In
some markets, we compete on a limited basis with RBOC direc-
tory publishers in adjacent markets. One of these publishers,
Verizon Information Services, the directory business affiliated
with Verizon Communications, Inc., has begun to publish direc-
tories and offer local Internet directory services in markets
beyond where Verizon Communications offers local phone serv-
ice, including certain markets where we publish directories.
Effectively, Verizon Information Services is competing as an
independent publisher in those markets. While no other RBOC
publisher has announced similar plans, no assurance can be
given that other RBOC publishers will not de so in the future,



Many of these RBOC publishers are larger than us and have
greater financial resources than we have. No assurances can be
given that we will be able to compete effectively with these other
publishers for advertising sales or acquisitions in the future.

We alsc compete for advertising sales with other media,
including newspapers, magazines, radio, direct mail, the
Internet and television. Additionally, advances in technology
have brought new participants, new products and new channels
to the industry, including increasing use of electronic delivery of
traditional directory information (e.g., Yahoo Yeliow Pages) and
electronic search engines/services (e.g., Google) as an advertis-
ing medium. Many of these competitors are larger than us and
have greater financial resources than we have.

In addition, the Telecommunications Act of 1996 opened
local telephone markets to increased competition, which may
adversely impact the market position of telephone utilities,
including Sprint and SBC. In addition, Federal Communication
Commission rues regarding local number portability, advances
in communications technology (such as wireless devices and
voice over Internet protocol) and demographic factors {potential
shifts in younger generations away from wireline telephone com-
munications towards wireless or other communications technolo-
gies) may further erode the market position of telephone utilities,
including Sprint and SBC. As a result, no assurances can be
given that Sprint or SBC will remain the primary local telephone
service provider in their local service areas. If Sprint were no
longer the primary local telephone service provider in any partic-
ular local service area, our license to be the exclusive publisher
for Sprint in its markets and to use the Sprint brand name on our
directories in those markets may not be as valuable as we
presently anticipate, and we may not realize some of the antici-
pated benefits under our commercial arrangements with Sprint.
If SBC were no longer the primary local telephone service
provider in any DonTech service areas, our income from the
DonTech relationship could be adversely affected.

Internet
From 1997 to 2000, overall references to print yellow pages
directories in the United States declined; however, overall refer-
ences to print vellow pages directories have remained stable
over the past three years.

We believe the past decline was primarily a result of demo-
graphic shifts among consumers, particularly the increase
of households n which English was not the primary language
spoken. We also believe that the past decline was attributable
to increased usage of Internet-based directory products, partic-
ularly in business-to-business and retail categories, as well as
the proliferation of very large retail stores for which consumers
and businesse:s may not reference the yellow pages.

The yellow pages directory advertising business is subject
to changes arising from developments in technology, including
information dis‘ribution methods and users' technological

preferences. The use of the Internet by consumers as a means
to transact commerce may result in new technologies being
developed and services being provided that could compete with
our traditional products and services. Our growth and future
financial performance may depend on our ability to develop

and market new products and services and create new distribu-
tion channels, while enhancing existing products, services

and distribution channels, to incerporate the latest technological
advances and accommodate changing user preferences,
including the use of the Internet.

Raw Materials

Our principal raw material is paper. it is one of our largest cost
items accounting for approximately 5% to 7% of our total operat-
ing and general and administrative expenses. We currently
purchase our paper from one vendor under a contract that
expires in December 2006. The price of the paper was set at
inception of the contract and increases at various dates during
the term of the agreement. Should the market price of the paper
drop below the set prices, both parties are obligated to negoti-
ate in good faith a lower paper price. We are subject to delays
in receiving this principal raw material. Further, changes in

the supply of, or demand for, paper could affect delivery times
and market prices.

Intellectual Property

We own and control confidential information as well as a number
of trade secrets, trademarks, service marks, trade names, copy-
rights and other intellectual property rights that, in the aggre-
gate, are of material importance to our business. We believe that
the “Donnelley” name and related names, marks and logos

are, in the aggregate, material to our business. We are licensed
to use certain technology and other intellectual property rights
owned and controlled by others, and, similarly, other companies
are licensed to use certain technology and other intellectual
property rights owned and controlled by us. We have the exclu-
sive license to produce, publish and distribute directories for
Sprint in SPA's current markets as well as the exclusive license
to use Sprint's brand, including Sprint’s diamond logo, on direc-
tories in SPA's current markets, and we acquired the "Best Red
Yellow Pages®” tagline and the “look and feel” tfrademarks
presently used by SPA. Although we do not consider any indi-
vidual trademark or other inteliectual property to be material

to our operations, we believe that, taken as a whole, the licenses
we acquired in conjunction with the SPA acquisition are material
to our business. We consider our trademarks, service marks,
databases, software and other intellectual property to be propri-
etary, and we rely on a combination of copyright, trademark,
trade secret, non-disclosure and contract safeguards for-protec-
tion. We also benefit from the use of both the phrase “yellow
pages” and the walking fingers logo, which we believe to be in
the public domain in the United States.
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Empioyees

As of December 31, 2003, we had approximately 1,300 full-time empiloyees. This number does not include approximately
580 employees of DonTech, who are not employees of Donnelley. None of aur employees (or DonTech’s) are subject to collective
bargaining agreements, and we consider relations with cur employees to be good.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table sets forth information concerning the individuals who serve as executive officers of the Company

as of March 8, 2004.

Name Age Position{s)

David C. Swanson 49 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Peter J. McDonald 53 Senior Vice President and President of Donneliey Media
Steven M. Blondy 44 Senior Vice President and Chief Financia! Officer

Jenny L. Apker 46 Vice President and Treasurer

George F. Bednarz 50 Vice President, Publishing, Information Technology and Corporate Planning
Robert J. Bush 38 Vice President, General Counse! and Corporate Secretary
Thomas D. D'Orazio 45 Vice President and Controller Elect”

William C. Drexler 50 Vice President and Controller*

William M. Hammack 55 Vice President - Strategy and Business Development
Debra M. Ryan 52 Vice President - Human Resources

* Effective Aprit 1, 2004, Mr. D'Orazio will replace Mr. Drexler as our Vice President and Controller.

Mr. Drexler wili be leaving the Company to pursue other opportunities.

The executive officers serve at the pleasure of the Board of
Directors. We have been advised that there are no family
relationships among any of the officers listed, and there is no
arrangement or understanding among any of them and any
other persons pursuant to which they were elected as an officer.

David C. Swanson has been Chief Executive Officer of
Donnelley since May 2002 and Chairman of the Board since
December 2002. He was first elected to the Board in December
2001. He served as President and Chief Operating Officer from
December 2000 until May 2002. Prior to that, Mr. Swanson
served as President of Donnelley Directory Services from March
1999. Mr. Swanson joined Donnelley as an Account Executive
and held increasingly senior management positions over the
next 15 years. In 1995, he became Executive Vice President

of Sales and in 1997 was named Executive Vice President

and General Manager of Proprietary Operations. In 1398, he
was named Executive Vice President of Corporate Strategy in
conjunction with the spin-off from The Dun & Bradstreet
Corporation (“D&B").

Peter J. McDonald has served as Senior Vice President and
President of Donneliey Media since September 2002,

Mr. McDonald was a director of RHD between May 2001 and
September 2002. Previously, Mr. McDonald served as President
and Chief Executive Officer of SBC Directory Operations,

a publisher of yellow pages directories, from October 1999 to
April 2000. He was President and Chief Executive Officer of
Ameritech Publishing's yellow pages business from 1994 to
1999, when Ameritech was acquired by SBC. Mr. McDonald was
President and Chief Executive Officer of DonTech from 1993 to
1994. Prior to that time, he served in a variety of sales positions
at Donnelley, after beginning his career at National Telephone
Directory Corporation. He is also a past vice chairman of the
Yellow Pages Integrated Marketing Assaociation (then known as
Yellow Pages Publishers Association).

Steven M. Blondy has served as Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer since March 2002. Pricr to joining Donnelley,
Mr. Blondy served as Senior Vice President — Corporate
Development for Young & Rubicam, Inc., a global marketing and
communications company, from 1998 to 2000. Mr. Blondy
served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
for Poppe Tyson, a leading Internet and integrated marketing
communications agency, from 1996 to 1997. Mr. Blondy served
as Chief Financial Officer for Grundy Worldwide, an independent
producer of television programs in Europe and Australia, from
1994 to 1995. Prior to that, he spent 12 years in the investment
banking industry with Chase Manhattan Bank and Merrill Lynch.

Jenny L. Apker has served as Vice President and Treasurer of
Donnelley since May 2003. Prior to that, she was Assistant
Treasurer at Allied Waste Industries, a waste services company
in the United States, since 1998. Before joining Allied Waste
Industries, Ms. Apker was Vice President at First Interstate Bank
of Arizona, a banking institution that was subsequently acquired
by Wells Fargo. Prior to joining First Interstate Bank of Arizona,
Ms. Apker spent 11 years at Greyhound Financial Corporation,
a financial services company.

George F. Bednarz has served as Vice President, Publishing,
Information Technology and Corporate Planning, since

January 2003 and Vice President, Publishing and Information
Technology, from April 2001, Previously, he served as Vice
President and General Manager — Publishing from 1999, Mr.
Bednarz joined us in November 1995 to lead the start-up imple-
mentation of Donneliey’s Morrisville, North Carotina Pubtishing
and Information Center. Prior to joining us, Mr. Bednarz spent
19 years at D&B, where he held executive positions of increas-
ing responsibility in various functions.

Robert J. Bush has served as General Counsel since January
2001. Since 2000, Mr. Bush served as Vice President and
Corporate Secretary, having joined Donnelley in October 1999
as Assistant Vice President and Assistant General Counsel.



Prior to joining us, Mr. Bush was Assistant General Counse!
and Assistant Secretary at MIM Corporation, a pharmacy
benefit managzment company, from 1998 to 1999, and an
Associate at the New York offices of the taw firm of Jones, Day,
Reavis & Pogue (now known as Jones Day) from August 1993
to May 1998.

Thomas D. D'Orazio has served as Vice President and Controller
Elect of Donnelley since January 2004 and will assume the full
duties of that position effective April 1, 2004. Prior to that, Mr.
D'Orazio served as Vice President and Corporate Controller at
Pillowtex Corporation, a manufacturer of home textile products,
since 2001. Piliowtex filed a voluntary petition for reorganization
under the United States bankruptcy laws on July 30, 2003.
Before joining Pillowtex, Mr. D'Orazio was Corporate Controller
at Glatfelter, a global manufacturer of specialty paper and
engineered products, from 1998 and prior to that held several
roles in finance corganizations at textile companies. Through
1991, Mr. D’Orazio spent three years at the Financial Accounting
Standards Board.

Witliam C. Drexler has served as Vice President and Controller
of Donnelley since June 1999. Prior to that, Mr. Drexler served
as Assistant Vice President of Finance since 1996. Mr, Drexler
joined us in 1932 as Director of Accounting Operations. In 1995,
he was named Director of Financial Planning for publishing and
information services. Prior to joining Donnelley, Mr. Drexler held
financial managjement positions of increasing responsibility

with a number of manufacturing firms. Mr. Drexler will leave the
Company during 2004.

William M. Harmmack has served as Vice President — Strategy
and Business Development since February 2004. Previously,

Mr. Hammack was CEQ of YPsolutions, an Internet software
company he fcunded, from 2001. Prior to that, Mr. Hammack
spent two decades as an independent directory publisher.

He is a past Chairman of the Association of Directory Publishers,
the independent directory industry's largest trade group.

Debra M. Ryan has served as Vice President - Human
Resources since January 2002. Prior to that, Ms. Ryan served
as Vice President — Human Resources for R.H. Donnelley inc.
since 1994, Ms, Ryan joined Donnelley in 1973 as a sales
representative and has held several management positions with
increasing responsibility in the sales organization.

item 2. Properties

We currently conduct our pre-press publishing and graphics
operations from one owned and two leased facilities with non-
cancelable lease terms expiring at various dates through 2005.
Qur pre-press oublishing facility is located in a leased 55,000
square foot building in Morrisville, North Carolina. We have
graphics operations in an cwned 25,000 square foot facility in
Bristol, Tennessee and in a leased 20,000 square foot buitding
in Dunmore, Pennsylvania. In connection with our headquarters

relocation to North Carolina, we have entered into a lease for
approximately 73,000 square feet expiring in 2015. The lease
for our current headquarters in Purchase, New York is for 35,000
sguare feet and extends through 2011, but we have the option
to cancel the lease in 2006 for a nominal fee. Once we vacate
the space, we intend to assign or sublet this lease, subject to
market conditions. We also lease 33,000 square feet of office
space in Overland Park, Kansas that extends into 2009 for sales
and certain administrative functions. We also lease space for
local sales offices, which are typically fairly small and have rela-
tively short terms. DonTech directly leases its own sales offices
and corporate headquarters.

We believe that our facilities are adeguate for their current
use and our present operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are involved in various legal proceedings arising in the ordi-
nary course of our business, as well as certain litigation and tax
matters described below. We periodically assess our liabilities
and contingencies in connection with these matters based upon
the latest information available to us. For those matters where

it is probable that we have incurred a loss and the loss or range
of loss can be reasonably estimated, we record reserves in our
consolidated financial statements. In other instances, we are
unable to make a reasonable estimate of any liability because
of the uncertainties related to both the probable outcome

and amount or range of loss. As additional information becomes
available, we adjust our assessment and estimates of such
liabilities accordingly.

Based on our review of the latest information available, we
believe our ultimate liability in connection with pending legal
proceedings, including the litigation and tax matters described
below, will not have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations, cash flows or financial position, as described below.

In order to understand our potential exposure under the
litigation and tax matters described below under the captions
“Information Resources, Inc.” and “Tax Matters,” you need to
understand the relationship between us and D&B, and certain of
our predecessors and affiliates that, through varicus corporate
reorganizations and contractual commitments, have assumed
varying degrees of responsibility with respect to such matters.

In November 1936, the company then known as The
Dun & Bradstreet Corporation separated through a spin-off
{1996 Distribution”) into three separate public companies:

The Dun and Bradstreet Corporation, ACNielsen Corporation
("ACNielsen”), and Cognizant Corpoeraticn (“Cognizant”). In June
1998, The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation separated through a
spin-off (“1998 Distribution”) into two separate public compa-
nies: R.H. Donnelley Corporation (formerly The Dun & Bradstreet
Corporation) and a new company that changed its name to The
Dun & Bradstreet Corporation. Later in 1998, Cognizant separat-
ed through a spin-off ("Cognizant Distribution”) into two separate
public companies: IMS Health Incorporated ("IMS”), and Nielsen
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Media Research, inc. (“NMR”). in September 2000, The Dun &
Bradstreet Corporation separated into two separate public
companies: Moody's Corporation (“Moody’s”) (formerly The Dun
& Bradstreet Corporation), and a new company that changed
its name to The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation. As a result

of the form of R.H. Donnelley Corporation’s separation from

The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation in 1998, we are the corporate
successor of and technically the defendant and taxpayer
referred to below as D&B.

Rockland Yellow Pages

In 1899, Sandy Goldberg, Dellwood Publishing, Inc. and
Rockland Yellow Pages initiated a lawsuit against the Company
and Bell Atlantic Corporation in the United States District Court
for the Southern District of New York. The Rockland Yellow
Pages is a proprietary directory that competes against a Bell
Atlantic directory in the same region, for which we served

as Bell Atlantic's advertising sales agent through June 30, 2000.
The complaint alleged that the defendants disseminated false
information concerning the Rockland Yellow Pages, which result-
ed in damages to the Rockland Yellow Pages. In May 2001, the
District Court dismissed substantially all of plaintiffs’ claims, and
in August 2001, the remaining claims were either withdrawn

by the plaintiffs or dismissed by the District Court. The plaintiffs
then filed a complaint against the same defendants in New York
State Supreme Court, in Rockland County, alleging virtually the
same state law tort claim previously dismissed by the District
Court and seeking unspecified damages. In October 2001,
defendants filed a motion to dismiss this complaint. On May 5,
2002, the Court granted defendants’ motion to dismiss the com-
plaint. Plaintiffs filed an appeal of this dismissal. On April 10,
2003, the Appellate Division heard oral arguments on the
appeal, and on April 28, 2003, the Appellate Division dismissed
all but one count of the complaint, which count alleges immateri-
al compensatory damages with respect to only one advertiser.
Accordingly, we presently do not believe that the final outcome
of this matter will have a material adverse effect on our results
of operations or financial condition. We will no longer report on
this matter.

Information Resources, Inc.

In 1996, Information Resources, Inc. (“IRI") filed a complaint in
the United States District Court for the Southern District of
New York, naming as defendants the Company, as successor
of D&B, ACNielsen and IMS, at the time of the filing, all wholly
owned subsidiaries of D&B.

The complaint alleges various violations of U.S. antitrust
laws under Sections 1 and 2 of the Sherman Act. The complaint
also alleges a claim of tortious interference with a contract
and a claim of tortious interference with a prospective business
relationship. These claims relate to the acquisition by defen-
dants of Survey Research Group Limited (“SRG"). IR! alleges
SRG violated an alleged agreement with IRI when it agreed to
be acquired by the defendants and that the defendants induced
SRG to breach that agreement.

IRl's antitrust claims allege that the defendants developed
and implemented a plan to undermine IRI's ability to compete

within the U.S. and foreign markets in North America, Latin
America, Asia, Europe and Australia/New Zealand through a
series of anti-competitive practices, including: unlawfully
tying/bundling services in the markets in which defendants
allegedly had monopoly power with services in markets in which
ACNielsen competed with 1RIl; entering into exclusionary
contracts with retailers in certain countries to deny IRI's access
to sales data necessary to provide retail tracking services

or to artificially raise the cost of that data; predatory pricing;
acquiring foreign market competitors with the intent of impeding
IRI's efforts to expand; disparaging IRI to financial analysts

and clients; and denying IRl access to capital necessary for

it to compete.

IRI's complaint originally sought damages in excess of
$350 million, which amount IRl scught to treble under antitrust
laws. IR! has since revised its allegation of damages to exceed
$650 mitlion, which IRl also seeks to treble. IR! also seeks
punitive damages of an unspecified amount.

In April 2003, the court denied a motion for partial summa-
ry judgment by the defendants that sought to dismiss certain. of _
IRV's claims and granted in part a motion by IRI seeking recon-
sideration of certain summary judgment rulings the Court had
previously made in favor of the defendants. The motion granted
by the court concerns IRI's claims of injuries from defendants’
alleged conduct in certain foreign markets.

In connection with the 1996 Distribution, Cognizant
(now “NMR"), ACNielsen and D&B entered into an Indemnity
and Joint Defense Agreement (the “JDA”), pursuant to which
they agreed to:

m allocate potential liabilities that may relate to, arise out of
or result from the IR lawsuit (“IRI Liabilities"); and
8 conduct a joint defense of such action.

In particular, the JDA provides that:

m ACNielsen will assume exclusive liability for IRI Liabilities

up to a maximum amount to be calculated at such time as such
liabilities become payable as a result of a final non-appealable
judgment or any settlement permitted under the JDA (the “ACN
Maximum Amount”); and

m D&B and Cognizant will share liability egqually for any amounts
in excess of the ACN Maximum Amount.

As noted above, ACNielsen is responsible for the IRI Liabilities
up to the ACN Maximum Amount. The JDA provides that
ACNielsen initially is to determine the amount that it will pay at
the time of settlement or a final judgment, if any, in [RI's favor
(the “ACN Payment”). The ACN Payment could be less than the
ACN Maximum Amount. The JDA also provides for D&B and
Cognizant to pay IRl 50% of the difference between the settle-
ment or judgment amount and the ACN Payment. In exchange,
the JDA requires ACNielsen to issue a secured note (the “ACN
Note"), subject to certain limits and offsets, to each of D&B and
Cognizant for the amount of their payment. The ACN Notes
would become payable upon the completion of any recapitaliza-
tion plan described in the next paragraph.

The ACN Maximum Amount will be determined by an




investment banking firm as the maximum amount that ACNielsen
is able to pay after giving effect to:

8 any recapizalization plan submitted by an investment bank
that is desigred to maximize the claims-paying ability of
ACNielsen without impairing the investment banking firm’s ability
to deliver a viability opinion and without requiring stockholder
approval; and

m payment of interest on the ACN Notes and related fees

and expenses.

For these purposes, “viability” means the ability of ACNielsen,
after giving effect to such recapitalization plan, the payment of
interest on tha ACN Notes, the payment of related fees and

expenses, ard the payment of the ACN Maximum Amount, to:

m pay its debts as they become due; and

@ finance the current and anticipated operating and capital
reguirements of its business, as reconstituted by such
recapitalization plan, for two years from the date any such
recapitalization plan is expected to be implemented.

In 2001, ACNielsen was acquired by VNU N.V. (“VNU"). We
understand that VNU has assumed ACNielsen’s liabilities under
the JDA. Uncler the agreements relating to the Cognizant
Distribution, IMS and NMR are each jointly and severally liable
for all Cognizant liabilities under the JDA, although we under-
stand that amongst themselves they have agreed to share the
liability for these amounts as follows: 75% IMS and 25% NMR
up to a maxiumum of $125 million.

Under the agreements relating to the 1998 Distribution,
D&B assumed the defense and agreed to indemnify us against
any payments that we may be required to make, including any
liabilities arising under the JDA, and IR! Liabilities arising from
the IRl action itsef, and in each case related legal fees. As
required by those agreements, Moody's Corporation, which sub-
sequently seoarated from D&B in the 2000 Distribution, has
agreed to be jointly and severally liable with D&B for the indem-
nity obligation to us. We understand that D&B and Mocdy's
have agreed to share equally (50% each) these indemnity obli-
gations to us.

However, because liability for violations of the antitrust laws
is joint and saveral and because many of the rights and
obligations relating to the JDA are based on contractual relation-
ships, the inability or failure of any party to the JDA to fulfill its
obligations could result in the other parties, including us, bear-
ing a greater share of the IRI Liabilities. Joint and several liability
means that even where more than one defendant is determined
to have beer responsible for alleged wrongdoing, the plaintiff
can collect all or part of a judgment from any one or more of the
responsible defendants. This is true regardless of any contractu-
al allocation of responsibility or indemnification provisions,
including those described above among VNU, ACNielsen, D&B,
IMS, Moody’s, NMR and us.

Discovery in the lawsuit is ongoing, and although the court
originally set a trial date for September 2004, the court rescind-

ed that date in January 2004, and there is currently no trial date
set. We are unable to predict at this time the outcome of the IRI
action or the financial condition of ACNielsen and VNU at the
time of any such outcome (and hence we cannot estimate the
ACN Maximum Amount and the portion of any judgment to be
paid by VNU and ACNielsen under the JDA). Nonetheless, while
we cannot assure you as to the outcome of this matter, manage-
ment presently believes that (i) D&B and Moody's have sufficient
financial resources, borrowing capacity and indemnity rights
against IMS and NMR (who succeeded to Cognizant’s indemnity
obligations under the Cognizant Distribution) and (i) IMS and
NMR in turn have sufficient financial resources and borrowing
capacity to satisfy their indemnity obligations to D&B and
Moody's, so as to reimburse us for any payments we may be
required to make and related costs we may incur in connection
with this matter.

Tax Matters

D&B entered into global tax-planning initiatives in the normal
course of its business, primarily through tax-free restructurings
of both its foreign and domestic operations. The status of
Internal Revenue Service reviews of these initiatives is summa-
rized below.

Pursuant to a series of agreements relating to the spin-offs
and separations referred to above, IMS and NMR are jointly and
severally liable for, and must pay one-half, and D&B and
Moody’s are jointly and severally liable for, and must pay the
other half, of any payments over $137 million for taxes, accrued
interest and other amounts resulting from unfavorable IRS rul-
ings on the matters summarized below (other than the matter
summarized below under “— Amortization and Royalty Expense
Deductions — 1997-2003," for which D&B and Moody’s, jointly
and severally, are solely responsible). D&B, on our behalf, was
contractually obligated to pay, and did pay, the first $137 million
of tax liability in connection with the matter summarized below
as “- Utilization of Capital Losses — 1989-1990." Under the terms
of the 1998 Distribution, D&B agreed to assume the defense and
to indemnify us for any tax liability that may be assessed against
us and any related costs and expenses that we may incur in
connection with any of these tax matters. Also, as required by
those agreements, Moody's has agreed to be jointly and several-
ly tiable with D&B for the indemnity obligation to us. Under the
terms of certain of the other spin-offs and separations, D&B and
Moody's have, between each other, agreed to be financially
responsible for 50% of any potential liabilities that may arise to
the extent such potential liabilities are not directly attributable to
each party's respective business operations.

While we cannot assure you as to the outcome in these
matters, management presently believes that D&B and Moody’s
have sufficient financial resources, borrowing capacity and
indemnity rights against IMS and NMR (who succeeded to
Cognizant’s indemnity obligations under the Cognizant
Distribution) and IMS and NMR in turn have sufficient financial
resources and borrowing capacity to satisfy their respective
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indemnity obligations to D&B and Moody’s, so as to reimburse
us far any payments we may be required to make and related
costs we may incur in connection with these tax matters.

Utilization of Capital Losses — 1989-1990

In 2000, D&B filed an amended tax return with respect to the uti-
lization of capital losses in 1989 and 1990 in response to a for-
mal IRS notice of adjustment. The amended tax return reflected
an additional $561.6 million of tax and interest due. In 2000,
D&B paid the IRS.$349.3 millicn while IMS (on behalf of itself
and NMRY) paid approximately $212.3 million. We understand
that this payment was made under dispute in order 10 stop addi-
tional interest from accruing, that D&B is contesting the IRS's for-
mal assessment and would also contest the assessment of
amounts, if any, in excess of the amounts paid, and that D&B
has filed a complaint for a refund in the United States District
Court. This case is expected to go to trial in 2005. We believe
that the fact that D&B and IMS have already paid the IRS a sub-
stantial amount of additional taxes with respect to the contested
tax planning strategies significantly mitigates our risk.

Royalty Expense Deductions — 1993-1997

In the second guarter of 2003, D&B received (on our behalf) an
IRS examination report with raspect to a partnership transaction
entered into in 1993. Specifically, the IRS is proposing to disal-
low certain royalty expense deductions claimed by D&B on its
1993 through 1996 tax returns. We understand that D&B esti-

. mates that the disallowance of the 1993 and 1994 royalty

expense deductions would result in a loss of $5 million in pend-
ing tax refunds and that the additional tax liability with respect to
the disallowance of the 1995 and 1996 royalty expense deduc-
tions could be up to $44.1 million (tax, interest and penalties,
net of associated tax benefits).

In addition, and also in the second quarter of 2003, D&B
received on behalf of the partnership associated with the above
transaction an IRS examination report challenging the tax treat-
ment of certain royalty payments received by the partnership
in which D&B was a partner. In that report, the IRS is seeking to
reallocate certain partnership income to D&B. In January 2004,
D&B received additional IRS Notices (similar to those received
in the second guarter of 2003) reflecting an additional tax liabili-
ty of $1.6 milfion (tax, interest, and penalties, net of associated
tax benefits) associated with D&B's remaining interest in
the partnership transaction (as described above) for the three
months in 1987 for which the entities were partners. The addi-
tional tax liability with respect to D&B's share of this income for
the notices received in the second guarter of 2003 and January
2004 could be up to $21.9 million (tax, interest and penalties,
net of associated tax benefits). We understand that D&B
believes that these pasitions regarding the partnership are
inconsistent with the IRS’ position with respect to the same
royalty expense deductions described above. This $21.9 million
additional liabifity would be in addition to the $44.1 million of
additional liability related to royalty expense deductions dis-
cussed in the previous paragraph.

D&B has filed protests relating to these proposed adjust-

ments with the IRS Office of Appeals. The parties are attempting
to resolve these matters at the Appeals phase before proceed-
ing to litigation, if necessary. If the IRS were to prevail in its posi-
tion, D&B would share responsibility for the matter with Moody's,
IMS and NMR, as disclosed above. |f D&B were to challenge
any of these IRS positions at any time in a U.S. District Court or
the U.S. Court of Federal Claims, rather than in U.S. Tax Court,
the disputed amounts would need to be paid in advance for the
Court to have jurisdiction over the case.

Amortization and Royalty Expense Deductions — 1997-2003
In the fourth quarter of 2003, D&B received (on our behalf) IRS
Notices of Proposed Adjustment with respect to a partnership
transaction entered into in 1997. In addition, D&B received, on
behalf of the partnership, various IRS materials further explain-
ing the examining agent’s position with respect to the activities
of the partnership in 1997 and 1998. Specifically, the IRS assert-
ed that certain amortization expense deductions claimed by
D&B onits 1997 and 1998 tax returns should be disallowed. We
understand that D&B estimates that the additional tax liability as
a result of the disallowance of the 1997 and 1998 amortization
deductions and the disallowance of such deductions claimed
from 1999 to date could be up to $52 million (tax, interest and
penalties, net of associated tax benefits). This transaction is
scheduled to expire in 2012 and, unless earlier terminated,
based on current interest rates and tax rates, additional tax
exposure would increase at a rate of approximately $2.5 million
per quarter (including potential penalties) as future amortization
expenses are deducted.

In addition, the IRS has asserted that royalty expense
deductions, claimed by D&B on its tax returns for 1897 and
1998 for royalties paid to the partnership should be disallowed.
Relatedly, the IRS has asserted that the receipt of these same
royalties by the partnership should be reallocated to and report-
ed as royalty income by D&B, including the portions of the
royalties that were allocated o third party partners in the part-
nership, and, thus, included in their taxable income. We under-
stand that D&B believes that the IRS’ stated positions with
respect 10 the treatment of the royalty expense and royalty
income are mutually inconsistent, making it unlikely that the IRS
will prevail on both of the positions. As a result, we understand
that D&B estimates that after taking into account certain other
tax benefits resulting from the IRS' position on the partnership it
is unlikely that there will be any additional cash tax payments
due in addition to the amounts noted above related to the amor-
tization expense deduction.

In the event the IRS were to prevail on both pasitions with
respect to the royalty expensefincome, which D&B believes
unlikely, D&B estimates that the additional tax liability as a result
of the disallowance of the 1997 and 1998 royalty expense
deductions, the disallowance of such deductions claimed from
1999 to date and the inclusion of the reallocated royalty income
for all relevant years could be up to $137 million {tax, interest
and penalties, net of associated tax benefits). This $137 million
would be in addition to the $52 million noted above related to
the amortization expense deduction.



D&B is attempting to resolve these matters with the IRS
before proceeding to IRS Appeals or litigation, if necessary. If
D&B were to cnallenge any of these IRS positions at any time in
U.S. District Court or the U.S. Court of Federal Claims, rather
than in U.S. Tax Court, the disputed amounts for each applica-
ble year would need to be paid in advance for the Court to have
jurisdiction over the case.

As a result of our assessment of our exposure in these mat-
ters relating to our prior relationship with D&B and its former affil-
iates, especially in light of our indemnity arrangements with D&B
and Moody’s, and their respective financial resources, borrowing
capacity and indemnity rights against IMS and NMR (and
ACNielsen and VNU with respect to the IRl matter), and in turn
IMS and NMR's (and ACNielsen’s and VNU's with respect to the
IRI matter) respective financial resources and borrowing capaci-
ty to satisfy their respective indemnity obligations to D&B and
Mocdy's, no material amounts have been accrued in our consoli-
dated financial statements for any of these D&B-related litigation
and tax matters.

Coastal Termite and Pest Control

In 2001, Marnan Group, Inc., doing business as Coastal Termite
and Pest Contro! ("Coastal"), filed a complaint in the United
States District Court for the Middle District of Florida against
SPA. The combolaint, as amended, alleged that SPA breached
certain directcry advertising contracts between 1996 and 1999,
fraudulently induced Coastal to enter into anather directory
advertising contract and tortiously interfered with Coastal’s busi-
ness refationships with its customers. Coastal was seeking dam-
ages for lost contract benefits, lost profits and diminution of
business value in an unspecified amount, including pre-judg-
ment interest. In October 2003, the parties settled this dispute
for an amount less than the $0.5 million reserved in the
Company's financial statements in connection with the SPA
acquisition. We will no longer report on this matter.

Other Matters

We are alsc involved in other legal proceedings, claims and
litigation arisirg in the ordinary conduct of our business.
Although we cannot assure you of any outcome, management
presently believes that the outcome of such legal proceedings
will not have & material adverse effect on our results of opera-
tions or financial condition and no material amounts have been
accrued in our consolidated financial statements with respect
to these matters.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a
Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders,
through the solicitation of proxies or otherwise, during the
quarter ended December 31, 2003.

Part 11

item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity,
Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities

The Company’s common stock trades on the New York Stock

Exchange under the symbol “RHD”. The table below indicates
the high and low sales price of the Company’s common stock
for each guarter of the last two years.

2003 2002
High Low High Low
1st Quarter $32.22 $28.72 $30.96 $26.60
2nd Quarter $38.60 $28.86 $32.10 $27.30
3rd Quarter $41.40 $35.60 $27.91 $22.02
4th Quarter $43.20 $37.56 $29.92 $24.19

On March 8, 2004, there were approximately 6,722 holders of
record of the Company’s common stock. On March 8, 2004, the
closing market price of the common stock was $ 43.81. We have
not paid any common dividends during the last two years and
do not expect to pay common dividends in the foreseeable
future. Our redeemable convertible cumulative preferred stock
(“Preferred Stock”) earns a cumulative dividend of 8%, com-
pounded quarterly. Without the consent of the holders of the
Preferred Stock, we cannot pay Preferred Stock dividends in
cash until October 2005; therefore, the dividend will accrete
through September 2005. Beginning in October 2005, we may
pay the Preferred Stock dividend in cash, subject to financial
covenants under our Credit Facility, or, at our option, we may
allow it to accrete. The stock purchase agreement with respect
to the Preferred Stock, and our varicus debt instruments contain
various financial restrictions that place limitations on our ability
to pay dividends in the future (see ltem 7, "Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations - Liquidity and Capital Resources” for additional
information regarding these instruments and agreements and
relevant limitations thereunder).

The following table sets forth securities outstanding under
existing equity compensation plans, as well as securities
remaining available for future issuance under those plans, in
each case as of December 31, 2003.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

(@) (b) (©

Number of securities Weighted-average Number of securities remaining
0 be issued upon exercise exercise price of available for future issuance under
of outstanding options outstanding options equity compensation plans (excluding
Plan category and rights and rights securities reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders’ 2,286,866 $ 26.85 1,609,009
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders:
1991 Key Employees’ Stock Option Plan 2 982,232 $16.81 0
1998 Key Employees’ Performance Unit Plan ® 69,809 $ 35.08 0
1998 Directors' Stock Plan 19,650 $17.32 0
1998 Partner Share Plan ° 17,550 $ 15.31 0
2001 Partner Share Plan © 38,114 $ 26.45 0
Total 3,414,221 $ 24.01 1,609,009

" This reflects securities covered by our 2001 Stock Award and Incentive Plan (“2001 Plan”), which was adopted and approved by our shareholders
at our 2001 Annual Meeting of Stockhoiders

2 This reflects options still outstanding under our 1991 Key Employees' Stock Option Plan (“1991 Plan”). This plan was originally a D&B plan that was
carried over at the time of the Spin-off from D&B. The 2001 Plan replaced the 1991 Plan and all shares available for grant under the 1991 Plan became
available for grant under the 2001 Plan upon its approval by stockholders; provided, however, all options then outstanding remained subject to the
terms and conditions of the 1991 Plan.

3 This reflects the performance shares ("PERS") still outstanding under our 1998 Key Employees' Performance Unit Plan (“PUP Plan”). Upon completion of
the respective periormance pericd, a dollar amount of the award is determined for each recipient based on the Company's actual financial performance
against economic profit and earnings per share goals. The doliar amount is then converted into a number of PERS by dividing the dollar amount of
the award by the Company's stock price (calculated as the average of the high and low prices of the Company’s common stock on the ten trading days
subsequent to delivery of the Company's respective audited consclidated financial statements to the Compensation and Benefits Committee of the
Company’s Board of Directors) at that time. The above computation is based on a stock price of $35.03, which reflects the weighted average of (a) the
price of $28.04 at which outstanding awards were converted under the 1998 PERS grant, and (b) $39.93 (the average market price of the company’s
common stock as of December 31, 2003) for awards to be converted in March 2004 under the 2001 PERS grant. The 2001 Plan replaced the PUP
Plan and all shares available for grant under the PUP Plan became available for grant under the 2001 Plan upon its approval by stockholders; provided,
however, all awards then outstanding remained subject to the terms and conditions of the PUP Plan.

¢ This reflects shares and options still outstanding under our 1998 Directors' Stock Plan (1998 Director Plan®). The 2001 Plan replaced the 1998 Director
Plan and all shares available for grant under the 1998 Director Plan became available for grant under the 2001 Director Plan upon its approval by
stockholders; provided, however, all shares and options then outstanding remained subject to the terms and conditions of the 1998 Director Plan.

® This reflects options still outstanding under cur 1938 Partner Share Plan (1998 PS Plan"), which was a broad-based plan covering lower level employees
not eligible for grants under the 1881 Plan. The Plan only authorized 262,000 shares for grant at its inception and only 17,550 shares remain outstanding.
The 2001 Plan replaced the 1998 PS Plan and all shares available for grant under the 1998 PS Plan became available for grant under the 2001
Plan upon its approval by stockholders; provided, however, all shares and options then outstanding rermained subject 1o the terms and conditions of
the 1998 PS Plan.

€ This reflects options still outstanding under our 2001 Partner Share Plan (*2001 PS Plan”), which was a broad-based plan covering lower level smployees
whose grants were made prior to shareholder approval of the 2001 Plan. The Plan only authorized 124,750 shares for grant at its inception and only
38,114 remain outstanding. The 2001 Plan replaced this Plan and all shares available for grant under this 2001 PS Plan became available for grant under
the 2001 Plan upon its approval by stockholders; provided, however, all shares and options then outstanding remained subject to the terms and
conditions of the original 2001 PS Plan.



item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. The information set
forth below should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and related notes in Item 8 and
with “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in ltem 7.

Years Ended December 31,

(in thousands, =xcept per share data) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Statement of Operations Data '

Net revenue $ 256,445 $ 75408 $ 80,253 $ 141,287 $ 181,905
Partnership income 114,052 136,873 139,964 147,693 139,181

Qperating income 92,526 145,982 111,472 147,375 129,906
Net (loss) income (49,953) 67,177 49,815 124,758 55,151

Preferred dividend 58,397 24,702 - - -
(Loss) income available to common shareholders (108,350} 42,475 438,815 124,758 55,151

(L.oss) Earnings Per Share

Basic $ (3.53) $1.42 $1.65 $ 3.91 $1.64
Diluted $(3.53) $ 140 $1.61 $3.83 $ 161

Shares Used in Computing (Loss) Earnings Per Share

Basic 30,683 29,643 30,207 31,947 33,676
Diluted 30,683 30,298 30,976 32,594 34,159
Balance Sheet '

Total assets $2,538,734 $2223375% $ 295981 $ 365,284 $§ 395,406

Long-term debt 2,042,547 2,075,4702 283,904 347,526 435,000
Redeemable convertible preferred stock 198,223 63,459 ~ - -
Shareholders’ deficit (56,245) (30,600) (111,313) (108,510) (192,811)

! Financial data for the year ended December 31, 2003 include the results of the former SPA business from and after January 3, 2003. Net revenue,
net loss and loss available to common shareholders refiect purchase accounting adjustments that precluded the recognition of revenue and
certain expenses associated with directories published by SPA prior to the acquisition, including all January 2003 published directories. See Item 7,
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditicn and Results of Operations” for further discussion of these items.

2 In connection with the SPA acquisition, we incurred a significant amount cf debt. To take advantage of favorable market conditions and to ensure
the timely consummation of the SPA acquisition, we issued Preferred Stock in November 2002 and borrowed funds under certain debt instruments in
Diecember 2002, Therefore, our cash and debt balances were unusually high at December 31, 2002 as compared to prior periods.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This ltem should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements and notes theretc that are
included in ftem 8. Unless otherwise indicated, the terms
“Company,” “Donnelley,” “RHD,” “we," “us” and “our” refer to
R.H. Donnelley Corporation and its direct and indirect wholly
owned subsidiaries.

Corporate Overview

We are the sixth largest directory publisher in the United States
based on revenue. We have been in the yellow pages business
in various capacities for over 100 years. We now publish 260
Sprint-branded, revenue-generating yellow pages directories in
18 states and have a total circulation of approximately 18 million,
serving approximately 160,000 local and 4,000 national advertis-
ers. Through The DonTech i Partnership (“DonTech"), our part-
nership with an affiliate of SBC Communications, Inc. (“SBC”),
we sell advertising for an additional 129 SBC-branded directo-
ries in lllinois and northwest Indiana with a total circulation

of approximately 10 million, serving approximately 100,000 local
advertisers. Many local advertisers rely on the yellow pages
directories as their primary or sole method of advertising.

On January 3, 2003, we acquired all the outstanding com-
mon stock of the various entities comprising Sprint Publishing
and Advertising (“SPA"), Sprint Corporation’s (“Sprint”) directory
publishing business. See "SPA Acquisition” below for a further
description of the acquisition. The acquisition transformed
Donnelley from a sales agent and pre-press vendor into a lead-
ing publisher of yellow pages directories. Prior to the SPA
acquisition, we were one of the largest independent sales
agents and pre-press vendors for yellow pages advertising in
the United States.

Commencing in 2003, our operating and financial results
reflect our yellow pages publishing business, rather than our
former business as a sales agent and pre-press vendor for yel-
low pages advertising on behalf of other publishers, including
SPA. As a publisher, we report the full value of advertising sales
and certain direct costs under the deferral and amortization
method. As a sales agent and pre-press vendor for yellow
pages advertising, in 2001 and 2002 our revenue reflected sales
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commissions and pre-press fees from, or other transactions
with, our business partners, including SPA and our expenses
were charged to earnings as incurred. DonTech remained
unchanged following the SPA acquisition, and our financial
presentation of DonTech is consistent for all periods presented
in this annual report.

Forward-Looking Information

Certain statements contained in this Annual Report on Form
10-K regarding Donnelley’s future operating results, perform-
ance, business plans or prospects and any other statements not
constituting historical fact are “forward-looking statements” sub-
ject to the safe harbor created by the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. Where possible, words such as “believe,”
‘expect,” “anticipate,” “should,” “will,” “would,” “planned,” “esti-
mates,” “potential,” “goal,” “outlook,” “may,” “predicts,” “could,”
or the negative of those words and other comparable expres-
sions, are used to identify such forward-looking statements.
Actual events or results may differ materialty. In evaluating those
statements, you should specially consider various factors,
including the risks and uncertainties discussed below. Those
factors may cause our actual results to differ materially from any
of RHD's forward-looking statements. All forward-looking state-
ments attributable to us or a person on our behalf are expressly
qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement. All for-
ward-looking statements reflect only our current beliefs and
assumptions with respect to our future results, business plans,
and prospects, and are based solely on information currently
available to us. Although we believe that the expectations
reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we
cannot guarantee future results, levels of activity or perform-
ance. These forward-looking statements are made as of the date
of this annual report and, except as required under the federal
securities laws and the rules and regulations of the SEC,
we assume no obligation to update or revise them or to provide
reasons why actual results may differ.

Such risks, uncertainties and contingencies include, with-
out limitation, the following:

"o "o " ou "ou

1. Our ability to meet substantial debt service obligations
We have a substantial amount of debt and significant debt serv-
ice obligations in 2004 and thereafter. As of December 31, 20083,
we had total outstanding debt of $2,092.1 million. See “Liquidity
and Capital Resources” below for further details regarding our
debt obligations and instruments. As a result of our significant
amount of debt and debt service obligations, we face increasing
risks associated with, but not limited to, the following:

= our ability to obtain additional financing in excess of the bor-
rowing capacity under our $125 million Revolving Credit Facility
(the “Revolver”) on satisfactory terms to fund working capital
requirements, capital expenditures, acquisitions, investments,
debt service requirements and other general corporate require-
ments is limited;

m we are more vulnerable to general economic downturns,
competition and industry conditions, which could place us at a
competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that
are less leveraged,;

m we face increased exposure 1o rising interest rates as a
portion of our debt is at variable interest rates;

a we have reduced availability of cash flow to fund working
capital requirements, capital expenditures, acquisitions, invest-
ments and other general corporate requirements because a
substantial portion of our cash flow will be needed to service
our debt obligations; and

= we have limited flexibility in planning for, or reacting to,
changes in our business and the industry in which we operate.

Our ability to pay principal and interest on our debt obligations
will depend upon our future operating performance and our abil-
ity to refinance debt. If we are unable to service our debt and
fund our business, we may be forced to reduce or delay capital
expenditures, seek additional debt financing or equity capital,
restructure or refinance our debt or sell assets. We cannot assure
you that we would be able to obtain additional financing, refi-
nance existing debt or sell assets on satisfactory terms or at all.

2. Restrictive covenants under our debt and

Preferred Stock agreements

The indentures governing our 8 7/8% Senior Notes (“Senior
Notes”) due 2010 and 10 7/8% Senior Subordinated Notes
(“Subordinated Notes") due 2012 (collectively, the "Notes”) and
our Senior Secured Credit Facility, as amended ("Credit
Facility"), include a number of significant restrictive covenants.
See “Liquidity and Capital Rescurces” below for further details
regarding our debt instruments. These covenants could
adversely affect us by limiting our ability to plan for or react to
market conditions or to meet our capital needs. These
covenants, among other things, restrict our ability and the ability
of our subsidiaries to:

m incur additional debt;

m pay dividends on our equity interests or repurchase equity
interests;

m make certain investments;

m enter into certain types of transactions with affiliates;

m limit dividends or other payments by our restricted
subsidiaries to us;

m Use assets as security in other transactions; and

m sell certain assets or merge with or into other companies.

In addition, the Credit Facility includes other and more restrictive
covenants and prohibits us from prepaying the Notes while bor-
rowings under the Credit Facility are outstanding. The Credit
Facility also requires us to maintain certain financial ratios and
meet other financial tests. The failure to comply with these
covenants could result in an event of default, which, if not cured
or waived, could require us to repay these borrowings before
their scheduled due date. If we were unable to make this repay-
ment or otherwise refinance these borrowings, the lenders under
the Credit Facility could foreclose on our assets, substantially

all of which have been subjected to security interests in favor

of the lenders under the Credit Faclility. In addition, these fenders
could elect to declare all amounts borrowed under the Credit
Facility, together with accrued interest, to be due and payable,
which, in some instances, would be an event of default under
the indentures governing the Notes. If we were unable to refi-
nance these borrowings on favorable terms, our results of oper-
ations and financial condition could be adversely impacted

by increased costs and less favorable terms, including rates



and covenants Any future refinancing of the Credit Facility is
likely to contain similar restrictive covenants.

Furthermcre, the terms of the purchase agreement with
respect to our redeemable, convertible, cumulative preferred
stock (“Preferred Stock”), among other things, restricts our
ability and the ability of our subsidiaries to:

= incur additional debt;

m enter into mejor corporate transactions;

m pay dividencs on shares of our common stock or
repurchase shares of our common stock;

m enter into certain types of transactions with affiliates; and
m sell or acquire certain assets.

Our failure to comply with these terms would resuilt in a breach
of this agreement, which could have a material adverse effect
on our business. In addition, without the consent of the holders
of our Preferred Stock, we cannot issue shares of common
stock for 18 months following the SPA acquisition, which could
adversely affect our liquidity (see “~ Liquidity and Capital
Resources” for a further description of the Preferred Stock).

3. Usage of print yellow pages directories and

changes in technology

From 1997 to 2000, overall references to print yellow pages
directories in the United States declined; however, overall refer-
ences to print vellow pages directories have remained stable
over the past three years.

We believe the past decline was primarily a result of demo-
graphic shifts among consumers, particularly the increase of
households in which English was not the primary language
spoken. We also believe that the past decline was attributable to
increased usage. of Internet-based directory products, particu-
larly in business-to-business and retail categories, as well as the
praliferation of very large retail stores for which consumers and
businesses mey not reference the yellow pages.

Any declines in usage could:

® impair our ability to maintain or increase advertising prices;

m cause businesses that purchase advertising in our yeliow
pages directories to reduce or discontinue those purchases; and
m discourage husinesses that do not purchase advertising in
our yellow pages directories from doing so.

Any of the factors that may contribute to a decline in usage of
our print directories, or a combination of them, could impair our
revenues and have a material adverse effect on our business.
The yellow pages directory advertising business is subject
to changes arising from developments in technology, including
information distribution methods and users' technological
preferences, Tae use of the Internet by consumers as a means
to transact corimerce may result in new technologies being
developed and services being provided that could compete
with our products and services. As a result of these factors, our
growth and future financial performance may depend on our
ability to develop and market new products and services and
create new distribution channels, while enhancing existing
products, serv ces and distribution channels, to incorporate the
latest technological advances and accommodate changing

user preferences, including the use of the Internet. We cannot
assure you that we will be able to provide services over the
Internet successfully or that we will be able to compete success-
fully with other Internet-based directory services. in addition,

if we fail to anticipate or respond adequately to changes in
technology and user preferences or are unable to finance the
capital expenditures necessary to respond to such changes,
our results of operations or financial condition could be material-
ly adversely affected.

4. SBC’s or DonTech’s actions could adversely

impact our business

DonTech is Donnelley’s 50/50 perpetual partnership with an affili-
ate of SBC. Donnelley and DonTech have a variety of perpetual
contractual relationships with SBC. Pursuant to the partnership
agreement and the other existing contractual arrangements,
DonTech is the exclusive sales agent in perpetuity for the 129
yellow pages directories published by SBC in lllinois and north-
west Indiana. Donnelley’s income with respect to DonTech is
comprised of two components: our 50% interest in the net profits
of DonTech and revenue participation income received from an
affiliate of SBC. Our partnership income related to DonTech is
expected to represent approximately 30% to 35% of our total
operating income.

As the exclusive sales agent for local advertising, DonTech
is responsible for the management of its sales force, including
compensation, recruiting and training and other sales-related
matters. As the publisher, SBC has responsibility for and control
over all other matters, including, without limitation, product
development, national advertising, print and distribution, pricing,
scheduling, marketing and advertising, billing, collections, credit
and customer service. While we believe that DonTech and its
economic interests are generally aligned with those of SBC with
respect to SBC’s yellow pages directory operations, SBC could
implement policies and decisions (in which DonTech or we
would likely have little or no participation or influence) and/or
perform its obligations in a manner that could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations or financial condition
and, potentially, on our relationship with SBC. We cannot assure
you that any such policies or decisions would not have a materi-
al adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition
or our relationship with SBC. We also maintain a large receivable
balance from SBC, which was $93.5 million as of December 31,
2003, and any liquidity difficulties that SBC may experience
could materially impact our results of operations or financial con-
dition and liquidity.

The DonTech partnership agreement and related SBC con-
tractual arrangements have perpetual terms. These arrange-
ments only terminate upon the occurrence of certain enumerat-
ed events, including, without limitation, the unremedied breach-
es of certain material provisions therecf, the mutual agreement
of the parties, the bankruptcy of a partner or parent or a change
in contro! of a partner (excluding a change in control of the ulti-
mate parent company of the partner). In addition, under applica-
ble law, the contractual arrangements potentially may not remain
in effect in perpetuity. We cannot assure you that the DonTech
relationship will remain in full force and effect into perpetuity,
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without material modification or at all, that DonTech and SBC wiill
perferm all of their respective material obligations (particularly
payment obligations) under these agreements or that SBC will
not seek to terminate these arrangements. In the event any such
party seeks to terminate these contractual arrangements, the
other party may dispute such attempted termination and, in
such case, a court or arbitrator may be required to determine
the appropriateness of any such attempted termination, and we
cannot assure you as to the outcome of any such proceeding.
Any such termination or material modification of the agreements
or failure by SBC or DonTech to perform their respective material
obligations would have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations.

5. Competition

The United States directory advertising industry is highly com-
petitive. Approximately 80% of total United States directory
advertising sales are attributable to Regional Bell Operating
Company ("RBOC") directory publishers that typically publish
directories where they offer local phone service. In addition,
more than 240 independent publishers operating in the United
States compete with those RBOC publishers. In nearly all mar-
kets, we compete with one or more yellow pages directory pub-
lishers, which are predominantly independent publishers. In
some markets, we compete on a limited basis with RBOC direc-
tory publishers in adjacent markets. One of these publishers,
Verizon Information Services, the directory business affiliated
with Verizon Communications, Inc., has begun to publish direc-
tories and offer local Internet directory services in markets
beyond where Verizon Communications offers local phone serv-
ice, including certain markets where we publish directories.
Effectively, Verizon Information Services is competing as an
independent publisher in those markets. While no other RBOC
publisher has announced similar plans, no assurance can be
given that other RBOC publishers will not do so in the future.
Many of these RBOC publishers are larger than us and have
greater financial resources than we have. Nc assurances can be
given that we will be able to compete effectively with these other
publishers for advertising sales or acquisitions in the future.

We also compete for advertising sales with other media,
including newspapers, magazines, radio, direct mail, the
Internet and television. Additionally, advances in technology
have brought new participants, new products and new channels
to the industry, including increasing use of electronic delivery of
traditional directory information {e.g., Yahoo Yellow Pages) and
electronic search engines/services (e.g., Google) as an advertis-
ing medium. We cannot assure you that we will be able to com-
pete successfully in responding to any such developments.
Many of these competitors are larger than us and have greater
financial resources than we have.

In addition, the Telecommunications Act of 1996 opened
local telephone markets to increased competition, which may
adversely impact the market position of the telephone utilities,
including Sprint and SBC. In addition, Federal Communication
Commission rules regarding local number portability, advances
in communications technology (such as wireless devices and
voice over Internet protocol) and demographic factors (potential

shifts in younger generations away from wireline telephone com-
munications towards wireless or other communications technolo-
gies) may further erode the market position of telephone utilities,
including Sprint and SBC. As a result, we cannot assure you that
Sprint or SBC will remain the primary local telephone service
provider in its local service areas. If Sprint were no longer the
primary local telephone service provider in any particular local
service area, our license o be the exclusive publisher in its mar-
kets and to use the Sprint brand name on our directories in
those markets may not be as valuable as we presently antici-
pate, and we may not realize some of the anticipated benefits
under our commercial arrangements with Sprint. If SBC were no
longer the primary local telephone service provider in any
DonTech service area, the financial results we recognize from
DonTech could be adversely affected.

6. Reliance on, and extension of credit to, small- and
medium-sized businesses

Approximately 85% of our directory advertising revenue is
derived from selling advertising to small- and medium-sized
businesses. In the ordinary course of our yellow pages publish-
ing business, we extend credit to these advertisers for advertis-
ing purchases. Small- and medium-sized businesses, however,
tend to have fewer financial resources and higher failure rates
than large businesses. The proliferation of very large retail stores
may continue to harm small- and medium-sized businesses.
We believe these limitations are significant contributing factors
to having advertisers in any given year not renew their advertis-
ing in the following year. In addition, full or partial collection of
delinquent accounts can take an extended period of time.
Consequently, we could be adversely affected by our depend-
ence on and our extension of credit to small- and medium-
sized businesses.

7. Dependence on third party providers of printing,
distribution and delivery services
We depend on third parties for the printing and distribution of
our directories. We are a party to two contracts with R.R.
Donnelley for the printing of our directories. Printing is one of
our largest costs items accounting for approximately 10% of our
total operating and general and administrative expenses.
Although these contracts do not expire until December 2005 and
December 2007, because of the large print volume and special-
ized binding of directories, there are a limited number of compa-
nies capable of servicing our printing needs. Accordingly, the
inability or unwillingness of R.R. Donnelley to provide printing
services to us on acceptable terms or at all could have a materi-
al adverse effect on our business. No common ownership or
other business affiliation exists between R.R. Donnelley and us.
We are a party to contracts with two companies for the dis-
tribution of our directories. Although these contracts are sched-
uled to expire in February 2007, either vendor may terminate its
contract with us upon 120 days' written notice. There are a limit-
ed number of companies capable of servicing our delivery
needs. Accordingly, the inability or unwillingness of our current
vendors to provide delivery services to us on acceptable terms.
or at all could have a material adverse effect on our business.



8. General economic factors
Our business results could be adversely affected by a
prolonged national or regional economic recession. We derive
substantially-all of our revenue from the sale of advertising in
directories. Typically, our advertising revenues, as well as those
of yellow pages publishérs in general, do not fluctuate widely
with economic cycles. However, a prolonged naticnal or regional
economic recession could have a material adverse effect on
our business, results of operations or financial condition. As
a result, we may experience lower than expected revenues for
our business in the future.

In addition, any residual economic effects of, and uncer-
tainties regard ng:

m the terrorist attacks that occurred on September 11, 2001;

m the general possibility, express threat or future occurrence of
similar terrorist or other related disruptive events; and

m the United States’ involvement in military conflict

aspecially with respect to the major markets in which we operate
that depend h=avily upon travel, tourism or the military, could
also adversely affect our business.

9. Fluctuations in the price and availability of paper

Our principal raw material is paper. We currently have one
contract for the purchasing of paper. This agreement is effective
through December 31, 2006 and can be terminated by either
party if a material breach of the agreement occurs and is not
cured by the breaching party within 30 days of written notice.
The price of the paper was set at inception and increases at var-
ious dates during the term of the agreement. Should the market
price of the paper drop below the set prices, both parties are
obligated to negotiate in good faith a lower paper price. We are
subject to delays in receiving this principal raw material. Further,
changes in the supply of, or demand for, paper could affect
market prices or delivery times. Paper is one of our largest cost
iterns accounting for approximately 5% to 7% of our total operat-
ing and general and administrative expenses, We cannot assure
you that we will have available necessary raw materials at
reasonable prces or that any increases in paper costs would
not have a meterial adverse effect on our business, results of
operations or financial condition.

10. The sale of advertising to national accounts is
coordinated Dy third parties that we do not control
Approximately 15% of our directory advertising revenues are
derived from the sale of advertising to national or large regional
companies, such as rental car companies, automobile repair
shops and pizza delivery businesses, each of whom generally
purchases advertising in several of our directories. Substantially
all of the-revenue derived from national accounts is serviced
through Certified Marketing Representatives ("CMRs") with
whom we contract. CMRs are independent third parties that act
as agents for national companies and design their advertise-
ments, arrange for the placement of those advertisements in
directories and provide billing services. As a result, our relation-
ships with these national advertisers depend significantly on the
performance of these third party CMRs whom we do not control.
Although we beligve that our relationships with these CMRs have

been mutually beneficial, if some or all of the CMRs with whom
we have established relationships were unable or unwilling to
provide services to us on acceptable terms or at all, such inabili-
ty or unwillingness could materially adversely affect our busi-
ness. During 2003, we began acting as a CMR directly placing
certain national advertising. No assurance can be given that
such development will not adversely impact our relationships
with CMRs or expose us to possible legal claims from CMRs. We
are also subject to credit risk with CMRs with whom we contract.

11. Turnover among our sales force or key management

Our ability to achieve our business plan depends to a significant
extent on our ability to identify, hire, train and retain qualified
sales personnel in each of the regions in which we operate. We
expend a significant amount of resources and management time
on identifying and training our account executives. Our ability to
attract and retain gualified sales personnel depends on numer-
ous factors, including some outside of our control, such as con-
ditions in the local employment markets in which we operate.

A decrease in the number of account executives could adverse-
ly affect our results of operations, financial condition and liquidi-
ty, as well as our ability to service our debt.

Furthermore, we depend on the continued services of key
personnel, including our experienced senior management team
as well as our regional sales management personnel. Although
we believe that we could replace our senior management team
and other key employees within a reasonable time period should
the need arise, the loss of these key personnel could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

12. The loss of important intellectual property rights

Some trademarks such as the "Sprint” and “Donnelley” brand
names and other intellectual property rights are important to our
business. We rely upon a combination of copyright and trade-
mark laws as well as contractual arrangements, including licens-
ing agreements, particularly with respect to Sprint markets,

to establish and protect our intellectual property rights. We are
required from time to time to bring lawsuits against third parties
to protect our intellectual property rights. Similarly, from time

to time, we are party to proceedings whereby third parties chal-
lenge our rights. We cannot be sure that any lawsuits or other
actions brought by us will be successful or that we will not be
found to infringe the intellectual property rights of third parties.
Although we are not aware of any material infringements of

any trademark rights that are significant to our business, any
lawsuits, regardless of their cutcome, could result in substantial
costs and diversion of resources and could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results

of operations. In addition, we only have rights to use the Sprint
name and diamond logo in certain markets. The loss of impor-
tant intellectual property rights such as frademarks could have a
material adverse effect upon our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

13. Impact of bankruptcy proceedings against Sprint or its
affiliates during the term of the commercial arrangements
Contract rights under the directory services license agreement,
trademark license agreement and non-competition agreement
with Sprint and its affiliates constitute a substantial portion of
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our commercial arrangements with Sprint and its affiliates.
Pursuant 1o these commercial arrangements, we are the exclu-
sive directory publisher for Sprint in the markets where Sprint
provided telephone service at the time of the agreements. If

a bankruptcy case were to be commenced by or against Sprint,
it is possible that all or part of the directory services license
agreement and/or non-competition agreement could be consid-
ered an executory contract and could therefore be subject o
rejection by Sprint or a trustee appointed in a bankruptcy case
pursuant to Section 365 or'Section 1123 of the United States
Bankruptcy Code.

It one or more of these agreements were rejected, the
applicable agreement may not be specifically enforceable, in
which case we would have only an unsecured claim for dam-
ages against Sprint for the breach of contract resulting from the
rejection. If the directory services license agreement were reject-
ed, we would, among other things, no longer be entitled to be
Sprint’s exclusive publisher of telephone directories in the affect-
ed markets. We could also lose our right to enforce the provi-
sions of the agreement under which we have the right to license
trademarks of successor local exchange carriers in the Sprint
markets. If the non-competition agreement were rejected and
specific enforcement were not available, Sprint would, among
other things, no longer be precluded from publishing print tele-
phone directeries or selling local directory advertising in the
applicable restricted markets.

In connection with the SPA acquisition, Sprint created a
bankruptcy remote special purpose vehicle in the form of a limit-
ed liability company and contributed and assigned the trade-
marks being licensed to us under the trademark license agree-
ment to this limited liability company. The operating agreements
of this limited liability company require, among other things, that
the board of managers of this entity include one independent
manager that is unaffiliated with Sprint. The consent of this
independent manager is required for the entity to take certain
actions, including, among other things, commencement of
a bankruptcy proceeding. Because the trademarks were con-
tributed to this limited liability company, our rights under the
trademark license agreement are not subject to rejection in the
event of a bankruptcy proceeding involving Sprint unless there
is alsc a bankruptcy proceeding involving this limited liability
company. Although we believe that the liketihood of this entity
being the subject of a bankruptcy proceeding is limited by this
structure and the governing provisions of the operating agree-
ment, if the trademark license agreement were rejected in a
bankruptcy proceeding, we would lose the right to use the Sprint
brand name for the former SPA directories we now publish in
those markets.

We cannot assure you that any loss of rights under certain
of these arrangements with Sprint and its affiliates would
not have a material adverse effect on cur financial conditicn or
results of operations.

14. Our inability to enforce the non-competition

agreement with Sprint

In connection with the SPA acquisition, Sprint entered into a
non-competition agreement with us. The non-competition agree-
ment prohibits Sprint in the markets where Sprint provided local

telephone service at the time of the transaction from selling local
directory advertising or producing, publishing and distributing
print directories, with certain limited exceptions. However,

under state and federal law, a covenant not to compete is only
enforceable:

m to the extent it is necessary to protect a legitimate business
interest of the party seeking enforcement;

= if it does notunreasonably restrain the party against whom
enforcement is sought; and

m if it is not contrary to the public interest.

Enforceability of a non-competition covenant is determined by a
court based on all of the facts and circumstances of the specific
case at the time enforcement is sought. For this reason, it is not
possible for us to predict whether, or to what extent, a court will
enforce Sprint's covenants not to compete against us during the
term- of the non-competition agreement. If a court were to deter-
mine that the non-competition agreement is unenforceable,
Sprint could compete directly against us in the directory publish-
ing business in the previously restricted markets. We cannot
assure you that our inability to enforce the non-competition
agreement with Sprint would not have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition or results of operations.

SPA Acquisition

On January 3, 2003, we completed the acquisition of SPA for
$2.23 billion in cash, including post-acquisition working capital
adjustments. To finance the acquisition, we entered into a

new $1,525 million Credit Facility, consisting of a $500 million
Term Loan A, a $300 million Term Loan B and a $125 millicn
Revolver. We also issued $325 million 8 7/8% Senior Notes and
$600 million 10 7/8% Senior Subordinated Notes. Additionally,
we issued $200 miltion of Preferred Stock and warrants to
purchase 1,650,000 shares of our common stock to partnerships
affiliated with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (collectively, the
*GS Funds”).

To take advantage of favorable market conditions and to
ensure the timely consummation of the SPA acquisition, we
issued the Notes and borrowed the Term Loan B in December
2002. The total gross proceeds of $1,825 million were deposited
and held in escrow pending the SPA acquisition closing. We
issued $70 million of Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase
577,500 shares of our common stock, with an exercise price of
$26.28 per share in November 2002 to the GS Funds. At the
closing of the SPA acquisition, we issued an additional $130 mil-
lion of Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase 1,072,500
shares of our common stock, with an exercise price of $28.62
per share to the GS Funds. Additionally, we borrowed the Term
Loan A and $10 million under the Revolver on the closing date.

In connection with the transaction, we entered into a direc-
tory services license agreement, a trademark license agreement
and a non-competition agreement with Sprint. The directory
services license agreement gives us the exclusive right to pro-
duce, publish and distribute directories for Sprint in the markets
where Sprint provided local telephone service. The trademark
license agreement gives us the exclusive right to use certain
Sprint trademarks, including the Sprint diamond logo, in those
markets. The non-competition agreement prohibits Sprint in



those markets from selling local directory advertising or produc-
ing, publishing and distributing print directories, with certain
limited exceptions. These agreements are all interrelated and
each has initial terms of 50 years, subject to earlier termination
under specified circumstances.

Prior to tha acquisition, we provided sales agency and pre-
press publishirg services to SPA and received a priority distribu-
tion from CenDon LLC, a partnership between us and Centel
Directory Company (“Centel”) (an affiliate of Sprint). Accordingly,
at December 31, 2002, we had an aggregate receivable of
$43.3 million fcr commissions, pre-press publishing fees and pri-
ority distribution income from SPA. As a resuit of the acquisition,
these receivab es became part of the purchase price. Also,
other long-term liabilities at December 31, 2002 included an
amount due to Sprint of $7.0 million, which we paid in cash at
the closing.

The acqu sition was accounted for as a purchase business
combination and the purchase price was allocated to the tangi-
ble and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities
assumed based on their respective fair values on the acguisition
date. The results of the former SPA business are included in our
consolidated results from and after January 3, 2003.

The allocation of the purchase price to the fair value of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed is shown in the table
below. The purchase price allocation below reflects the initial
allocation and subsequent purchase price adjustments made
in 2003.

{amounts in millions)

Calculation of allocable purchase price:

Cash $ 2,229.8
Allocable transaction costs 17.6
Total allocable purchase price $ 22474
Allocation of purchase price:
Directory Services Agreements $ 1,625.0
Customer reletionships 260.0
Trade names 30.0
SPA net assets acquired 81.5
Fair value adjustments:
Reverse pre-acquisition deferred revenue 315.8
Reverse deferred allowance for doubtful

accounts and sales claims included in

SPA's opening deferred revenue (22.8)
Reverse deferred directory costs associated

with directories published pre-acquisition (89.5)
Efiminate SPA historical deferred tax

and goodwill (43.5)
Other (23.8)
Fair value of net assets acquired 217.8
Gooedwill 97.0
Total cash purchase price 2,229.8
Allocable transaction costs 17.6
Total allocable purchase price $ 2,247.4

Segment Reporting

We revised our historical segment reporting in the first quarter of
2003 to reflect the change in the business that resulted from the
SPA acquisition and to reflect the way management now reviews
and analyzes the business. Our reportable operating segments
are now Donnelley and DonTech. The Donnelley segment
includes the revenue from our 260 Sprint-branded yellow pages
directories and our pre-press publishing services, and all oper-
ating and administrative expenses. The DonTech segment
includes revenue participation income and our 50% interest in
the net profits of DonTech.

Donnelley

As the publisher of yellow pages directories, directory revenue
is recognized under the deferral and amortization method based
on the annual billing value of the advertisements sold in a direc-
tory (“publication sales”), subject to a provision for sales claims
and allowances. Revenue from the sale of such advertising is
deferred when a directory is published and recognized ratably
over the life of a directory, which is typically 12 months. Certain
costs directly related to selling and production of directories are
also deferred when incurred and recognized ratably over the life
of a directory. These costs include sales commissions, and print,
paper and initial distribution costs. We also earn revenue from
pre-press publishing and billing services provided to SBC for
the yellow pages directories for which DonTech sells advertising
and from SBC for sales-related computer application services
provided to DonTech. The fegs received for these services

are included in our Donnelley segment, as they relate more to
our pre-press publishing services than DonTech sales activities.

DonTech
DonTech is a 50/50 perpetual partnership with an operating unit
of SBC. DonTech acts as the exclusive sales agent for yellow
pages directories published by SBC in lllinois and northwest
Indiana and earns a commission from SBC at the time a sales
contract is signed. We account for our investment in DonTech
under the equity method and record our income from DonTech
as partnership income. Our reported income from DonTech
is comprised of our 50% interest in the net profits of DonTech
and revenue participation income received directly from an
affiliate of SBC. Revenue participation income is based on a
percentage of DonTech advertising sales and comprises
approximately 80% to 85% of the total annual income related to
DonTech. Total income from DonTech accounted for 73%,
90% and 115% of total operating income before depreciation
and amortization for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively. Certain general and administrative
expenses incurred to support this business are not allocated
to the DonTech segment, but we believe such expenses are
not material to our segment reporting.

Prospectively, because of the acquisition, DonTech income
is expected to represent approximately 30% to 35% of our total
operating income. As income from DonTech accounts for a
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significant portion of our operating income, a material decline in
the advertising sales of DonTech would likely have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condi-
tion. We also provide certain pre-press publishing services for
those SBC directories for which DonTech sells advertising, the
income from which is included in cur Donnelley segment as
described above. The DonTech partnership is considered a sep-
arate operating segment because, among other things, the part-
nership has its own Board of Directors and the employees of
DonTech, including its officers and managers, are not our
employees. The SPA transaction did not affect our partnership
with SBC, and DonTech continues to act as a sales agent for
SBC. Further, we have consistently accounted for our partner-
ship interest in DonTech under the equity method.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with gen-
erally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) requires man-
agement to estimate the effect of various matters that are inher-
ently uncertain as of the date of the financial statements. Each
of these estimates varies in regard to the level of judgment
involved and its potential impact on the Company’s reported
financial results. Estimates are deemed critical when a different
estimate could have reasonably been used or when changes in
the estimate are reasonably likely to occur from period to period,
and could materially impact the Company’s financial condition,
changes in financial condition or results of operations. The
Company’s significant accounting polices are discussed in Note
2 of the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of
this annual report. The critical estimates inherent in these
accounting polices are discussed below.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Sales Claims. We record
our revenue net of an allowance for sales claims. In addition,

we record a provision for bad debts. The provision for bad debts
and allowance for sales claims is estimated for each directory
based on historical experience, We also evaluate the current
condition of our customer balances, bankruptey filings, historical
charge-off patterns, recovery rates and other data when deter-
mining our allowance for doubtful accounts reserve. We review
these estimates periodically to assess whether additional adjust-
ment is needed based on economic events or other circum-
stances, including actual experience at the end of the billing
and collection cycle with respect to each directory. We believe
that the allowance for doubtful accounts and sales claims is
adequate to cover anticipated losses under current conditions;
however, significant deterioration in any of the factors noted
above or in the overall economy could materially change

these expectations. The provisions for sales claims and doubtful
accounts are estimated based on a percentage of revenue.
Accordingly, an additional 1% change in either of these
allowance percentages would impact net income by approxi-
mately $3 million annually.

Pension Benefits. Our pension plan obligations and related
assets of our defined benefit retirement plans are presented in
Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements. Plan assets
consist primarily of marketable equity and debt instruments and
are valued using market quotations. Plan obligations and annual

pension expense are determined by independent actuaries and
through the use of a number of assumptions. Key assumptions
in measuring the plan obligations include the discount rate,

the rate of future salary increases and the long-term expected
return on plan assets. In determining the discount rate, we look
at yields on high-quality, fixed-income investments with maturi-
ties corresponding to the anticipated timing of the benefit pay-
ments. Salary increase assumptions are based upon historical
experience and anticipated future management actions. Asset
returns are based upon the anticipated average rate of earnings
expected on invested funds of the plan over the long-run.

At December 31, 2003, the weighted-average actuarial assump-
tions were: discount rate of 6.0%; long-term rate of return on
plan assets of 8.25%; and assumed salary increases of 3.66%.
Net periodic pension costs recognized in 2003 were $1.1 mil-
lion. A 1% change in the discount rate would affect net income
by approximately $0.5 million; a 1% change in the long-term
rate of return on plan assets would affect net income by
approximately $0.4 million; and a 1% change in assumed salary
increases would affect net income by approximately $0.3 mitlion.

Intangible Assets and Goodwill Valuation and Amortization.
Cur intangible assets consist of directory service agreements
between the Company and Sprint, established customer rela-
tionships, trade names, all resulting from the SPA acquisition.
The intangible assets are being amortized over the period the
assets are expected to contribute to the cash flow of the
Company, which reflect the expected pattern of bensfit. Our
recorded goodwill resulted from the SPA acquisition and is not
subjected to amortization.

The intangible assets are subject to an impairment test in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
lived Assets ("SFAS 144"), and the goodwill is subject to an
impairment test in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets (“SFAS 142°). The Company reviews the carrying value
of its intangible assets for impairment at least annually or sconer
whenever events or circumstances indicate that their carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The impairment test for
the intangible assets is performed by comparing the carrying
amount of the intangible assets to the sum of the undiscounted
expected future cash flows. In accordance with SFAS 144,
impairment exists if the sum of the future undiscounted cash
flows is less than the carrying amount of the intangible asset, or
to its related group of assets. Impairment would result in a write-
down of the intangible asset to its estimated fair value based on
the discounted future cash flows. Goodwill is tested for impair-
ment by comparing the carrying amount of the reporting unit to
which it was assigned to the estimated fair value of the reporting
unit. In accordance with SFAS 142, impairment exists if the
carrying amount of the reporting unit is less than its estimated
fair value. Impairment would result in a write-down equal to
the difference between the carrying amount and the estimated
fair value of the reporting unit.

We used certain estimates and assumptions in cur impair-
ment evaluation, including, but not limited to, projected future
cash flows, revenue growth, customer attrition levels, and esti-




mated write-offs. As of December 31, 2003, management
believes that there was no impairment to the intangible assets

or goodwill. However, significant deterioration in our business,
the assumptions underlying the impairment evaluations, or in

the overall economy, could result in impairment charges in future
reporting periods. Had the aggregate net book value of the
intangible assats as of December 31, 2003 been impaired by
1%, net incomre would have been impacted by approximately
$11.0 million.

Additionally, management must assess whether the remain-
ing useful livess of the intangible assets represent the period
that the intancible assets are expected to contribute to the cash
flow of the Company. In our assessment process, we used
certain estimates and assumptions, including projected future
cash flows, customer attrition levels and industry and economic
conditions. In accordance with SFAS 142, we evaluate the
remaining useful lives annually to determine whether events or
circumstances warrant a revision to the remaining period of
amortization. If the estimated remaining useful lives change, the
remaining car-ying amount of the intangible asset would be
amortized prospectively over that revised remaining useful life.
For the year ended December 31, 2003, amortization of intangi-
ble assets was approximately $50 million. Should the remaining
useful lives of the intangible assets be shortened by 10%,
net income would be impacted by approximately $3.0 million.

Each of ihese critical accounting estimates pertains only
to the Donnelley segment, as further described in Note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements included in ltem 8 of this
annual report. We do not believe we make any critical account-
ing estimates with respect to our DonTech segment.
Management believes the current assumptions and other con-
siderations used to estimate these amounts in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements are appropriate.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
("FASB") issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity (“SFAS 150"). This
statement established standards for the classification and meas-
urement of certain financial instruments with characteristics

of both liabilities and equity. The statement was effective July 1,
2008. Our Preferred Stock represents a financial instrument with
characteristics of both liabilities and equity. We have applied
the provisions of SFAS 150 and determined that the classifica-
tion and measurement of our Preferred Stock is appropriate.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46,
Censolidation of Variable Interest Entities (“FIN 48"). In general,
a variable interest entity is a corporation, partnership, trust or
any other legal structure used for business purposes that either
(a) does not have equity investors with voting rights or (b) has
equity investors that do not provide sufficient financial resources
for the entity to support its activities. FIN 46 requires certain vari-
able interest entities to be consolidated by the primary benefici-
ary of the entity if the investors do not have the characteristics
of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity
at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional
subordinated financial support from other parties. The consoli-

dation requirements of FIN 46 apply immediately to variable
interest entities created after January 31, 2003. We adopted the
provisions of FIN 46 effective February 1, 2003 and such adop-
tion did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial
statements because we currently have no variable interest enti-
ties. In December 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46R with respect
to variable interest entities created before January 31, 2003,
which among other things, revised the implementation date

to the first fiscal year or interim period ending after March 15,
2004, with the exception of Special Purpose Entities (“SPE"). The
consolidation requirements apply to all SPEs in the first fiscal
year or interim period ending after December 15, 2003. We
adopted the provisions of FIN 46R effective December 2003 and
such adoption did not have a material impact on our consolidat-
ed financial statements because we currently have no SPEs.

In April 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133
on Derivative Instrurnents and Hedging Actlivities (“"SFAS 149”).
SFAS 149 amends and clarifies accounting for derivative instru-
ments, including certain derivative instruments embedded
in other contracts, and for hedging activities under SFAS 133.
SFAS 149 is effective for contracts and hedging relationships
entered into or modified after June 30, 2003. We adopted the
provisions of SFAS 149 effective June 30, 2003 and such did not
have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation — Transition and Disclosure ("SFAS 148"). SFAS
148 amends the transition provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No.123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation (“SFAS 123"), for entities that voluntarily change
to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation. We do not currently intend to change our
accounting to the fair value method. SFAS 148 also amends
the disclosure provisions of SFAS 123 to require prominent dis-
closure about the effects on reported net income of an entity’s
accounting policy decisions with respect to stock-based
employee compensation and amends APB Opinion No. 28,
Interim Financial Reporting ("APB 28") to require disclosures
about such effects in interim financial information. We adopted
the disclosure provisions of SFAS 148 in the first quarter of 2003.

On December 8, 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug,
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the "Act”) was
signed into law. The Act introduces prescription drug care bene-
fits under Medicare and aiso allows for certain sponsors of
postretirement benefit plans with a drug benefit to receive a non-
taxable federal subsidy if certain criteria are met. In response to
the passage of this legislation, on January 12, 2004, the FASB
issued FASB Staff Position ("FSP”) No. FAS 1068-1, Accounting
and Disclosure Requirerments Related to the Medicare
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003.
The FSP permits employers that sponsor postretirement benefit
plans that provide prescription drug benefits to retirees to make
a one-time election to defer accounting for any effects of the
Act. In accordance with the FSP, Donnelley has elected to defer
accounting for any effects of the Act and accordingly, any meas-
ures of the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation or net
periodic postretirement benefit cost in the financial statements
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and as disclosed in Note 11 - Benefits Plans do not reflect the
effects of the Act on Donnelley's plan. Authoritative guidance on
the accounting for the federal subsidy is currently being consid-
ered by the FASB that, when issued, could require us to change
previously reported information.

In December 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards ("SFAS”) No. 132 (revised 2003),
Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other
Postretirement Benefits. SFAS No. 132 (revised 2003) amends
the disclosure requirements of SFAS 132 to require more com-
plete information about pension and postretirement benefits. It
does not change the measurement or recognition of those plans
required by SFAS No. 87, Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,
SFAS No. 88, Employers’ Accounting for Settlements and
Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for
Termination Benefits, and SFAS No. 106, Employers’ Accounting
for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions. We adopted
the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 132 (revised 2003) as of
December 31, 2003.

Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2003 compared to the
Year Ended December 31, 2002

Factors Affecting Comparability

SPA Acquisition

Because of the SPA acquisition, the related financing and asso-
ciated accounting, our 2003 results prepared in accordance with
GAAP are not comparable to our 2002 GAAP results previously
reported. Also, because purchase accounting rules precluded
us from recognizing revenue and certain expenses for those
directories that published prior to the acquisition, including all
January 2003 published directories, revenue and certain
expenses reported in 2003 are not representative of revenue
and certain expenses that would have been reported in 2003
absent these purchase accounting adjustments. Accordingly, in
addition to a discussion of the repcrted 2003 GAAP results com-
pared to the reported 2002 GAAP results, we are also providing
a comparison of 2003 adjusted results, which, among other
things, exclude the effect of purchase accounting on deferred
revenug and certain expenses, to 2002 adjusted pro forma
results, which assumes the acquisition occurred on January 1,
2002. For a detalled discussion of 2003 adjusted revenue and
certain expenses versus 2002 adjusted pro forma revenue and
certain expenses, which are more comparable to each other, as
well as a detailed discussion of advertising sales, which drive
revenue, see ‘- Adjusted and Pro Forma Amounts and Other
Non-GAAP Measures” below.

Relocation and Integration Charges

Qur 2003 expenses include severance and move-related
charges of $7.3 million relating to the relocation of our corporate
offices to Cary, North Carolina and $7.6 million for the
consolidation of our post-acquisition publishing and technology
operations, sales offices and administrative staff.

Restructuring and Special Charge

Results for 2002 include a net benefit of $6.4 million from the
reversal of remaining restructuring reserves recorded in 2001,

as these restructuring actions were completed during 2002,
Additionally, results for 2002 include a $2.0 million impairment
charge for the write-off of our remaining investment in
ChinaBig.com Limited ("ChinaBig"). See “Results of Operations —
Year Ended December 31, 2002 as compared to the Year

Ended December 31, 2001” below for a further description of
these amounts.

Net Revenue

The components of our net revenue in 2003 and 2002 were
as follows:

(amounts in millions}) 2003 2002 $ Change
Directory advertising

revenue $ 233.1 $ - $ 233.1
Advertising sales

commission revenue - 431 (43.1)
Sales allowances (2.3) (0.4) (1.9)
Net directory revenue 230.8 427 188.1
Pre-press publishing fees 20.6 311 (10.5)
Other revenues 5.0 1.6 3.4

Total $ 256.4 $ 754 $181.0

Revenue is derived entirely from our Donnelley segment since
DonTech is accounted for under the equity method. Subseguent
to the acquisition of SPA, revenue from directory advertising
sales is recognized under the deferral and amortization method,
whereby revenue from advertising sales is initially deferred when
the directory is published and recognized ratably over the direc-
tory's life, which is typically 12 months. Pre-press publishing fees
and other revenues are recognized when earned. Total net rev-
enue in 2003 was $256.4 million as compared to $75.4 million in
2002. The increase in total net revenue in 2003 is a result of the
SPA acquisition. From the date of the acquisition on January 3,
2003, our revenue was earned primarily from the sale of adver-
tising in yellow pages directories we published in 2003, totaling
$230.8 million, net of sales allowances. As a result of the acqui-
sition, we became the publisher of 260 Sprint-branded directo-
ries. As the publisher, we earn the entire value of the sales
contract with the advertiser, subject to an allowance for sales
claims. Prior to the acquisition, we were a sales agent and
earned only a commission on the advertising sales contract that
was recognized when the advertiser signed the contract and

we earned this revenue on 44 directories as opposed to the 260
directories we now publish. During 2002, our net revenue repre-
sented only the commissions we earned as a sales agent on
advertising sales made on behalf of SPA totaling $42.7 million,
net of allowances for sales claims.

Revenue from pre-press publishing services was $20.6 mil-
lion in 2003 as compared to $31.1 million in 2002. The decrease
of $10.5 million is primarily due to the consolidation of SPAs
operating results with ours beginning in 2003 and the expiration
of a contract with a third party directary publisher that ceased



outsourcing its pre-press publishing services to us in the first
guarter of 2003. During 2002, we earned $7.0 million in fees for
pre-press services provided to SPA and earned $7.3 million
frorn that third party pre-press publishing contract that expired.
We continued to provide transition services to the third party
publisher through March 2003 and recognized $3.0 million of
revenue in 2003. Other revenue in 2003 and 2002 included fees
for sales-related computer application services rendered to
DonTech on bzhalf of SBC. As a result of the SPA acquisition,
in 2003, we also began recording revenue for late fees paid on
outstanding customer balances, sales of directories and fees
frorn telephone companies for publishing of information pages.
These activities account for the difference in other revenue
between 2003 and 2002.

Expenses

The components of our total expenses for 2003 and 2002
were as follows:

(amounts in mill ons) 2003 2002 $ Change
Operating exoenses $ 164.2 $ 48.0 $ 116.2
G&A expenses 48.0 12.0 36.0
D&A expense: 65.8 8.3 595

Total $ 278.0 $ 66.3 $ 2117

All reported expenses are derived entirely from our Donnelley
segment since: DonTech is accounted for under the equity
method. Certain costs directly related to the selling and produc-
tion of directories are initially deferred and recognized ratably
over the life of the directory.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses in 2003 were $164.2 million as com-
pared to $48.0 million in 2002. The increase in operating
expenses is primarily a result of the operating expenses of the
SPA business, that we acquired, The 2003 operating expenses
include our results as a publisher of 260 directories, whereas
2002 expenses include those expenses incurred in our prior role
as a sales agent for 44 directories. The expenses we incur as a
publisher of d rectories are significantly greater than the expens-
es that we incurred as a sales agent. However, due to the elimi-
nation of SPAs deferred revenue and deferred costs for 2002
and January 2003 directories as required by purchase account-
ing, our réponed éxpenses in 2003 do not include certain
expenses associated with those directories. Therefore, our oper-
ating expenses prospectively will be higher than they were in
2008. In addit on, our direct sales costs in 2003 were $45.9 mil-
lion higher than in 2002 due to an increase in the number of
sales offices, size of our local sales force and our national sales
operations. As a publisher, we also now incur costs related to
the printing and distribution of directories, purchasing of paper,
and marketing, advertising and customer service that we did not
incur when we: were a sales agent in 2002, 2003 expenses for
these functions were $36.3 million higher than in 2002. Publish-
ing and information technology expenses in 2003 were $22.4

million higher than in 2002 due to the production of the balance
of additional SPA directories related to the acquisition and the
larger workforce. In addition, 2003 expenses include $7.6 mitlion
of costs related to the consolidation of our publishing and
technology operations, sales offices and administrative staff.
Bad debt expense in 2003 of was lower than in 2002 principally
due to better than expected collections as a result of significant
process improvements in billings and collections, partially offset
by bad debt expense recognized as a publisher.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative (“G&A”) expenses in 2003 were
$48.0 million as compared to $12.0 million in 2002. The increase
in general and administrative expenses is primarily attributable
to incremental costs related to the former SPA business of $13.6
million, costs relating to the relocation of our corporate offices to
Cary, North Carolina of $7.3 million and the higher corporate
costs for the larger organization of $8.5 million due to higher
insurance premiums, compensation and governance. General
and administrative expenses in 2002 reflect a net benefit of $6.4
million from the reversal of remaining restructuring reserves ini-
tially recorded in 2001. See “Results of Operations - Year Ended
December 31, 2002 as compared to the Year Ended December
31, 2001" below for a further description of these prior year
amounts.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization (“D&A"), in 2003 was $65.8 mil-
lion as compared to $6.3 million in 2002. The increase in 2003 is
primarily a result of the amortization, totaling $50.0 million, of the
intangible assets acquired in the SPA acquisition. In 2002,
Donnelley did not have significant intangible assets and there-
fore did not incur significant amortization expense. Depreciation
of fixed assets and amortization of computer software was $15.8
million in 2003 and $6.3 million in 2002. This increase is due to
the depreciation associated with the depreciable assets
acquired in the SPA acquisition.

Partnership Income

Partnership income in 2003 includes our 50% share of the net
income of DonTech (accounted for under the equity method)
and revenue participation income from SBC. As a sales agent
for SBC, DonTech earns commission revenue based on the
annual value of sales contracts executed during the period
(“calendar sales”). We also earn revenue participation income
based on the amount of calendar sales during the pericd.
Partnership income in 2002 also included a pricrity distribution
on our membership interest in CenDon, LLC (*CenDon"). As a

* result of the SPA acquisition, we acquired the remaining mem-

bership interests in CenDon and accordingly, become the sole
owner of CenDon. We no longer receive priority distribution
income; rather results from CenDon have been included in our
Consolidated Statements of Operations. Partnership income was
$114.1 miilion in 2003 as compéred to $136.9 mitlion in 2002, of
which $117.1 million was from DonTech and $19.8 million was
priority distribution income from CenDon, which at the time was
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a part of our DAS segment. The decrease in partnership income
from DonTech was due to a slow economic recovery, stagnant
job growth and competitive local media environment in the
Chicagoland markets.

Operating Income

Operating income by segment for the years ended December
31, 2003 and 2002 was follows:

(amounts in millions) 2003 2002
Donnelley $ (21.6) $ 289
DonTech 14.1 1171

Total $ 925 $ 146.0

Reported operating income in 2003 of $92.5 million decreased
$53.5 million as compared to operating income of $146.0 million
in 2002. The decline in operating income was due largely to
higher D&A expense due to amortization of intangible assets
resulting from the SPA acquisition. Operating income also declined
due to the decline in income from DonTech of $3 million.

Interest Expense, Net

Net interest expense in 2003 was $180.0 million compared to
$33.5 million in 2002. Interest expense in 2003 was significantly
higher as a result of the substantial debt incurred in connection
with the SPA acquisition. See “-Liquidity and Capital Resources”
for a further description of our debt obligations and the provi-
sions of the related debt instruments. Interest expense for 2003
includes $15.0 million of non-cash amortization of deferred
financing costs, consisting of $2.4 million in deferred costs that
were expensed in connection with pre-acquisition debt that was
extinguished in 2003 and $12.6 million of amortized deferred
costs related to our current outstanding debt, of which $3.1 mil-
lion related to accelerated principal payments in 2003.

Net interest expense in 2002 of $33.5 million included
$12.7 million of interest incurred on $1,825 million in debt raised
in contemplation of the SPA acquisition. Excluding this amount,
interest expense was $20.8 million reflective of our outstanding
pre-acquisition debt during 2002.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Other income in 2003 represents a $1.5 million gain on hedging
activities. At December 31, 2002, our $75 million notional value
interest rate swap did not qualify for hedge accounting treat-
ment due to the then-pending repayment of existing variable
rate debt in connection with the SPA acquisition. In December
2002, a charge of $1.5 million was recorded to reclassify to

earnings the cumulative change in the fair value of the swap that .

was previously recognized in accumulated other comprehensive
loss on the balance sheet. Due 1o the loss of hedge accounting
treatment, a gain of $1.5 million was recognized in earnings in
2003 at the time the swap matured. Other expense in 2002 con-
sists of the $1.5 million charge related to the interest rate swap
agreement, net of a $1.0 million reversal of remaining reserves

related to the disposition of businesses in 2000. See ltem 7A,
“Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures About Market Risk” for
additional information about our interest rate swap agreements.

(Benefit) Provision for Income Taxes

The 2003 tax benefit is based on an effective tax rate of 41.8%
and results from the tax benefit generated in 2003 attributable to
a net operating loss of approximately $176 miliion related to tax
deductions in connection with the acquisition of the SPA busi-
ness. The 2003 effective tax rate reflects an increase in the state
and local tax rate as a result of the acquisition of SPA, combined
with the favorable settlement in 2003 of certain prior year state
and local tax audits.

The 2002 tax provision is based on an effective tax rate of
40.0%, which was adversely impacted by the ChinaBig invest-
ment impairment charge that was not deductible against income
for tax purposes. This charge represents a capital loss, which
can only be offset against capital gains. This charge also gave
rise to a deferred tax asset that can only be realized by offset-
ting future capital gains. Given our current business portfolio
and projections of future results, we believe that the probability
of generating future capital gains to realize this asset is remote.
Accordingly, a valuation allowance for the deferred tax asset
relating to the ChinaBig investment was established.

Net (Loss) Income, (Loss) Income Available to
Common Shareholders and (Loss) Earnings Per Share

The net loss in 2003 was $50.0 million as compared to net
income of $67.2 million in 2002. Our operating results for 2003
reflect lower operating income as described previously

and higher interest expense and D&A as a result of the SPA
acquisition.

The dividend on the Preferred Stock increases the net loss
or reduces net income, resulting in (loss) income available to
common shareholders from which earnings per share amounts
are calculated. The amount of the Preferred Stock dividend
includes the stated 8% dividend, plus a deemed dividend for a
beneficial conversion feature (“BCF"). The BCF is a function of
the conversion price of the Preferred Stock ($24.05), the fair
value of the warrants issued with the Preferred Stock (weighted
average of $11.08 per warrant based on the Black-Scholes
model and exercise prices of $26.28 for the warrants issued in
November 2002 and $28.62 for the warrants issued in January
2003), and the fair market value of the common stock on
January 3, 2003, the date the Preferred Stock was issued
($29.92). The full amount of the BCF is treated as a deemed div-
idend because the Preferred Stock was convertible into common
stock immediately after issuance in November 2002 and January
2003. The Preferred Stock dividend in 2003 and 2002 of $58.4
million and $24.7 million, respectively, consisted of the stated
8% dividend of $16.5 million and $0.5 million, respectively, and
a BCF of $41.9 million and $24.2 million, respectively. The resulit-
ing (loss) income available to common shareholders was
($108.3) million and $42.5 miilion in 2003 and 2002, respectively.




Basic earnings per common share (EPS) are generally calculated by dividing income available to common shareholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding. However, because our Preferred Stock contains certain participation
rights, EITF Topic D-95, Effect of Participating Securities on the Computation of Basic Earnings Per Share (“Topic D-95"), requires that
the dilutive effect of those securities be included in the weighted average number of shares outstanding. Furthermore, Topic D-95
requires that the dilutive effect to be included in basic EPS may be calculated using either the if-converted method
or the two-class method. However, the dilutive effect of the Preferred Stock cannot be less than that which would result from the
application of the two-class method. We have elected to use the if-converted method in calculating basic EPS. However, during
2003, we have reported EPS calculated using the two-class method because it has been less than EPS calculated using
the if-converted method. Diluted EPS equals income available to common shareholders divided by the weighted average common
shares outstanding plus common share equivalents. Common share equivalents include stock options and warrants, the
dilutive effect of which is calculated using the treasury stock method, and Preferred Stock, the potential dilutive effect of which
is calculated using the if-converted method. The calculation of basic and diluted EPS for 2003 and 2002 is presented below:

Year ended Year ended
(in thousands, except per share data) December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Basic EPS - If-Converted Method
(Loss) income available to common shareholders $ (108,350) $ 42,475
Preferred Stock dividend 58,397 24,702
Net (loss) income $ (49,953) $ 67,177
Weighted ave-age common shares outstanding 30,683 29,643
Weighted average common shares assuming conversion
of Preferred Stock 8,761 281’
Weighted average common equivalent shares
assuming conversion of Preferred Stock 39,444 29,924
Basic (loss) earnings per share — if-converted method $ (1.27) $ 2.24
Basic EPS - Two-Class Method
(Loss) Income available to common shareholders $ (108,350} $ 42475
Amount allocable to common shares 2 78% 99%
Rights to undistributed (loss) earnings $ (84,513) $ 42,050
Weighted average common shares outstanding 30,683 29,643
Basic (loss) earnings per share — two-class method * $ {3.53) $ 1.42
Diluted EPS
(Loss) income available to common shareholders $ (108,350) $ 42,475
Weighted average common shares outstanding 30,683 29,643
Diluted effect of stock options * - 655
Dilutive effect of Preferred Stock assuming conversion ® - -
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 30,683 30,298
Diluted (loss) earnings per share $ (3.53) $ 1.40

' At December 31, 2002, the Preferred Stock was convertible into 2,933,888 shares of common stock. However, since $70 million of the Preferred
Stock was issued in November 2002, the number of commoen share equivalents included in the EPS calculation has been weighted for the actual time
the Preferred Stock was outstanding during the year.

230,683/ (30,685 + 8,761) for the year ended December 31, 2003 and 28,643 / (29,643 + 281) for the year ended December 31, 2002.

% Basic EPS calculated under the two-class method was a loss of $2.75 for the year ended December 31, 2003. However, where there is a net loss
in a pericd, the application of the two-class method is anti-dilutive. Accordingly, reported basic EPS are calculated as loss available to common
shareholders divided by the weighted average basic shares cutstanding.

* The effect of stock options in 2003 and the assumed conversion of the Preferred Stock in 2003 and 2002 were anti-dilutive and therefore are not
included in the calculation of diluted EPS.
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Part II, Item 7, continued

Adjusted and Pro Forma Amounts and Other Non-GAAP Measures

As a result of the SPA acquisition, our 2003 results prepared in accordance with GAAP are not comparable to our 2002 reported
GAAP results. Under our deferral and amortization revenue recognition method, certain directories published in 2002 would have
been recognized as revenue in 2003. However, purchase accounting considerations precluded us from recognizing directory rev-
enue and certain expenses associated with directories that published prior to the acquisition, including all January 2003 published
directories. Accordingly, our reported 2003 GAAP results are not indicative of our underlying operations and financial performance.
Accordingly, management is presenting adjusted results for 2003 that, among other things, eliminate the purchase accounting impact
on revenue and certain expenses and adjusted pro forma information for 2002 that assumes the acquisition and related financing
occurred on January 1, 2002. Management believes that the presentation of this adjusted and adjusted pro forma information will
help readers better and more easily compare current period underlying operating results against what the combined company per-
formance would likely have been in the comparable prior period. All of the following adjusted and pro forma amounts are non-GAAP
measures, which are reconciled to the most comparable GAAP measures below.

Year Ended December 31, 2003 ' Represents revenue for directories that published prior to the acquisition,
GAAP including all January 2003 published directories, that would have been
(amounts in millions) Reported  Adjustments Adjusted recognized during the period had it not been for purchase accounting

adjustments required under GAAP.

Net revenue $ 256.4 $315.9° $572.3
Expenses, other
than depreciation

2 Represents expenses for directories that published prior to the acquisition,
including all January 2003 published directories, that would have been rec-
ognized during the period had it not been for purchase accounting adjust-

and amortization 212.2 63.3° 2755 ments required under GAAP, and the sffect of differences in the application
Depreciation and of accounting policies between legacy SPA and Donnelley.
amortization 65.8 - - 658 8 Represents revenue recognized by SPA in 2002 ($545.7 million) less
Partnership income 1141 - 114.1 our commission revenue and pre-press publishing revenue from SPA includ-
Operating income $ 925 $252.6 $ 345.1 ed in our reported GAAP, amounts ($49.8 million), which would have
been eliminated as intercompany revenues had the acquisition occurred
on January 1, 2002.
Year Ended December 31, 2002 * Represents expenses recognized by SPA in 2002 ($253.3 million) less com-
GAAP Adjusted mission and pre-press publishing expenses for services provided by us
(amounts in millions) Reported  Adjustments Pro Forma ($44.7 million), which would have been eliminated as intercompany expens-
es had the acquisition occurred on January 1, 2002, plus the additional
Net revenue $ 754 $ 486.9° $571.3 expense ($8.3 million) related to a required purchase accounting adjust-
Expenses, other ment recorded to increase acquired deferred directory costs to fair vatue.
than depreciation The adjusted pro forma amounts also exclude a $8.4 million restructuring
and amortization 60.0 221.3¢ 281.3 reserve reversal and an investment impairment charge of $2.0 million.
Depreciation and ® Represents depreciation and amortization expense recognized by SPA in
amortization 6.3 58.5°% 64.8 2002 ($8.5 million) plus amortization expense for intangible assets acquired
Partnership income 136.9 (19.8)° 117.1 in the acquisition assuming it occurred on January 1, 2002 ($50.0 million).
Operating income $ 146.0 $ 196.3 $ 342.3 ® Represents income from CenDon recognized by Donneliey and included

in reported GAAP amounts, which would have been eliminated as intercom-
pany income had the acquisition occurred on January 1, 2002.

2003 Adjusted Revenue and Expenses Compared to 2002 Adjusted Pro Forma Revenue and Expenses
The components of 2003 adjusted revenue and 2002 adjusted pro forma revenue are as follows:

{amounts in millions) 2003 2002 $ Change % Change
Gross directory advertising revenue. . . $ 5527 $ 547.8 $ 51 0:9%
Sales claims and.allowances - (6.0) - B:8)-- - 0.9 - - 130
Net directory advertising revenue 546.7 540.7 6.0 1.1
Pre-press publishing fees 20.6 241 (3.5) (14.5)
Other revenue 5.0 6.5 (1.5) (23.1)
Net revenue $ 5723 $ 5713 $ 10 0.2%

Total adjusted net revenue in 2003 was $572.3 million, an increase of $1.0 million or 0.2% from adjusted pro forma net revenue of
$571.3 million in 2002. Under the deferral and amortization method of revenue recognition, revenue from directory advertising saltes is
initially deferred when a directory is published and recognized ratably over the life of the directory, which is typically 12 months. The
increase in adjusted gross directory advertising revenue is a resuit of higher advertiser renewal rates and solid performance in two of
our major markets, Nevada and southwest Florida, offset by weaker performance in military markets due to the Iraqi conflict and gen-
erally weak regional economic conditions during much of the year. In addition, due to the deferral and amortization method, sales



growth in published directories are amortized to revenue over
the life of the cirectory, which delays recognition of publication
sales as recorded revenue. The reduction in sales claims and
allowances is a result of improved processes between the sales
organization and pre-press services. The decrease in pre-press
publishing fees of $3.5 million is a result of the expiration of a
third party pre-press publishing contract for whom we ceased
providing services in the first guarter 2003.

Adjusted operating and G&A expenses in 2003 were
$275.5 million, down $5.8 million or 2.1% from pre forma operat-
ing and G&A expenses of $281.3 million in 2002. Similar to the
deferral and arnortization method of revenue recognition, certain
costs directly related to the selling and production of our directo-
ries are initially deferred when incurred and recognized ratably
over the life a directory. The decrease in adjusted expenses in
2003 is primarily due to lower bad debt expense of $13.7 million
resulting from better than expected collections due to certain
process improvements; synergy savings from the combination of
the SPA operalions with Donnelley's in 2003 of $10.2 million; and
lower print, paper and distribution costs of $9.3 million due to
lower paper prices, printing expenses and vendor costs. These
decreases were offset by $8.5 million in increased corporate
costs, due to higher insurance premiums, compensation and
governance costs related to the larger organization; $7.6 million
of costs to achieve synergies from the consolidation of our pub-
lishing and technology operations, sales offices and administra-
tive functions; $7.3 million related to the headguarters relocation;
and $4.3 million due to increased advertising in order to bring
advertising levals for the Sprint-branded directories back to his-
torical levels biafore 2002,

Adjusted partnership income in 2003 was $114.1 million, a
decrease of $5.0 million or 2.6% from adjusted pro forma part-
nership income in 2002 of $117.1 million. The decrease in part-
nership income reflects the decrease in income from DonTech
previously discussed.

Adjusted operating income in 2003 was $345.1 million, an
increase of $2.8 million or 0.8% from adjusted pro forma operat-
ing income in 2002 of $342.3 million.

Donnelley Advertising Sales — Publication Sales
Management raviews and evaluates the value of advertising
sales in directories that published during the period (“publica-
tion sales”) as its primary saies performance measure. Directory
advertising revenue is driven by publication sales. Management
believes that a comparison of publication sales for the same
directories from one period to another gives a better indication
of underlying sales trends, economic conditions and business
confidence than a comparison of directory revenue recognized
using the deferral and amortization method. Because we recog-
nize directory revenue ratably over the life of a directory, the
amount of revenue recognized during a period is not directly
related to the sales trends, economic conditions and business
confidence during that period. Publication sales are comparable
to a “same-stoe” sales measure and are utilized and disclosed
by many direciory publishers, thus facilitating comparison of

sales performance among publishers.

Publication sales in 2003 for the Donnelley segment were
$548.2 million, up $6.5 million or 1.2% from pro forma publica-
tion sales for the Donnelley segment of $541.7 million in 2002.
The increase in publication sales resuited from higher advertiser
renewal rates and solid performance in two of cur major mar-
kets, Nevada and southwest Florida. These results were partially
offset by regional economic weakness, and weaker performance
in several military markets due to troop deployment in connec-
tion with the Iragi conflict. Publication sales are a non-GAAP
measure for which the most comparable GAAP measure related
to the Donnelley segment is net revenue. A reconciliation of pub-
lication sales to net revenue reported in accordance with GAAP
is presented below:

For the Year Ended
December 31,

{amounts in millions) 2003 2002

Publication sales — Donnelley segment $ 548.2 $ 541.7

Less publication sales for January
2003 directories not recognized
as revenue due to purchase
accounting

Less current period publication sales
deferred and not recognized as

revenue in current period

(102.4)

(215.0)

Less publication sales for those SPA

directories not sold by Donnelley (357.0)

Pubtication sales reported by Donnelley

in 2002 184.7
Less sales contracts executed in

prior periods and reported as

calendar sales in prior periods (70.0)
Plus contracts executed during the

period to be reported as

publication sales in future periods 72.1

Calendar sales in 2002 $ 186.8
Net directory advertising revenue

on above advertising sales 230.8
Plus net commission revenue on

2002 calendar sales 42.7
Plus pre-press publishing revenue 20.6 311
Plus other revenue 5.0 1.6

Net Revenue-GAAP $ 256.4 $ 754

DonTech Advertising Sales — Calendar and Publication Sales

Calendar Sales

As a sales agent for SBC, DonTech recognizes commission
revenue based on the annual value of a sales contract (calendar
sales) in the period the contract is executed. Management
reviews calendar sales for DonTech because this is a primary
driver of our income from DonTech. DonTech manages the sale
of advertising to customers on a directory-by-directory basis or
project basis (a project consists of two or more directeries in a
geographic area) and organizes the sales into directories as a
sales campaign. Accordingly, changes in the beginning and
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Part 1, item 7, continued

ending dates of a sales campaign and the actual sales recorded
at any point during the campaign can vary from one period to
the next. These variations, or timing factors, can cause calendar
sales, and thus partnership income, to be materially different
from the prior comparative period.

Income from DonTech consisted of the following:

Years Ended December 31,

For the Year Ended
December 31,

(amounts in millions} 2003 2002

50% share of DonTech net profits $ 174 $ 185
Revenue participation income 96.7 98.6

{amounts in millions}) 2003 2002
DonTech publication sales $ 4024 $ 4182
Less the value of contracts

executed and reported as

calendar sales in prior periods (142.2) (157.5)

Plus the value of contracts
executed during the period to
be reported as publication
sales in future periods 134.7 142.2

DonTech calendar sales $ 3949 $ 402.9

Total DonTech income $ 114.1 $ 1171

DonTech partnership income in 2003 of $114.1 million
decreased $3.0 million or 2.6% from $117.1 million in 2002,
mainly due to lower calendar sales. DonTech calendar sales in
2003 were $394.9 million, 2.0% lower than calendar sales in
2002 of $402.9 million, as a result of a continued weak economy
in the Midwest during 2003 and competition in the local media
market. Qur share of DonTech’s net income decreased $1.1 mil-
lion from $18.5 miliion to $17.4 million. In addition, revenue par-
ticipation income received from SBC decreased $1.9 million or
2.0% to $96.7 million in 2003 from $98.6 million in 2002. Each of
these decreases is a direct result of the reduction in DonTech’s
calendar sales from which our share of DonTech’s net income
and revenue participation is derived.

Publication Sales

Management also utilizes publication sales to evaluate the sales
performance of DonTech because management believes that
this measure provides a better indication of underlying sales
trends, economic conditions and business confidence in the
DonTech markets than a comparison of partnership income from
DonTech. Publication sales at DonTech represent the annual
billing value of the SBC directories published during the period
for which DonTech sells advertising. Publication sales in 2003
were $402.4 million, down $15.8 million or 3.8% from 2002
publication sales of $418.2 million. This decrease is a result of
a continued weak economy in the Midwest, stagnant job growth
and competition in the local media market. Calendar sales and
publication sales are non-GAAP measures for which the most
comparable GAAP measures related to DonTech is partnership
income. A reconciliation of publication sales and calendar sales
to partnership income is provided below.

Commission revenue from
above calendar sales $ 997 $ 1018
Partnership net expenses (65.0) (64.8)

Partnership profit $ 347 $ 370

Donnelley’s 50% share of

partnership profits $ 174 $ 185
Revenue participation income

on above calendar sales 96.7 98.6
Total income from DonTech 1141 117.1
Priority distribution income

from CenDon - 19.8

Partnership income - GAAP $ 141 $ 136.9

Year Ended December 31, 2002 as compared to the
Year Ended December 31, 2001

The Company - Prior to the SPA Acquisition

The discussion below relates to the results of the Company for
the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001. During this peri-
od, we were a leading independent sales agent and pre-press
vendor for yellow pages advertising services in the United
States. Our business was organized into two reportable operat-
ing segments: the DonTech Partnership and Directory
Advertising Services ("DAS"). The DonTech segment was not
affected by the SPA acquisition. For a further description of the
DonTech segment, see “ -~ Segment Reporting” above.

Historical Directory Advertising Services

Within our DAS segment, we sold yellow pages advertising for
affiliated entities of Sprint and performed pre-press publishing
services for yellow pages directories. We were the exclusive
sales agent in the greater Orlando, Florida market (“Central




Florida™) for an operating unit of Sprint and the exclusive sales
agent in Nevada, Florida, Virginia and North Carolina for
CenDon, a joint venture with Centel, a subsidiary of Sprint. Other
Sprint affiliates sold yellow pages advertising in other markets in
these states. We received sales commissions on all advertising
sold for Sprint and CenDon and a priority distribution on our
membership intarest in CenDon. The amount of priority distribu-
tion earned was based on a percentage of CenDon advertising
sales. A material decline in advertising sales in these markets
could have had a material adverse effect on our results of oper-
ations and financial condition.

The DAS segment also included pre-press publishing serv-
ices provided to SBC and Sprint for their respective yellow
pages directories for which we sold advertising under separate-
ly negotiated contracts. The agreement with SBC extends
through 2008. Frior to the SPA acquisition, our agreement with
Sprint was scheduled to expire in 2003. We also provided pre-
press publishing services to an unaffiliated third party under an
agreement that expired at the end of 2002 to whom we provided
transition servicas of $3.0 million in 2003. Revenue from our pre-
press publishing services operation accounted for approximate-
ly 42% and 43% of total consolidated revenue in 2002 and 2001,
respectively. DAS also included all information technology costs.

Factors Affecting Comparability

ChinaBig Invesitment and Impairment Charge

We have a 9% interest in ChinaBig, which publishes yellow
pages directories and offers Internet directory services in the
People’s Republic of China. In November 2001, we received an
independent third party valuation of ChinaBig's current business
plan, capital ne=ds and outlook for profitability and cash flow.
This report was commissioned by ChinaBig. The valuation was
conducted in connection with a proposed equity financing. The
results of the valuation provided a range of possible estimated
fair values for ChinaBig, all of which implied that the fair value of
this investment was substantially lower than the carrying value of
$13.4 miliion. Accordingly, an impairment charge of $11.4 million
was recorded i 2001 to write this investment down to an
amount that we believed was the best estimate of the current fair
value of the investment at that time. After reviewing ChinaBig's
2002 operating results, we determined that sufficient evidence
did ot exist to support the carrying value of this investment and
that the probability of realizing any value from this investment in
the foreseeable future was remote. Accordingly, in 2002 an addi-
tional impairment charge of $2.0 million was recorded to write-off
the remaining book value of the investment.

Restructuring and Special Charge

In 2001, a restructuring and special charge of $18.6 million
was recorded in connection with executive management
employment transition arrangements and the expiration of a
pre-press publishing contract, which was expected to result in
the elimination of approximately 100 positions during 2002.
The charge included:

# $9.9 million associated with executive management transition
arrangements, including severance, accrued pension benefits
and other related costs;

m $3.3 million for other employee severance and related costs;
m $4.4 million for idle teased space in the Morrisville publishing
facility and planned relocation of the corporate headquarters
due to excess capacity; and

= $1.0 million for professional fees and the write-off of assets
no longer considered useable.

As a result of the SPA acguisition, we determined that certain
costs originally anticipated in the restructuring charge would not
be incurred. Specifically, idle leased space in the Morrisville
publishing facility would subsequently be utilized, planned sev-
erance and other related costs would be significantly less and
the corporate headquarters was not expected at that time to be
relocated. Accordingly, income of $6.4 million was recognized in
2002 from the reversal of $6.7 million of the criginal reserve, par-
tially offset by a charge of $0.3 million for additional costs paid
in connection with the executive management transition.

Net Revenue

During 2002 and 2001, revenue was derived entirely from our
DAS segment. As a sales agent for Sprint, we earned commis-
sion revenue based on the annual billing value of advertise-
ments sold for Sprint directories in the period (“Sprint calendar
sales"). Sales commission revenue was recorded net of an esti-
mate for potential claims allowances. We also earned revenue
from providing pre-press publishing services.

The amount of commission revenue recognized was direct-
ly correlated to Sprint calendar sales recorded during each peri-
od. We managed the sale of advertising on a directory-by-direc-
tory basis and organized each directory into a sales campaign.
A typical sales campaign lasts two to five months and ends
approximately two months before a directory is scheduled to be
published. Therefore, changes in the beginning and ending
dates of a sales campaign and the actual sales recorded at any
point during the campaign can vary from one period to the next.
These variations could have caused sales commission revenue
in the period to be materially different from the prior comparative
period. The components of our net revenue for 2002
and 2001 are as follows:

(amounts in millions) 2002 2001 $ Change % Change
Commission revenue 43.1 $ 427 3 04 09 %
Sales allowances (0.4) 1.1 (1.5) n/m
Net commission revenue 427 43.8 (1.1) (2.5)
Pre-press publ shing fees 31.1 32.9 (1.8) (5.5)
Cther revenue 1.6 35 (1.9) (54.2)
Total $ 754 $ 80.2 3 (48) (6.0)%
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Net revenue in 2002 was $75.4 million as compared to $80.2 million in 2001. Net commission revenue decreased $1.1 million in
2002 compared to 2001 primarily due to the reversal of $1.4 million of sales claims allowances in 2001. Fees from pre-press
publishing services declined $1.8 millicn primarily due to a reduction in volumes resulting from the expiration of a pre-press publish-
ing contract in December 2002. Other revenue in 2002 and 2001 included fees for billing services provided to SBC and sales-related
computer application services provided to DonTech.

Calendar Advertising Sales
Commission revenue, priority distribution income from Sprint, and revenue participation income from SBC are directly correlated to
the value of advertising sales made during the period. The table below sets forth the value of advertising that we sold on behalf
of Sprint and that DonTech sold on behalf of SBC during the periods noted. DonTech manages its selling process in a manner
similar to how we manage our selling process. Accordingly, the annual billing value of advertisements sold for SBC directories in the
period ("DonTech calendar sales”) can vary from one period to the next due to changes in the beginning and ending dates of a
sales campaign and the actual sales recorded at any point during the campaign. See below for a reconcliliation of calendar sales, a
non-GAAP measure, to net revenue, the most comparable GAAP measure with respect to DAS results, and partnership income, the
most comparable GAAP measure with respect to DonTech results.

Calendar advertising sales by segment for 2002 and 2001 were as follows:

(amounts in miliions) 2002 2001 $ Change % Change

DonTech $4029 $ 4226 $ (19.7) (4.7)Y%

DAS 186.8 185.3 15 0.8
Total $589.7 $ 607.9 $ (18.2) (83.0)%

Calendar sales in 2002 were $589.7 million as ccmpared to $607.9 million in 2001. DonTech calendar sales declined 4.7% in 2002.
The decline in 2002 DonTech calendar sales reflected continued advertiser uncertainty from weak economic conditions, competition
and changes in the servicing of sales campaigns to call on customers closer to the time when directories publish. DAS calendar
sales increased slightly during 2002 compared to 2001 as we began to see signs that these markets may be trending back towards
historical growth levels.

Publication Advertising Sales

During 2001 and 2002, management also reviewed and analyzed the value of advertising sales on behalf of Sprint and by DonTech

on behalf of SBC in directories that published during the period. We compared publication sales for the period against publication

sales for the same directories published in the prior year period (a “same store sales” type metric). We believed that a comparison of

publication sales from one period to another gave an indication of underlying sales growth in directories as this metric removed

the timing factors associated with a sales campaign. However, publication sales did not have a direct correlation to our reported

revenue or profitability in the indicated period because calendar sales drive revenue and profitability and occur prior to publication

dates. See below for a reconclliation of publication sales, a non-GAAP measure, to net revenue, the most comparable GAAP measure

with respect to DAS results, and partnership income, the most comparable GAAP measure with respect to DonTech resuits.
Publication advertising sales by segment for 2002 and 2001 were as follows:

{amounts in millions) 2002 2001 $ Change % Change

DonTech $418.2 $ 434.0 $ (15.8) (3.6)%

DAS . 184.7 183.5 (8.8) (4.5)
Total $602.9 $ 827.5 $ (24.8) (3.9)%

Publication sales in 2002 were $602.9 million as compared to $627.5 million in 2001. For 2002, publication sales at DonTech
declined 3.6% and publication sales at DAS declined 4.5% compared to 2001. These declines were due to difficult economic condi-
tions, reduced spending by advertisers and uncertainty and caution in the small business market following the events of September
11, 2001. Two of our largest sales campaigns, Sprint's Las Vegas and SBC’s Chicago Consumer directories, were in their peak
selling period immediately after September 11th. Both these directories published in early 2002 with the advertising sales value of
the 2002 publications being substantially below the value of the 2001 publications. However, since our revenue and profitability
were driven by calendar sales, the shortfall in the 2002 Las Vegas and Chicago Consumer directories was reflected in our 2001
results and did not directly impact our revenue or profitability in 2002.

Reconciliation of Advertising Sales to Net Revenue reported in accordance with GAAP

Both calendar advertising sales and publication sales are non-GAAP financial measures. The most comparable GAAP measure

for DAS calendar sales and publication sales is net revenue. As previously described, our net revenue and priority distribution
income reported in 2001 and 2002 in accordance with GAAP were directly correlated to DAS calendar sales. Publication sales on the



other hand give an indication of the underlying growth in directo-
ries but had no direct correlation to our reported net revenue or
pricrity distribution income. Below is a reconciliation of DAS
advertising sales to net revenue and DAS calendar sales to part-
nership incoms.

(amounts in millions} 2002 2001

to DonTech calendar sales. Publication sales on the other hand
give an indication of the underlying growth in directories but
have no direct correlation to our reported partnership income.
Below is a reconciliation of DonTech publication sales to
DonTech calendar sales to partnership income.

(amounts in millions) 2002 2001

DAS publication sales

DonTech publication sales

(from table above) $ 1847 $ 1935 {from table above) $ 418.2 $ 434.0
Less the value of contracts executed Less the value of contracts executed
and reported as calendar sales and reported as calendar sales in
in prior pe-iods (70.0) (76.8) prior periods (157.5) (197.2)
Plus the value: of contracts executed Plus the value of contracts executed
during the period to be during the period to be reported as
reported as publication sales publication sales in future pericds 142.2 185.8
in future periods 721 68.6 DonTech calendar sales
DAS calendar sales (from table above) $ 402.9 $ 4226
(from table akove) 186.8 185.3 Commission revenue on above
Commission revenue, calendar sales reported by
net on abcve calendar sales $ 427 $ 438 DonTech $101.8 $ 106.8
Pre-press publishing revenue 31.1 329 DonTech net expenses (64.8) (68.2)
Other revenue 1.6 35 DonTech net profit $ 37.0 $ 386
Total net revenue ~ GAAP $ 754 $ 802 Donnelley’s 50% share of
DonTech profits $ 185 $ 193
Revenue participation income
The most comparable GAAP measure for DonTech calendar received from SBC 98.6 103.1
sales and pubiication sales is partnership income. As previously Priority distribution income
described, the revenue participation income received from SBC from CenDon 19.8 17.6
and Donnelley's share of DonTech profits are directly correlated Total partnership income - GAAP $136.9 $ 1400
Expenses
Expenses for 2002 and 2001 were as follows:
(amounts in millions) 2002 2001 $ Change % Change
Operating expenses $ 48.0 $ 518 $ (3.3 (6.4)%
General and administrative expenses 12.0 46.6 (34.6) (74.2)
Depreciation and amortization expenses 6.3 10.8 (4.5) (41.7)
Total $ 66.3 $ 108.7 3 (42.4) (39.0)%

Operating expznses in 2002 were $48.0 million as compared to $51.3 million in 2001. The decrease in 2002 operating expenses
compared to 2001 was primarily due to a favorable settlement of $1.1 million for CenDon Partnership advertiser receivables (the
“CenDon settlement”) and reduced headcount through attrition in our Morrisville facility. In 2002, we settled CenDon Partnership
accounts receivable issues for approximately $2.1 million less than the amount reserved in our financial statements to cover potential
losses. The remaining $1.0 million benefit was recognized as partnership income. We established reserves for these receivable
issues over time as we became aware of relevant facts and circumstances. While we were a party to the CenDon Partnership, the
reserves estatlished were offset against partnership income. Subsequent to further CenDon restructuring, the reserves established
were charged to expense. Accordingly, the reversal of the reserves established was recorded to the same accounts to which the

original reserve was recorded.

G&A expinses were $12.0 million in 2002 as compared t0 $46.6 million in 2001. G&A expenses in 2001 include a restructuring
and special crarge of $18.6 million and an investment impairment charge of $11.4 million. G&A expenses in 2002 include a net
reversal of the previously recognized restructuring and special charges of $6.4 million and an additional investment impairment
charge of $2.0 million. See “Factors Affecting Comparability - Restructuring and Special Charge and ChinaBig Investment and
Impairment Crarge” for a discussion of these amounts. Excluding these items, G&A expense in 2002 was $16.4 million compared to
$16.6 million in 2001. G&A benefited in 2002 from lower salary and benefit costs due 1o the executive management transition, but
these savings were offset by $1.2 million of expenses incurred in connection with the SPA acquisition. The majority of acquisition

related expenses were capitalized as part of the acquisition.
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Depreciation and amortization expense was $6.3 million as compared to $10.8 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Depreciation and amortization expense had been steadily declining through 2002 as a result of reduced capital spending, including
software development, the write-off of assets from the disposition of businesses and significant software development costs
incurred in our Morrisville pre-press publishing operation in 1995 and 1986 becoming fully amortized during 2001.

Partnership Income

During 2001 and 2002, partnership income included our 50% share of the net income of DonTech, revenue participation income
from SBC and the priority distribution on our membership interest in CenDon. Partnership income was as follows:

(amounts in millions) 2002 2001 $ Change % Change

DonTech 31171 $ 1224 $ (5.3 (4.3)%

CenDon 19.8 17.6 22 12.5
Total $136.9 $ 140.0 $ (3.1) (2.2)%

Partnership income in 2002 was $136.9 million as compared to $140.0 million in 2001. Partnership income from DonTech decreased

$5.3 million in 2002 primarily due to the decline in DonTech calendar sales of 4.7% during that year. As previously stated,

DonTech calendar sales have declined due to a weakening economy, low consumer confidence in certain markets and competition.
Partnership income from CenDon increased $2.2 million in 2002 partially due to the increase in calendar sales coupled with

an increase in the priority distribution rate in 2002 from 12.9% to 13.2%. Partnership income for 2002 also included a $1.0 million

benefit from the CenDon settlement.

Operating Income

Operating income from DonTech includes our 50% share of the net profits of DonTech and revenue participation income from SBC.
Operating income from DAS included the results of, and those costs directly incurred by, each constituent business unit, less an
allocation of certain shared expenses based on estimated business usage. General and Corporate represents overhead and admin-
istrative costs that were not allocated to the DAS business units. Operating income by segment for 2002 and 2001 was as follows:

(amounts in millions) 2002 2001 $ Change % Change
DonTech $117.1 $ 1224 $ (5.3) (4.3)%
DAS 38.2 32.8 5.3 16.1
General and Corporate (13.7) (13.8) 0.1 07
Segment Operating Income 141.6 1415 0.1 (0.0)
Restructuring and special charge 6.4 (18.6) 25.0 n/m
Investment impairment charge (2.0 (11.4) 9.4 n/m
Total $146.0 $ 1115 $ 345 30.9%

Operating income in 2002 was $146.0 million as compared to $111.5 million in 2001. Operating income from DonTech decreased
$5.3 million in 2002 and $1.6 million in 2001. See “Partnership Income” above for further details of the decrease in DonTech
operating income.

Operating income from DAS increased $5.3 million in 2002 compared to 2001 due to higher sales at Sprint, the contractual
increase in the priority distribution rate and the benefit from the CenDon settlement. This increase was partially offset by a reversal
of $1.4 million of sales claims allowances in 2001. DAS operating income also benefited from lower software amortization expense
as the significant amount of investment in software development made at the Morrisville publishing facility in 1995 and 1996 was
fully amortized during 2001.

General and Corporate costs in 2002 were consistent with 2001 as lower salary and benefit costs from the executive
management transition in 2002 were offset by $1.2 million of costs related to the acquisition of SPA.

Interest and Taxes

Net interest expense was $33.5 million as compared to $25.6 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively. Interest expense for 2002
included $12.7 million of interest incurred on the $1,825 miltion of proceeds from Term Loan B and the Notes that were held in
escrow in December 2002 in anticipation of the SPA acquisition. Interest expense, excluding the interest on the funds in escrow,
was $20.8 million, $4.8 million lower than 2001 due to lower outstanding borrowings and lower interest rates. Interest income in 2002
of $2.0 million included $1.5 million of income on the funds held in escrow. Interest expense in 2002 and 2001 benefited from prepay-
ments of $65 million of debt in 2001 and $90 million of debt in 2000,

The effective tax rate for 2002 and 2001 was 40.0% and 41.9%, respectively, and was adversely impacted by the ChinaBig
investment impairment charges that were not deductible against income for tax purposes. These charges represented capital losses



and can only ke offset against capital gains. These charges also
gave rise to a deferred tax asset that can only be realized by off-
setting future capital gains. Given our then current business
portfolio and p-ojections of future results, we believed that the
probability of cenerating future capital gains to realize this asset
was remote. Accordingly, a valuation allowance for the deferred
tax asset relating to the ChinaBig investment was established.

Other (Expense) Income

Othear (expense) income in 2002 consisted of a $1.5 million
charge related to our interest rate swap and a $1.0 million
reversal of remaining reserves related to the disposition of busi-
nesses in 200C.

As a resut of the then-pending repayment of existing vari-
able rate debt in connection with the SPA acquisition, cur inter-
est rate swap no longer qualified for hedge accounting treat-
ment at December 31, 2002. Accordingly, a charge of $1.5 mil-
lion, previously recognized in accumulated other comprehensive
ioss on the balance sheet, was taken against earnings in 2002.

The calculation of the gain recorded in 2000 for the dispo-
sition of businesses included certain reserves established in
connection with the termination of the certain agreements with
Bell Atlantic. These reserves were based on the best information
available to us at the time of the transaction. At December 31,
2002, we believed that sufficient time had elapsed since the
transaction and that no additional costs would be incurred.
Accordingly, remaining reserves of $1.0 million were reversed
into income in 2002.

Net Income and Income Available to
Common Shareholders

Net income was $67.2 million as compared to $49.8 million in
2002 and 2001, respectively. The dividend on the Preferred
Stock, whether paid in cash or allowed to accrue, reduces net
income, resulting in net income available to common sharehold-
ers. For 2002, net income was reduced by a Preferred Stock div-
idend of $24.7 million to derive income available to common
shareholders of $42.5 million.

The amount of the Preferred Stock dividend includes the
stated 8% dividend of $0.5 million {pro rata for the period out-
standing) and a deemed dividend for a beneficial conversion
feature of $24.2 million. The BCF is a function of the conversion
price of the Preferred Stock ($24.05), the fair value of the war-
rants ($5.3 mill on based on the Black Scholes medel and an
exercise price of $26.28) and the fair market value of the under-
lying common stock on the date of issuance ($29.92). The full
amount of the BCF is treated as a deemed dividend in 2002 as
the Preferred Stock was convertible into common stock immedi-
ately after issuance. An additional BCF of $38.2 million resulted
from the issuarice of 130,000 additional shares of Preferred
Stock to the GS Funds in January 2003, which was recorded as
a deemed dividend in the first quarter 2003.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share are generally calculated

by dividing income available to common shareholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding.
However, because the Preferred Stock contains certain partici-
pation rights, Topic D-95 requires that the dilutive effect of those

securities be included in the weighted average number of
shares outstanding. Furthermore, Topic D-95 requires that the
dilutive effect included in basic EPS may be calculated using
either the if-converted method or the two-class method.
However, the dilutive effect of the Preferred Stock cannot be
less than that which would result from the application of the
two-class method.

Diluted EPS are calculated by dividing net income by the
weighted average common shares outstanding plus common
share equivalents. Common share equivalents include stock
options and warrants, the dilutive effect of which is calculated
using the treasury stock method, and Preferred Stock,
the potential dilutive effect of which is calculated using the
if-converted method.

The calculation of EPS for the year ended 2002 is as follows:

(in thousands, except per share data)

Basic EPS - If-Converted Method

Income available to common shareholders $42,475
Preferred Stock dividend 24,702
Net income $67,177
Weighted average common

shares outstanding 29,643

Weighted average common equivalent shares
assuming conversion of Preferred Stock ' 281

Weighted average common shares outstanding

and common stock equivalents 29,924
Basic earnings per share -

if-converted method $ 224
Basic EPS - Two-Class Method
Income available to common shareholders

and common equivalent $42,475

Amount allocable to
common shares 2 99%

Rights to undistributed earnings $42,051
Weighted average common

shares outstanding 29,643
Basic earnings per share -

two-class method $ 1.42
Diluted EPS
Income available to common shareholders $42,475
Weighted average common

shares outstanding 29,643

Dilutive effect of stock options 655
Dilutive effect of preferred stock

assuming conversion * -
Weighted average common and common

equivalent shares outstanding 30,298

Diluted EPS $ 140

' At December 31, 2002, the Preferred Stock was convertible into 2,933,888
shares of common stock. However, since $70 million of the Preferred Stock
was issued in November 2002, the number of common share equivalents
included in the EPS calculation has been weighted for the actual time the
Preferred Stock was outstanding during the year.

229,643 / (29,643 + 281)

% The conversion of the Preferred Stock was not reflected in the calculation of
diluted EPS because the effect was anti-dilutive.
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For the year ended December 31, 2001, basic earnings per
share was calculated by dividing net income by the weighted
average common shares outstanding during the year, and dilut-
ed earnings per share was calculated by dividing net income by
the weighted average common shares outstanding plus poten-
tially dilutive common shares, primarily stock options, calculated
using the treasury stock method.

The calculation of EPS for the year ended December 31,
2001 is as follows:

(in thousands, except per share data)

Income avallable to

common shareholders $49,815
Weighted average common
shares outstanding 30,207

Dilutive effect of stock options 769

Weighted average common and
common equivalent shares

cutstanding 30,976
Earnings per share

Basic $ 165

Diluted $ 1.61

Liquidity and Capital Resources

in connection with the SPA acquisition, we entered into a new
$1,525 million Credit Facility, consisting of a $500 million Term
Loan A, a $900 million Term Loan B and a $125 million Revolver;
issued $325 million 8 7/8% Senior Notes; and $600 million 10
7/8% Senior Subordinated Notes and issued $200 million of
Preferred Stock to the GS Funds. These funds were used to
acquire SPA, pay transaction costs, repurchase a portion of the
existing 9 1/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2008 (“Pre-
acquisition Notes”) pursuant to a tender offer and repay former
term facilities. To take advantage of favorable market conditions
and to ensure the timely consummation of the SPA acquisition, in
December 2002, we incurred debt under and received gross
proceeds of the Term Loan B and the Notes. The total gross pro-
ceeds of $1,825 million were deposited and held in escrow
pending the closing of the SPA acquisition. Additionally, in
November 2002, we issued 70,000 shares of Preferred Stock
and warrants to purchase 577,500 shares of our common stock
to the GS Funds for gross proceeds of $70 million.

On January 3, 2003, we borrowed an additional $510 mil-
lion consisting of $500 million Term Loan A proceeds and $10
million under the Revolver. We also received the proceeds of
$1,825 million held in escrow and issued to the GS Funds the
remaining $130 million of Preferred Stock and warrants to pur-
chase 1,072,500 shares of our common stock. These proceeds
were used to acquire the common stock of SPA, repay existing
debt and pay transaction costs.

The sources and uses of funds in connection with the acqui-
sition are summarized as follows:

{amounts in miltions)

Sources:
Proceeds from the Credit Facility $ 14100
Proceeds from the Notes 925.0
Proceeds from the sale of convertible

preferred stock and warrants 200.0°
Available cash 47.8
Total sources : Co : $° 25828
Uses:
Purchase price $ 2,229.8
Payment of CenDon obligations 14.0
Repay existing debt, including

accrued interest 244.2
Fees and expenses 94.8
Total uses $ 2,582.8

" Calculated prior to the application of a 1% closing payment
and other fees.

On December 8, 2003, we amended our Credit Facility, to
accomplish the following objectives:

m obtain more favorable pricing on our variable rate debt;

m adjust non-financial covenants to make them less restrictive
for corporate operating flexibility;
m obtain the cash resources and the consent for us to redeem
the remaining outstanding Pre-acquisition Notes; and

® obtain consent for a new Term Loan C for potential borrowings
up to $400 million, such proceeds, if borrowed, to be used to
fund acquisitions and retirement of Notes and redemption of
equity, subject to certain limitations.

The amendment to our Credit Facility created a new Term Loan
A-2, replacing initial Term Loan A and created a new Term Loan
B-2 replacing the initial Term Loan B. In connection with the
amendment, we borrowed an additional $32 million under the
Term Loan B-2. These proceeds were used to redeem the
balance of the Pre-acquisition Notes and pay transaction costs,
including a prepayment premium of $8.9 million representing
1% of the Term Loan B balance outstanding on the date of the
amendment. The amendment to the Credit Facility was account-
ed for as a modification of the underlying debt instruments.
The weighted average interest rate of cutstanding debt under
the Credit Facility was 3.9% at December 31, 2003 and under
the former term facilities was 6.7% during 2002.

As amended, our Credit Facility bears interest, at our
option at either:

m The higher of (i) a base rate as determined by Deutsche Bank
Securities Inc., Salomon Smith Barney Inc. or Bear, Stearns &
Co. Inc., plus a 2.50% margin on the Revolver and

a 1.50% margin on Term Loans A-2 and B-2 and (ii) the Federal



Funds Effective: Rate (as defined) plus 1/2 of 1%, plus a 2.50%
margin on the Revolver and a 1.50% margin on Term Loans
A-2 and B-2; or

m LIBOR rate plus a 3.50% margin on the Revolver and a
2.25% margin on Term Loans A-2 and B-2. We may elect inter-
est periods of 1, 2, 3, 6, 9 or 12 months for LIBOR borrowings.

The Credit Facility, as amended, and the indentures governing
the Notes contain usual and customary negative covenants that,
among other things, place limitations on our ability to (i) incur
additional indebtedness, including capital leases and liens; (i)
pay dividends and repurchase our capital stock; (iii) enter into
mergers, consolidations, acquisitions, asset dispositions and
sale-leaseback transactions; (iv) make capital expenditures; and
(v) issue capital stock of our subsidiaries. The Credit Facility
also contains financial covenants relating to maximum consoli-
dated leverage:, minimum interest coverage, minimum fixed
charge coveragje and maximum senior secured leverage as
defined thereir. The Revolver and Term Loan A-2 mature in
December 20C8 and Term Loan B-2 matures in June 2010.
Substantially a | of our assets, including the capital stock of our
subsidiaries, a‘e pledged to secure our obligations under the
Credit Facility.

On January 3, 2003, in connection with a tender offer and
exit consent solicitation, $128.8 million of the Pre-acquisition
Notes were repurchased. We borrowed an initial $1,410 million
under the Credit Facility contingent upon our repurchase of the
entire $150 million aggregate principal amount of the Pre-acqui-
sition Notes. Ay proceeds that were not used to repurchase the
Pre-acquisition Notes were reguired 1o be repaid to the lenders
under the Crediit Facllity. Accordingly, $21.2 million, representing
the amount of >re-acquisition Notes that remained outstanding
following the tender offer and exit consent solicitation, was
repaid to the lenders under the Credit Facility shortly after the
consummation of the acquisition. On February 6, 2004, utilizing
the proceeds from Term Loan B-2, we redeemed the remaining
aggregate prir cipal amount of the Pre-acquisition Notes, totaling
$21.2 million at a redemption price of 104.563% of the principal
amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest. A loss of
approximately $1.2 million will be recorded in the first quarter of
2004 consisting of the premium over par value paid at redemp-
tion of $1.0 million, plus the write-off of $0.2 miltion of deferred
financing costs.

The Preferred Stock is convertible at any time at a price of
$24.05. The cumulative dividend of 8% is compounded guarter-
ly. Only with the consent of a majority of the holders of the con-
vertible preferred stock may we pay any dividends in cash prior
to October 1, 2005. Subseguent to Cctober 1, 2005, dividends
on the Preferred Stock may be paid in cash, subject to any
limitations under the Credit Facility, or allowed tc accrue, at our
option. The Cradit Facility may significantly limit our ability to pay
the dividends on the Preferred Stock in cash. The warrants

issued in November 2002 have an exercise price of $26.28, and
the warrants issued in January 2003 have an exercise price of
$28.62. These warrants can be exercised at any time before
they expire on January 3, 2008. We intend to issue treasury
stock to satisfy conversion of the Preferred Sock and exercise of
warrants. We may redeem the Preferred Stock in cash at any
time on or after January 3, 2006 if the market price (as defined)
of our common stock exceeds 200% of the conversion price for
30 of 45 trading days. The Preferred Stock is redeemable in
cash by us at any time on or after January 3, 2013. The
Preferred Stock is redeemable in cash at the option of the GS
Funds in the event of a change in control (as defined). At
December 31, 20083, the redemption value of the Preferred Stock
was $217 million and it was convertible into 8,022,798 shares

of common stock.

As a result of the SPA acquisition, we have a significant
amount of debt, and our debt service reguirements are signifi-
cantly higher than in prior years. Aggregate outstanding debt as
of December 31, 2003 was $2,092.1 million. Term Loans A-2
and B-2 require quarterly principal and interest payments
through their maturity and the Notes require semi-annual interest
payments. During the year ended December 31, 2003, we made
scheduled principal payments of $49.4 million and prepaid an
additional $193.5 million in principal under our Credit Facility. It
is management’s present intention to continue to utilize excess
free cash flow to pay down on an accelerated basis our debt
obligations under the Credit Facility. For the year ended
December 31, 2003, we had aggregate cash interest payments
of $167.7 million.

At December 31, 2003, we had $7.7 million of cash and
cash equivalents before checks not yet presented for payment
of $6.7 million, and available borrowings under the Revolver of
$125.0 million. During 2003, we periodically utilized the Revolver
as a financing resource to balance the timing of our periodic
and accelerated payments made under the Credit Facility and
interest payments on the Notes with the timing of cash receipts
from operations. Our present intention is to repay borrowings on
the Revolver in a timely manner and keep any outstanding
amounts to a minimum.

Qur primary source of liguidity will continue to be cash
flows from operations as well as available borrowing capacity
under the Revolver. Qur primary liquidity requirement will be to
fund operations and for principal and interest payments on our
debt. Our ability to meet our debt service requirements will
depend on our ability to generate cash flow in the future. Our
primary sources of cash flow will consist mainly of cash receipts
from the sale of advertising in our yellow pages directories and
revenue participation payments and other cash distributions
related to DonTech. These sources are directly dependent on
the value of yellow pages advertising sold and can be impacted
by, among other factors, general economic conditions, competi-
tion from other yellow pages directory publishers and other alter-
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native products, consumer confidence and the level of demand
for yellow pages advertising. We believe that cash flows from
operations, along with borrowing capacity under the Revolver,
will be adequate to fund our operations and capital expenditures
and to meet our debt service requirements for at least the next
12 to 24 months. However, we make no assurances that our
business will generate sufficient cash flow from operations

or that sufficient borrowing will be available under the Revolver
to enable us to fund our operations, capital expenditures and
meet all debt service requirements, or for other purposes.

Cash provided by operating activities in 2003 was $248.6
million, an increase of $198.6 millicn over cash provided by
operating activities of $50.0 million in the prior year. The
increase is primarily a result of the SPA acquisition. As a pub-
lisher of over 260 revenue-generating directories, our cash flows
from operating activities have significantly increased in 2003.
Key contributors to cash flows in 2003 include the following:

m $293.9 million from a decrease in accounts receivable and an
increase in deferred directory revenue. We analyze the change
in deferred revenue and accounts receivable together because
when a directory is published, the annual billing value of that
directory is initially deferred and unbilled accounts receivable
are established. Each month thereafter, one-twelfth of the billing
value is recognized as revenue and billed to customers. In
connection with the SPA acquisition, while we did not record the
unrecognized revenue for directories published prior to the
acquisition and during January 2003, due to purchase account-
ing, we did acquire the associated unbilled receivables and the
rights to bill and collect these receivables, which totaled approx-
imately $250 million. Other components adding to generating
cash flows include lower bad debts and sales claims, as well as
improvements in the collection of past due balances.

u $10.2 million increase in cash received from partnerships in
excess of recorded partnership income representing a source
of cash. Partnership income and related cash received in 2003
consists of our 50% interest in DonTech’s net income and the
revenue participation income from SBC. We receive cash from
DonTech and SBC subsequent to the time we record the associ-
ated partnership income; therefore, in periods of declining
DonTech partnership income, cash received related to prior peri-
ods will exceed the income recognized from the current period.

Partially offsetting these sources of cash was the following
use of cash:

® $32.0 million increase in other assets, primarily comprised of
deferred directory costs, Deferred directory costs represent
cash payments for certain costs associated with the publication
of directories. Since deferred directory costs are initially deferred
when incurred, the cash payments are made prior to the
expense being recognized.

Cash used in investing activities in 2003 was $377.9 million
and consists of the following:

m $2,259.6 million in cash payments to acquire SPA and pay
transaction costs. (See the table detailing the sources

and uses of funds in connection with the SPA acquisition
presented above).

a $1,894.3 million decrease in restricted cash that was recaorded
at December 31, 2002. This amount is comprised of funds that
we raised in the last quarter of 2002 that were placed in escrow
pending the SPA acquisition. Of this amount, $900 million was
raised from Term Loan B under the Credit Facility, $925 millien
was raised from the Notes and $63.3 in net proceeds was raised
from the issuance of our Preferred Stock to the GS Funds.

m $12.6 million was used to purchase fixed assets, primarily
computer equipment and computer software.

Cash provided by financing activities in 2003 was $129.3
million and includes the following:

m $461.3 million in net borrowings under the $500 miltion Term
Loan A under the Credit Facility on January 3, 2003. The other
funds raised under the Credit Facility to finance the SPA acquisi-
tion and re-finance existing debt were received in December
2002 and held in escrow until January 3, 2003.

m $125.7 million in net proceeds from the issuance of our
Preferred Stock with a stated value of $130 million and related
warrants to the GS Funds on January 3, 2003. The GS Funds
invested a total stated amount of $200 million in connection with
the SPA acquisition. The initial investment of $70 million was
made in November 2002.

m $243.0 million in principal payments on pre-acquisition debt.
Proceeds from our Credit Facility, Notes and Preferred Stock
were used in January 2003 to repay $114.2 million in variable
rate bank debt and redeem $128.8 of the Pre-acquisition Notes
pursuant to a tender offer.

m $312.4 million in principal payments on debt borrowed under
the Credit Facility. Of this amount, $49.4 million represents
scheduled quarterly payments and $193.5 million represents
principal payments made on an accelerated basis, at our option,
from excess cash flow generated from operations.

m $69.6 million in borrowings under the Revolver.

m $21.4 million in proceeds from the exercise of employee
stock options.

The Contractual Obligations table presented below sets forth
our annual commitments as of December 31, 2003 for principal
payments on our debt, as well as other cash obligations for the
next five years and thereafter. The debt repayments as present-
ed in this table include only the scheduled principal payments
under our current debt agreements and do not include any
anticipated prepayments or interest charges.




(amounts in millions) Payment due by period

Less than 1 1-3 4-5 After 5
Contractual Obligations Total Year Years Years Years
Long-Term Debt * $ 2,082.1 $ 49.6 $ 991 $ 140.7 $ 1,802.7
Operating Leases ? 35.8 5.2 7.2 7.9 156.5
Unconditional Purchase Obligations * 43.2 13.9 29.3 - -
Other Long-Term Liabilities * 38.7 0.5 1.1 1.2 35.9
Total Contractual Obligaticns $2,209.8 $ 69.2 $ 136.7 $ 149.8 $ 1,854.1

" Included in long-term debt are amounts owed under our Credit Facility, the Notes and the Pre-acquisition Notes. The Pre-acquisition Notes were redeemed
in full on February 6, 2004. These borrowings are further explained in Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 in this annual report.

2 We enter into operating leases in the normal course of business. Substantially all lease agreements have fixed payment terms based on the passage of
time. Some lease agreements provide us with renewal or early termination options. Our future operating lease obligations would change if we exercised these
renewal or early termination options and if we entered into additional operating lease agreements. The amounts in the table assume we do not exercise any
such renewal or early termination options. See Note 12 to our consclidated financial statements included in ftem 8 of this annual report.

¥ Ws have an unconditional purchase obligation with one vendor regarding the purchase of paper that extends through the end of 2006. Our purchase
obligations are based on annual minimum quantities at pre-established pricing. Amounts in the table above reflect such pricing and minimum quantities
under this_contriact. Should the market price of the paper drop below the pre-established pricing, our vendor is cbligated to negotiate with us a lower paper
price. Any. quaniities.used above the contractual minimums would increase our payment obligations. We have no contractual obligations beyond 2006.

* We have a defined benefit plan covering substantially all employees. Our funding policy is to contribute an amount at least equal to the minimum legal
funding requirerient. No contributions were required in the three-year period ended December 31, 2003, Based on past performance and the uncertainty of
the dollar amounts to be paid, if any, we have excluded such amounts from the above table. We have an unfunded postretirement plan that provides certain
healthcare and life insurance benefits to those full-time employees who reach retirement age while working for the Company. Those expected future benefit

payments, including administrative expenses, net of employee contributions, are included in the table above.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosure about Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk and Risk Management

The Credit Facility bears interest at variable rates, and accord-
ingly, our earnings and cash flow are affected by changes in
interest rates. The Credit Facility requires that we maintain
hedge agreements to provide either a fixed interest rate or inter-
est rate protection on at least 50% of our total outstanding debt.

On March 28, 2003, we entered into three interest rate
swap agreements with a total notional value of $255 million.
These interest rate swaps effectively convert $255 million
of variable deldt to fixed rate debt. Under the terms of these
agreements, we receive variable interest based on three-month
LIBOR and pay a fixed rate of 2.85%. The swaps mature on
March 28, 2007.

On October 9, 2003, we entered into an interest rate swap
agreement with a total noticnal value of $150 million. This
interest rate swap effectively converts $150 million of variable
debt to fixed rate debt. Under the terms of this agreement, we
receive variable interest based on three-month LIBOR and
pay a fixed rafe of 1.959%. This swap agreement matures on
October 9, 2005.

Based on the initial terms of the swap agreements, the
annual cost of these swap arrangements will be approximately
$5.2 million. T1e actual cost of the swaps will depend on the
variable rate payments received. Assuming an 1/8% increase in
the interest rate associated with the borrowings under the Credit
Facility (after giving effect to the interest rate swaps), interest
expense would increase $0.9 million on an annual basis. After

the effect of the interest rate swap agreements discussed
above, total fixed rate debt comprises approximately 65% of our
total debt portfolio as of December 31, 2003.

The outstanding interest rate swaps expose us tc credit risk
in the event that the counterparties to the agreements do not or
cannot meet their obligations. The notional amount is used to
measure interest to be paid or received and does not represent
the amount of exposure to credit loss. The loss would be limited
to the amount that would have been received, if any, over the
remaining life of the swap agreements. The counterparties
to the swaps are major financial institutions, and we expect the
counterparties to be able to perform their obligations under
the swaps. We use derivative financial instruments for hedging
purposes only and not for trading or speculative purposes.

A discussion of our accounting policies and further disclosure
relating to these financial instruments is included in Note 2 to
our audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2003, which are included in ltem 8 in this
annual report.

Market Risk Sensitive Instruments

The interest rate swap agreements have been designated as
cash flow hedges. In accordance with the provisions of SFAS
133, Accounting for Derivative Instrurments and Hedging
Activities, as amended by SFAS 137 and FAS 138, the swaps
are recorded at fair value. On a quarterly basis, the fair value

of the swaps will be determined based on gquoted market prices
and, assuming effectiveness, the difference between the fair
value and the book value of the swaps will be recognized

in other comprehensive income, a compenent of shareholders’
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equity. Any ineffectiveness of the swaps is required to be recog-
nized in earnings. The swaps and the hedged item (three-month
LIBOR-based interest payments on $405 million of bank debt)
have been designed so that the critical terms (interest reset
dates, duration and index} coincide. Assuming the critical
terms continue to coincide, the cash flows from the swaps will
exactly offset the cash flows of the hedged item and no ineffec-
tiveness will exist.

Pre-Acquisition Interest Rate Risk and
Risk Management

We were exposed to interest rate risk through our prior credit
facility, under which we borrowed at prevailing short-term rates.
We had an outstanding interest rate swap agreement with

a notional principal amount of $75 million, whereby we paid a
fixed rate of 5.9% and received floating rate payments based on
three month LIBOR rates. For 2002, the weighted average rate
received was 1.1%. This swap agreement expired in June 2003.
Due to the pending repayment of variable rate debt under our
prior credit agreement in conjunction with the SPA acqguisition,
at-December 31, 2002; the interest rate swap no ionger qualified
for hedge accounting treatment. As a result, we recognized a
charge of $1.5 million in 2002 to record the swap at its fair
market value. We recognized a corresponding gain in 2003 of
$1.5 million as the swap matured in June 2003 and the fair value
declined to zero.
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
of R.H. Donnelley Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ deficit and cash flows present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of R.H. Donnelley Corporation
and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) at December 31, 2003
and 2002, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December
31, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. These financial state-
ments are the responsibility of the Company's management; our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial state-
ments based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these
statements in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evi-
dence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Is/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

New York, New York
February 16, 2004



R.H. Donneliey Corporation

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,
(in thousands, except share and per share data) 2003 2002
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,722 3 7,787
Restricted cash - 1,928,700
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash ' 7,722 1,836,487
Accounts receivable
Billed 49,203 ~
Unbilled 173,734 ~
Commissions receivable - 31,978
Allowance: for doubtful accounts and sales claims (11,956) (4,772)
Net accounts receivable 210,981 27,206
Deferred directory costs 37,907 -
Other current assets 27,981 4,981
Total current assets 284,591 1,968,674
Fixed assets and computer software, net 20,624 12,008
Partnership investment 175,729 202,236
Other non-cLrrent assets 95,583 40,457
Intangible assets, net 1,865,167 -
Goodwill 97,040 ~
Total Assets $ 2,538,734 $ 2,223,375
Liabilities, Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock
and Shareholders' Deficit
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 33,502 $ 20,261
Deferred directory revenue 216,525 ~
Current portion of long-term debt 49,586 13,780
Total current liabilities 299,613 34,041
Long-term dzbt 2,042,547 2,075,470
Deferred income taxes, net 33,629 60,783
Other non-current liabilities 20,967 20,222
Total 1 abilities 2,396,756 2,190,516

Commitments and contingencies

Redeemable convertible preferred stock (liquidation preference of
$216,998 for 2003 and $70,544 for 2002) 198,223 63,459

Shareholders’ Deficit
Common stack, par value $1 per share, authorized — 400,000,000 shares;

issued - 51,621,894 shares 51,622 51,622
Additional paid-in capita 137,401 63,913
Unamertizedi restricted stock (531) (327)
Warrants outstanding 13,758 5,330
(Accumulated deficit) retained earnings {94,745) 13,605
Treasury stock, at cost, 20,589,520 shares for 2003 and 21,900,818 shares for 2002 (163,741) (164,743)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (9) -

Total shareholders’ deficit (56,245) (30,600)
Total Liabilities, Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and
Shareholders' Deficit $ 2,538,734 $ 2,223,375

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended December 31,

(in thousands, except per share data) 2003 2002 2001
Gross revenue $ 258,790 $ 75,809 $ 79,227
Sales aliowances (2,345) (403) 1,026
Net revenue 256,445 75,406 80,2583
Expenses
Operating expenses 164,211 48,021 51,347
General and administrative expenses 47,981 12,027 46,631
Depreciation and amortization 65,779 6,249 10,767
Total expenses 277,971 66,297 108,745
Partnership.income 114,052 136,873 139,964
Operating income 92,526 145,982 111,472
Interest expense, net (180,020) (33,548) (25,648)
Other income (expense), net 1,523 (451) -
(Loss) income betore income taxes (85,971) 111,983 85,824
(Benefit) provision for income taxes (36,018) 44,806 36,009
Net (loss) income {49,953) 67,177 49,815
Preferred dividend 58,397 24,702 -
(Loss) income available to common shareholders $ (108,350) $ 42475 $ 49815
(Loss) earnings per share
Basic $ (3.53) $ 142 1.65
Diluted $ {3.53) $ 140 1.61
Shares used in computing (loss) earnings per share
Basic 30,683 29,643 30,207
Diluted 30,683 30,298 30,976
Comprehensive (Loss) Income
(Loss) income available to common shareholders $ (108,350) $ 42,475 $ 49,815
Unrealized loss on interest rate swaps, net of tax 9) - (2,330)
Comprehensive (loss) income $ (108,359) $ 42,475 $ 47,485

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



R.H. Donneliey Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2003 2002 2001

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net (loss) income $ (49,953) $ 67,177 $ 49,815
Reconciliation of net (loss) income to net cash provided

by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 65,779 6,249 10,767
Deferred income tax (40,230) 8,151 (8,281)
(Benefit from) provision for bad debts (1,517) 2,897 2,978
Other non-cash charges 6,408 1,746 2,481
Restructuring and special (benefit) charge - (6,694) 18,556
Investment impairment charge - 2,000 11,432
Gain on dispaosition of businesses, net of tax - (659) -
(Gain) loss on hedging activities (1,523) 1,523 -

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects
from acquisition:

Cash in excess of partnership income 10,240 6,754 11,893
(Decrease) increase in accounts receivable 77,381 (5,052) 292
(Increase) decrease in other assets (31,950) (13,855) 263
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (11,868) (19,014) (14,982)
Increase in deferred directory revenue 216,525 - -
Increase (decrease) in other non-current liabilities 9,305 (1,268) 1,640
Net cesh provided by operating activities 248,597 49,955 86,854
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Additions to “ixed assets and computer software (12,581) (3,743) (4,550)
Increase in restricted cash - (1,828,700) -
Decrease in restricted cash - release of funds
from escrow, net of costs and other 1,894,300 - -
Acquisition cf SPA, net of cash received {2,259,633) - -
Investment in ChinaBig.com Limited - - (1,550)
Net cash used in investing activities (377,914) (1,932,443) (6,100)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from the issuance of debt, net of costs 461,307 1,865,000 -
Proceeds from the issuance of Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock and warrants, net of costs 125,683 69,300 -
Pre-acquisition debt refinanced with proceeds from new debt (243,005) - -
increase in checks not yet presented for payment 6,708 - -
Additional borrowings under the Credit Facility 69,569 - -
Credit Facility debt repayments (312,436) (62,500) (65,000)
Purchase of treasury stock - - (63,981)
Proceeds from employee stock option exercises 21,426 3,754 7,511
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 129,252 1,875,554 (121,470)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (65) (6,934) (40,716)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 7,787 14,721 55,437
Cash and cesh equivalents, end of year $ 7,722 $ 7,787 $ 14,721
Supplemenial Information
Cash interest paid $ 167,718 $ 27627 $ 24,552
Income taxe:s paid - $ 38940 $ 39,608

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Deficit

Common (Accumulated Accumulated
Stock and Unamortized Deficit) Other Total
Additional Warrants Restricted Retained Treasury ~ Comprehensive  Shareholders’
{in thousands) Paid-in Capital Qutstanding Stock Earnings Stock (Loss) Income Deficit
Balance, December 31, 2000 $ 70,237 $ (232) $ (78,685) $ (99,830) $ (108,510)
Net income 43,815 49,815
Employee stock option exercises,
including tax benefit 11,101 585 11,686
Restricted stock issued 292 (297) 5 -
Stock issued for employee
bonus plans 1,408 90 1,498
Compensatory stock options 627 627
Restricted stock amortization 193 193
Stock acquired for treasury (64,292) (64,292)
Unrealized loss on interest rate
swaps, net of tax $ (2,330) (2,330)
Balance, December 31, 2001 83,665 (336) (28,870) (163,442) (2,330) (111,313)
Net income 67,177 67,177
Preferred dividend (24,702) (24,702)
Employee stock option exercises,
including tax bensfit 4,925 260 5,185
Restricted stock issued 216 (221) 5 -
Stock issued for employee
bonus plans 2,328 106 2,434
Compensatory stock options 243 243
Restricted stock amortization 230 230
Stock acquired for treasury (1,672) (1,672)
Beneficial conversion feature from
issuance of Preferred Stock 24,158 24,158
Issuance of warrants $ 5,330 5,330
Unrealized gain on interest rate
swaps, net of tax 2,33C 2,330
Balance, December 31, 2002 115,535 5,330 (327) 13,605 (164,743) - (30,600)
Net loss (49,953) (49,953)
Preferred dividend (58,397) {58,397)
Employee stock option exercises,
including tax benefit 27,947 1,284 29,231
Restricted stock issued 528 (533) 5 -
Stock issued for employee
bonus plans 1,083 32 1,115
Compensatory stock options 1,987 1,987
Restricted stock amortization 329 329
Stock acquired for treasury (319) (319)
Beneficial conversion feature
from issuance of Preferred Stock 41,943 41,943
Issuance of warrants 8,428 8,428
Unrealized loss on interest rate
swaps, net of tax 9) (9)
Balance, December 31, 2003 $189,023  $13,758 $ (531) $ (94,745) S (163,741) $ 9) $ (56,245)

The accornpanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



A.H. Donnelley Corporation

Noles to Consolidated Financial Statements

(in thousands, exept share and per share data, unless otherwise noted)

1. Business and Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
R.H. Donnelley Corporation and its direct and ingirect wholly
owned subsidiaries (the “Company”, “RHD", “we", “us" and
“our”). All intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated. Sez= “Eguity Method of Accounting” below for a dis-
cussion of unconsolidated operations.

We are a leading yellow pages directory publisher in the
United States. Currently, we publish 260 Sprint-branded yellow
pages directories in 18 states and have a total circulation of
approximately 18 million, serving approximately 160,000 local
and 4,000 national advertisers. Through The DonTech i
Partnership (“DonTech”), our partnership with an affiliate of SBC
Communications Inc. ("SBC"), we sell advertising for an addi-
tional 129 SBC-branded directories in linois and northwest
Indiana with a total circulation of approximately 10 million serv-
ing approximately 100,000 local advertisers.

On January 3, 2003, we acquired all the outstanding com-
mon stock of tne various entities comprising Sprint Publishing
and Advertising (“SPA"), Sprint Corporation’s (“Sprint”) directory
publishing business. The acquisition transformed Donnelley from
a sales agent and pre-press vendor into a leading publisher of
yellow pages directories. Prior to the SPA acquisition, we were
one of the larcest independent sales agents and pre-press ven-
dors for yellow pages advertising in the United States. See Note
3, "Acquisition of Sprint Publishing and Advertising” below for a
further description of the acquisition.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue Recognition. We earn revenue principally from the
sale of advertising into our Sprint-branded yellow pages directo-
ries. Revenue from the sale of such advertising is deferred
when a directory is published and recognized ratably over the
life of a directory, which is typically 12 months (the “deferral and
amortization method”). Revenue from the sale of advertising is
recorded net of an allowance for sales claims, estimated based
on historical experience on a directory-by-directory basis.

We increase or decrease this estimate as information or circum-
stances indicete that the estimate may no longer adequately
represent the amount of claims we may incur for a directory in
the future. We also earn revenue from providing pre-press pub-
lishing services to SBC for those directories in the DonTech
markets. Revenue from pre-press publishing services is recog-
nized as services are performed.

For the y=ars ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, we
earned sales commission revenue from the sale of advertising
on behalf of S2A and fees for pre-press publishing services. As
a sales agent for SPA, we recognized sales commission rev-
enue, net of an allowance for sales claims, at the time an adver-
tising contract was executed with a customer. Revenue from
pre-press publishing services was recognized as services were
performed.

Deferred Directory Costs. Costs directly related to the selling
and production of our directories are initially deferred when
incurred and recognized ratably over the life of a directory,

which is typically 12 months. These costs include sales commis-
sions and print, paper and initial distribution costs.

Equity Method Accouniing. DonTech is a 50/50 perpetual part-
nership in which we and an operating unit of SBC are the part-
ners. DonTech is a separate legal entity that provides its servic-
es with its own employees and a stand-alone management
team. The employees of DonTech have the right, authority and
power to do any act to accomplish, and enter into any contract
incidental to attain, the purposes of the partnership. No employ-
ees of either RHD or SBC are involved in the day-to-day opera-
tions of DonTech and, because the partners share equally in the
net profits and each has one voting member on the DonTech
Board, ngither partner has the unilateral ability to control or influ-
ence the operations of DonTech. Accordingly, we account for
DonTech under the equity method and do not consolidate the
DonTech results in our financial statements.

We recognize our 50% share of the net income of DonTech
as partnership income in our consolidated statements of opera-
tions. Partnership income also includes revenue participation
income from SBC. Revenue participation income is based on
DonTech advertising sales and is recognized when a sales con-
tract is executed with a customer. Our investment in DonTech
and the revenue participation receivable from SBC are reported
as partnership investment on the consolidated balance sheet.
During the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, partner-
ship income also included the priority distribution income on our
membership interest in CenDon, LLC (“CenDon”). In connection
with the SPA acquisition, we became the sole owner of CenDon.
The operating results of CenDon subsequent to the SPA acquisi-
tion are included in our consolidated results of operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash equivalents include liquid
investments with a maturity of less than three months at their
time of acquisition. At December 31, 2002, cash of $1,928,700
was restricted and was used in 2003 to finance the SPA acquisi-
tion. The Company places its investments with high quality finan-
cial institutions. At times, such investments may be in excess of
federally insured limits.

Accounts Receivable. As of December 31, 2003, accounts
receivable consist of balances from our advertising customers.
Advertisers typically enter into a twelve-month contract for their
advertising. Most advertisers are billed a pro rata amount of
their contract value on a monthly basis. Billed receivables repre-
sent the amount that has been billed to advertisers. Unbilled
receivables represent contractually owed amounts for published
directories that have yet to be billed to advertisers. Billed receiv-
ables are recorded net of an allowance for doubtful accounts
and sales claims, estimated based on historical experience on a
directory-by-directory basis. We increase or decrease this esti-
mate as information or circumstances indicate that the estimate
may no longer adequately represent the amount of bad debts
and sales claims we may incur.

As of December 31, 2002, accounts receivable consisted
of sales commissions earned from the sale of advertising.
Receivables for sales commissions were billed to the publisher
upon directory publication and collected in accordance with
contractual provisions. An allowance for doubtful accounts and
sales claims was provided based on expected collectibility of
the receivables.
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Fixed Assets and Computer Software. Fixed assets and com-
puter software are recorded at cost. Depreciation and amortiza-
tion is provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets
using the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives are 30
years for the building, five years for machinery and equipment,
ten years for furniture and fixtures, three to five years for com-
puter equipment and five years for computer software.
Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the term of the lease or the estimated useful
life of the improvement. Fixed assets and computer software at
December 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of the following:

2003 2002

Computer software $ 104,423 $ 65,349
Computer equipment 44,286 39,958
Machinery and equipment 8,398 3,863
Furniture and fixtures 9,560 4,967
Leasehold improvements 4,406 3,824
Building 1,333 -

Total cost 172,406 117,961
Less accumulated depreciation

and amortization (151,782)  (105,953)

Net fixed assets and

computer software $ 20624 $ 12,008

Depreciation and amortization expense on fixed assets and
computer software for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001 was as follows:

2003 2002 2001

Depreciation of

fixed assets $ 3285 $ 2823 $ 3,803
Amartization of

computer software 12,661 3,426 6,964
Total depreciation and

amortization on fixed

assets and computer

software $15946 $ 6249 $ 10,767

Identifiable Intangible Assets and Gooadwill. As a result of

the SPA acquisition, certain long-term intangible assets were
identified and recorded at their estimated fair value. Amortization
expense for intangible assets for the year ended December 31,
2003 was $49,833. Amortization expense for these intangible
assets for each of the five succeeding years is estimated

to be approximately $50,000. The acguired long-term intangible
assets and their respective book values at December 31, 2003
are shown in the table below.

Directory Services Local customer National CMR
Agreements relationships relationships Trade names Total
Estimated useful life -- - 5S0years 15.years. . - - 30-years. - 15 years. -
Initial fair value $ 1,625,000 $ 200,000 $ 60,000 $ 30,000 $ 1,915,000
Accumulated amortization (32,500) (13,333) (2,000) (2,000) (49,833)
Net intangible assets $ 1,692,500 $ 186,667 $ 58,000 $ 28,000 $ 1,865,167

Directory services agreements between Sprint and the Company include a directory services license agreement, a trademark
license agreement and a non-competition agreement (collectively “Directory Services Agreements”) with certain affiliates of Sprint.
The directory services license agreement gives us the exclusive right to produce, publish and distribute directories for Sprint in
18 states where Sprint provided local telephone service at the time of the agreement. The trademark license agreement gives
us the exclusive right tc use certain specified Sprint trademarks, including the Sprint diamond logo, in those markets, and the
non-competition agreement prohibits Sprint in those markets from selling local directory advertising or producing, publishing and
distributing print directories, with certain limited exceptions. The fair value of these agreements was determined based on the
present value of estimated future cash flows and is being amortized using the straight-line method over 50 years.

The fair value of local and national customer relationships was determined based on the present value of estimated future
cash flows and historical attrition rates and is being amortized under an accelerated method that assumes the value derived from
customer relationships is greater in the earlier years and steadily declines over time. The weighted average useful life of these

relationships is 18 years.

The fair value of acquired trade names was determined based on the “relief from royalty” method, which values the trade
names based on the estimated amount that a company would have to pay in an arms length transaction to use these trade names.
These assets are being amortized using the straight-line method over 15 years.

The excess of the purchase price for SPA over the net tangible and identified intangible assets acquired was recorded as
goodwill. In accordance with SFAS 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, goodwill is not amortized, but is subject to
impairment testing. We tested goodwill for impairment and concluded that the goodwill amount of $37,040 at Pecember 31, 2003
was not impaired. The goodwill resuiting from the SPA acquisition was assigned to the Donnelley segment (see Note 14 for further

segment information).

Deferred Financing Costs. Costs associated with the issuance of debt instruments are capitalized and included in other non-
current assets on the consclidated balance sheet. These costs are amortized to interest expense over the terms of the related
debt agreements. The bond cutstanding method is used to amortize deferred financing costs relating to debt instruments with
respect to which we make accelerated principal payments. Other deferred financing costs are amortized using the straight-line
method. Amortization of deferred financing costs included in interest expense was $15,023, $1,273 and $957 in 2003, 2002

and 2001, respectively.




Advertising Expense. We recognize advertising expenses as
incurred. Thess expenses include public relations, media, on-
line advertising and other promotional and sponsorship costs.
Total advertising expenses were $8,797 in 2003. Prior to the SPA
acquisition, advertising costs were not significant.

Concentration of Credit Risk. Approximately 85% of our directo-
ry advertising evenue is derived from the sale of advertising to
local small- and medium-sized businesses. These advertisers
typically enter into twelve-month advertising sales contracts and
typically make monthly payments over the term of the contract.
Some advertisars prepay the full amount or a portion of the con-
tract value. If t1e advertisers qualify, we may extend credit to
them for their advertising purchase. Small- and medium-sized
businesses tend to have fewer financial resources and higher
failure rates than large businesses. In addition, full collection of
delinquent accounts can take an extended period of time and
involve significant costs. While we do not believe that extending
credit to our focal advertisers will have a material adverse effect
on our results of operations or financial condition, no assurances
can be given. We do not require collateral from our advertisers,
although we do charge interest to advertisers that do not pay
within specified due dates.

The remaining 15% of our directory advertising revenue is
derived from the sale of advertising to national or large regional
chains, such as rental car companies, automobile repair shops
and pizza delivery businesses. Substantially all of the revenue
derived through national accounts is serviced through Certified
Marketing Representatives ("CMRs") with which we contract.
CMRs are independent third parties that act as agents for
national companies. The CMRs are responsible for billing the
national custorners for their advertising. We receive payment for
the value of aclvertising placed in our directory, net of the CMR's
commission, directly from the CMR. While we are still exposed to
credit risk, the amount of losses from these accounts have his-
torically been less than the local accounts as the advertisers,
and in some cases, the CMRs tend to be larger companies with
greater financial resources than the local advertisers.

We maintain a significant receivable balance with SBC for
revenue participation and pre-press publishing services fees.
The revenue participation receivable is subject to adjustment,
based on collections by SBC from individual advertisers; howev-
er, the adjustrrent is limited based on contractual provisions.
The receivable is recorded at net realizable value. We do not
currently foresee a material credit risk associated with this
receivable, although there can be no assurance that full pay-
ment will be received on a timely basis.

At December 31, 2003, we had interest rate swap agree-
ments with major financial institutions with a notional value of
$405,000. We are exposed to credit risk in the event that one or
more of the counterparties to the agreements does not, or can-
not, meet their obligation. The notional amount is used to meas-
ure interest to 2e paid or received and does not represent the
amount of exposure to credit loss. The loss would be limited to
the amount that would have been received, if any, over the
remaining life of the swap agreement. The counterparties to the
swap agreements are major financial institutions with credit rat-
ings of A or higher. We do not currently foresee a material credit

risk associated with these swap agreements; however, no assur-
ances can be given.

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits. Pension and other
postretirement benefits represent estimated amounts to be paid
to employees in the future. The accounting for benefits reflects
the recognition of these benefit costs over the employee's
approximate service period based on the terms of the plan and
the investment and funding decisions made. The determination
of the benefit obligation and the net periodic pension and other
postretirement benefit costs requires management to make
assumptions regarding the discount rate, return on retirement
plan assets, increase in future compensation and healthcare
cost trends. Changes in these assumptions can have a signifi-
cant impact on the projected benefit obligation, funding require-
ment and net periodic benefit cost. The assumed discount rate
is the rate at which the pension benefits could be settied. We
use the rates on Aa corporate bonds as a basis for determining
our discount rate assumption. The expected long-term rate of
return on plan assets is based on the mix of assets held by the
plan and the expected long-term rates of return within each
asset class. The anticipated trend of future healthcare costs is
based on historical experience and external factors. See Note
11 for further information regarding our benefit plans.

Effective January 1, 2003, we reduced our rate of return on
plan assets from 9.75% to 8.25%. As a result of low investment
returns over the last few years, as well as our outlock for the
long term, particularly for equity securities, we determined that
the prior assumed rate of return of 9.75% no longer reflected our
best estimate of future long-term returns. Based on the current
investment environment and the pension plan's asset allccation,
we determined that a long-term rate of return of 8.25% better
reflected our expectations for future long-term returns.

Derivative Financial Instruments. We do not use derivative finan-
cial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. Our deriva-
tive financial instruments are limited to interest rate swap agree-
ments used to manage exposure to fluctuations in interest rates
on variable rate debt. These agreements effectively convert
$405,000 of our variable rate debt to fixed rate debt, mitigating
our exposure to changes in interest rates. Under the terms of the
swap agreements, we receive variable interest based on three-
month LIBOR and pay a weighted average fixed rate of 2.52%.
The swaps mature in October 2005 and March 2007. The
weighted average rate received was 1.2% in 2003. These peri-
odic payments and receipts are recorded as part of interest
expense.

The interest rate swaps have been designated as cash flow
hedges to hedge three-month LIBOR-based interest payments
on $405,000 of bank debt. To the extent the swaps provide an
effective hedge, changes in the fair value of the swaps are
recorded in other comprehensive income, a component of
shareholders’ deficit. Any ineffectiveness is recorded through
earnings. For the year ended December 31, 2003, our interest
rate swaps provided an effective hedge of the three-month
LIBOR-based interest payments on $405,000 of bank debt and
no ineffectiveness was included in earnings.

At December 31, 2002, we had an interest rate swap
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Part It, Item 8, Note 2, continued

agreement with a notional value of $75,000 and at December
31, 2001, we had interest rate swaps with a combined notional
value of $125,000. We made fixed-rate payments of 5.9% and
received variable-rate payments based on three-month LIBOR
rates. The weighted average rate received was 1.1% in 2002
and 3.0% in 2001. These periodic payments and receipts were
recorded as part of interest expense.

As a result of the pending SPA acquisition and contemplated
repayment of existing variable rate debt, the $75,000 notional
value interest rate swap did not qualify for hedge accounting
treatment at December 31, 2002, and thus, the unrecognized
fair market value of the swap, previously recognized in accumu-
lated other comprehensive loss on the balance sheet, was
charged to earnings. Accordingly, a charge of $1,523 was
included in other expense, net for the year ended December 31,
2002. Because the swap was held to maturity, a corresponding
gain was recegnized during 2003.

Income Taxes. We account for income taxes under the liability
method in accordance with SFAS 109, Accounting for income
Taxes. Deferred tax liabilities or assets reflect temporary differ-
ences between amounts of assets and liabilities for financial and
tax reporting. Such amounts are adjusted, as appropriate, to
reflect changes in tax rates expected to be in effect when the
temporary differences reverse. A valuation allowance is estab-
lished to offset any deferred tax assets if, based upon the avail-
able evidence, it is more likely than not that some or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. See Note 10 for more

(table shares in thousands)

information regarding our (benefit) provision for income taxes.

Earnings per Share. Basic earnings per common share (“EPS")
are generally calcutated by dividing income available to com-
mon shareholders by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding. However, because the outstanding
Preferred Stock contains certain participation rights, EITF Topic
D-95, Effect of Participating Securities on the Computation of
Basic Earnings Per Share (“Topic D-95"), requires that the dilu-
tive effect of those securities be included in the weighted aver-
age number of shares outstanding. Furthermore, Topic D-95
requires that the dilutive effect to be included in basic EPS may
be calculated using either the if-converted method or the two-
class method. However, the dilutive effect of the Preferred Stock
cannot be less than that which would result from the application
of the two-class method. We have elected to use the if-convert-
ed method in calculating basic EPS; however, during 2003 we
have reported EPS calculated using the two-class method
because it has been less than EPS calculated using the if-con-
verted method.

Diluted EPS are calculated by dividing income available to
common shareholders by the weighted average common shares
outstanding plus common share equivalents. Common stock
equivalents include stock options and warrants, the dilutive
effect of which is calculated using the treasury stock method,
and Preferred Stock, the dilutive effect of which is calculated
using the if-converted method. The calculation of basic and
diluted EPS for 2003 and 2002 is presented below.

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002

Basic EPS -~ if-Converted Method

(Loss) income available to common shareholders $ (108,350) $ 42475
Preferred Stock dividend 58,397 24,702
Net (loss) income $ (49,953) $ 67,177
Weighted average common shares outstanding 30,683 29,643
Weighted average common shares assuming conversion

of Preferred Stock 8,761 281"
Weighted average common and common equivalent shares outstanding 39,444 29,924
Basic (loss) earnings per share - if-converted method $ (1.27) $ 2.24

' At December 31, 2002, the Preferred Stock was convertible into 2,933,888 shares of commaen stock. However, since the $70,000 of
Preferred Stock was issued in November 2002, the number of common share equivalents included in the 2002 EPS calculation has been

weighted for the actual time the Preferred Stock was outstanding during the year.

(all shares in thousands)

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002

Basic EPS - Two-Class Method

(Loss) income available to common shareholders $ (108,350) $ 42,475
Amount allocable to common shares ? 78% 99%
Rights to undistributed (loss) income $ (84,513) $ 42,050
Weighted average common shares outstanding 30,683 29,643

Basic (loss) earnings per share - two-class method °

$ (3.53) $ 1.42




Diluted EPS

(Loss) income available to common shareholders $ (108,350) $ 42,475
Weighted average common shares outstanding 30,683 29,643
Diluted effect of stock options * - 655

Dilutive effect of Preferred Stock assuming Conversion * - -

Weighted average common and common equivalent
shares outstanding 30,683 30,298

Diluted (loss) #arnings per share - $ (3.53) $ 1.40

230,683/ (30,683 + 8,761) for the year ended December 31, 2003 and 29,643 / (29,643 + 281) for the year ended December 31, 2002,

2 Basic EPS calculated under the two-class method was a loss of $2.75 for the year ended December 31, 2003. However, when there
is & net foss in a period, the application of the two-class method is anti-dilutive. Accordingly, reported basic EPS are calculated as loss
available to comimon shareholders divided by the weighted average basic shares outstanding.

4 The effect of stock options in 2003 and the assumed conversion of the Preferred Stock in 2002 and 2003 were anti-dilutive and therefore
are not included in the calculation of diluted EPS.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, basic EPS are calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average commaon
shares outstanding during the year, and diluted EPS are calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average common
shares outstanding plus potentially dilutive common shares, primarily stock options.

Employee Stock Options. We follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock fssued to Employees
("APB 25”), and related interpretations in accounting for our stock option plan. Compensation expense related to the issuance of
stock options to employees or non-employee directors is only recognized if the exercise price of the stock option is less than the
fair market valLe of the underlying stock at the grant date.

The following table reflects the pro forma net (loss) income and (loss) earnings per share assuming we applied the fair
value method of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. The pro forma disclosures shown are not necessarily
representative of the effects on net (loss) income and (loss) earnings per share in future years.

2003 2002 2001

Net (loss) income, as reported $ (49,953) $ 67,177 $ 49,815

Add: Stock based compensation expense
included in reported net (loss) income,
net of related tax effects 1,162 144 364
Less: Stock based compensation expense
that would have been included in the
determination of net (loss) income if the
fair valu2 method had been applied to

all awards, net of related tax effects (4,828) (2,688) (2,558)

Prc forma net (loss) income (53,619) 64,633 47,621
Preferred dividend 58,397 24,702 -
Pro forma (loss) income available to

common shareholders $ (112,016) $ 39,931 $ 47621
Basic (loss) earnings per share

As reported $ (3.53) $ 1.42 $ 1.65

Pro forma $ (3.65) $ 1.33 3 1.58
Diluted (loss) earnings per share

As reported : : $ (3.53) $ 1.40 3 1.61

Pro forma $ (3.65) $ 1.32 $ 1.54

The weighted average fair value of stock options ($9.21 in 2003, $8.29 in 2002 and $8.81 in 2001) was estimated
on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

T ) 2003 2002 2001
Dividend yielc 0% 0% 0%
Expected volstility 35% 35% 35%
Risk-free interzst rate 2.6% 31% 4.8%
Expected holding period 4 years 4 years 4 years
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Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles requires manage-
ment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the report-
ed amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and certain expenses
and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual
results could differ materially from those estimates and assump-
tions. Estimates and assumptions are used in the determination
of sales allowances, allowances for doubtful accounts, deprecia-
tion and amortization, employee benefit plans and restructuring
reserves, among others.

Reclassifications. Certain prior year amounts have been reclas-
sified to conform to the current year’s presentation. These
reclassifications had no impact on previcusly reported results of
operations or shareholders’ deficit.

New Accounting Pronouncements. In May 2003, the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 150, Accounting for Certain
Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and
Equity (“SFAS 150"). This statement established standards for
the classification and measurement of certain financial instru-
ments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. The
statement was effective July 1, 2003. Our redeemable convert-
ible preferred stock represents a financial instrument with char-
acteristics of both liabilities and equity. We have applied the pro-
visions of SFAS 150 and determined that the classification and
measurement of our redeemable convertible preferred stock is
appropriate.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46,
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (“FIN 48"). In general,
a variable interest entity is a corporation, partnership, trust or
any other legal structure used for business purposes that either
(a) does not have equity investors with voting rights or (b) has
equity investors that do not provide sufficient financial resources
for the entity to support its activities. FIN 46 requires certain vari-
able interest entities to be consolidated by the primary benefici-
ary of the entity if the investors do not have the characteristics of
a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at
risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subor-
dinated financial support from other parties. The consolidation
requirements of FIN 46 apply immediately to variable interest
entities created after January 31, 2003. We adopted the provi-
sions of FIN 46 effective February 1, 2003 and such adoption
did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial
statements because we currently have no variable interest enti-
ties. In December 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46R with respect
to variable interest entities created before January 31, 2003,
which, among other things, revised the implementation date to
the first fiscal year or interim period ending after March 15,
2004, with the exception of Special Purpose Entities (“SPE"). The
consolidation requirements apply to all SPEs in the first fiscal
year or interim period ending after December 15, 2003. We
adopted the provisions of FIN 46R effective December 2003 and
such adoption did not have a material impact on our consolidat-
ad financial statements because we currently have no SPEs.

In April 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133
on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (“SFAS 149").
SFAS 149 amends and clarifies accounting for derivative instru-
ments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in
other contracts, and for hedging activities under SFAS 133.
SFAS 149 is effective for contracts and hedging relationships
entered into or modified after June 30, 2003. We adopted the
provisions of SFAS 149 effective June 30, 2008 and such adop-
tion did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial
statements.

In December 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation - Transition and Disclosure ("SFAS 148"). SFAS
148 amends the transition provisions of Statement of Financial
Acceunting Standards SFAS No.123, Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation (“SFAS 123"), for entities that voluntarily
change to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based
empioyee compensation. We do not currently intend to change
our accounting to the fair value method. SFAS 148 also amends
the disclosure provisions of SFAS 123 to require prominent dis-
closure about the effects on reported net income of an entity’s
accounting policy decisions with respect to stock-based
employee compensation and amends APB Opinion No. 28,
Interim Financial Reporting (“APB 28") 1o require disclosures
about such effects in interim financial information. We adopted
the disclosure provisions of SFAS 148 in the first quarter of 2003.

On December 8, 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug,
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the “Act”) was
signed into law. The Act introduces prescription drug care bene-
fits under Medicare and also allows for certain sponsors of
postretirement benefit plans with a drug benefit to receive a non-
taxable federal subsidy if certain criteria are met. In response to
the passage of this legislation, on January 12, 2004, the FASB
issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”") No. FAS 106-1, Accounting
and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare
Prescription Drug, improvement and Modernization Act of 2003.
The FSP permits employers that sponsor postretirement benefit
plans that provide prescription drug benefits to retirees to make
a one-time election to defer accounting for any effects of the
Act. In accordance with the FSP, Donnelley has elected to defer
accounting for any effects of the Act and accordingly, any meas-
ures of the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation or net
periodic postretirement benefit cost in the financial statements
and as disclosed in Note 11 - Benefits Plans do not reflect the
effects of the Act on Donnelley’s plans. Authoritative guidance
on the accounting for the federal subsidy is currently being con-
sidered by the FASB that, when issued, could require us to
change previously reported information.

in December 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS") No. 132 (revised 2003)
Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other

- Postretirement Benefits. SFAS No. 132 (revised 2003) amends

the disclosure requirements of SFAS 132 to require more com-
plete information about pension and postretirement benefits. It
does not change the measurement or recognition of those plans
required by SFAS No. 87, Empioyers’ Accounting for Pensions,



SFAS No. 88, Employers’ Accounting for Settlements and
Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for
Termination Benefits, and SFAS No. 106, Employers’ Accounting
for Postretiremiznt Benefits Other Than Pensions. We adopted
the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 132 (revised 2003) as of
December 31, 2003.

3. Acquisition of Sprint Publishing and Advertising

On January 3, 2003, we acquired SPA for $2,229,763. We are
now the publisner of 260 revenue-generating, Sprint-branded
yellow pages directories in 18 states. Prior to the acquisition, we
provided sales agency and pre-press publishing services for 44
of these directories in four states. The acquisition transformed
the Company-from-a sales agent and pre-press vendor into a
leading publisher of yellow pages directories. The results of the
SPA business are included in our consclidated results from and
after January &, 2003, the acguisition closing date. SPA is now
being operated as R.H. Donnelley Publishing & Advertising, Inc.
("RHDPA™), an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase business
combination in accordance with SFAS 141, Business
Combinations.

The sources and uses of funds in connection with the
acquisition are summarized below. See Notes 6 and 8 for infor-
mation regarding the financing for the SPA acquisition.

Sources:
Proceeds from the Credit Facility $ 1,410,000
Proceeds from the Notes 925,000
Proceeds from the sale of
convertible preferred stock
and warrants 200,000
Available cash 47,718
Total sources $ 2,582,718
Uses:
Purchase price $ 2,229,763
Payment of CznDon obligations 14,000
Repay existing debt,
including accrued interest 244,166
Fees and expenses 94,789
Total uses $ 2,582,718

" Caleulated prior to the application of a 1% closing payment and other fees.

The allocation of the cash purchase price to the fair value of
net assets acquired is summarized below.

Acquired intangible asset —

Directory Services Agreement $ 1,625,000
Acquired intangible asset -

Customer relationships 260,000
Acquired intangible asset —

Trademarks 30,000
Acquired tangible net assets 217,723
Goodwill 97,040
Total atlocaticn of cash purchase price $ 2,229,763

The purchase price was allocated to the tangible and identifi-
able intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based
on their respective estimated fair values on the acquisition date.
The fair value of certain long-term intangible assets were identi-
fied and recorded at their estimated fair value. Identifiable intan-
gible assets acquired included directory services agreements
between Sprint and us, customer relationships and acquired
trade names. At December 31, 2002, Donnelley had a net
receivable from SPA of $27,888. As a result of the acquisition,
this net receivable became an intercompany item and was
included as part of the purchase price.

Commercial agreements between Sprint and us include a
directory services license agreement, a trademark license
agreement and a non-competition agreement (collectively
“Directory Services Agreements”). The directory services license
agreement gives us the exclusive right to produce, publish and
distribute directories for Sprint in the markets where Sprint pro-
vided local telephone service at the time of the agreement. The
trademark license agreement gives us the exclusive right to use
certain specified Sprint trademarks, including the Sprint dia-
mond logo, in those markets, and the non-competition agree-
ment prohibits Sprint in those markets from selling local directory
advertising or producing, publishing and distributing print direc-
tories, with certain limited exceptions. These agreements are all
interrelated and each has an initial term of 50 years, subject to
earlier termination under specified circumstances. The fair value
assigned to these agreements of $1,625,000 was based on the
present value of estimated future cash flows, We also acquired
the established local and national customer relationships of SPA.
The value of these relationships was determined based on the
present value of estimated future cash flows and an analysis of
historical attrition rates. A value of $200,000 was assigned to the
local customer relationships and a value of $60,000 was
assigned to the national customer relationships. Finally, we also
acquired certain trade names historically used in the SPA direc-
tory business. A value of $30,000 was assigned to the trade
names based on the “relief from royalty” method, which values
the trade names based on the estimated amount that a compa-
ny would have to pay in an arms length transaction to use these
trade names. The excess of the purchase price over the fair
value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed was recog-
nized as goodwill.

In accordance with SFAS 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets, the fair value of the identifiable intangible
assets will be amortized over their estimated useful lives in a
manner that best reflects the economic benefits derived from
such assets. Goodwill is not amortized but is subject to impair-
ment testing on an annual basis.

Under purchase accounting rules, we did not assume the
deferred revenue balance of SPA at January 3, 20083 of
$315,911. This amount represented revenue that would have
been recognized subsequent to the acquisition under the defer-
ral and amartization recognition method had the acquisition not
occurred. Accordingly, we did not record revenue associated
with directories that were published prior to the acquisition and
during January 2003. Althcugh the deferred revenue balance
was eliminated, we retained all the rights associated with the
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collection of amounts due under and obligations under the advertising contracts executed prior to the SPA acquisition. As a result,
SPA’s billed and unbilled accounts receivable balances became assets of Donnelley. Also under purchase accounting rules,
we did not assume or record deferred directory costs at January 3, 2003 related to those directories that were published prior to the
acquisition and during January 2003. These costs represented operating expenses that would have been recognized subsequent
to the acquisition under the deferral and amortization method had the acquisition not occurred.

A summarized condensed balance sheet of the Company at January 3, 2003 is presented below.

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,697
Accounts receivable, net 287,713
Other current assets 21,139
Current assets 316,549
Fixed assets, net 23,988
Partnership investment 185,969
.. Deferred. financing. costs. 75,670
Other non-current assets 24,483
Intangible assets 1,815,000
Goodwill 97,040
Total assets $ 2,638,699

Liabilities, Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock and Shareholders’ Equity

Current liabilities $ 47,147
Current portion long-term debt 58,668
Current liabilities 105,818
Long-term debt 2,297,577
Other non-current liabilities 75,709
" Total fiabilities A~ £ 1 | 0
Redeemable convertible preferred stock 143,553
Shareholders’ equity 16,045
Total Liabilities, Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock and Shareholders' Equity $ 2,638,699

Summarized unaudited condensed pro forma information for the year ended December 31, 2002 assuming the SPA acquisition
occurred on January 1, 2002 is presented below. The following unaudited pro forma information does not purport to represent what
the combined entity’s results of operations would actually have been if the transaction had in fact occurred on January 1, 2002

and is not necessarily representative of results of operations for any future period.

Net revenue $ 571,282
Operating income 346,779
Net income 99,283
Preferred dividend 78,860
Income available to common shareholders 20,423

4. Restructuring and Special Charge

As a result of the SPA acquisition, we have consolidated pub-
lishing and technology operations, sales offices and administra-
tive personnel and we are relocating the headquarters functions
in Overland Park, Kansas and Purchase, New York to Cary,
North Carolina during 2004 (collectively the “2003 Restructuring
Actions”). Approximately 140 people were affected by the shut-
down of the Tennessee publishing facility and have been includ-
ed in the restructuring reserve. In addition, approximately 140
pecple will be affected by the relocation of the headguarters
functions in Overland Park, Kansas and Purchase, New York, of
which 75 have been included in the restructuring reserve. The
remaining 65 people are expected to be relocating with the
Company.

In 2003, $2,878 was charged to goodwill representing the
closure of the pre-press publishing facility operated by SPA and
severance paid to certain SPA executives who were terminated
immediately upon the closing of the acquisition. The reserve for
the pre-press publishing facility was $2,181 and represents the
remaining lease payments, net of estimated sub-lease income.
These payments will be made through 2012. The severance for
SPA executives of $697 has been paid in full.

In 2003, $9,531 was charged to earnings primarily repre-
senting severance and related costs associated with the
consolidation of the publishing and technology operations, sales
offices and administrative personnel and the relocation of our
headquarters. Payments of $3,213 were made during 2003 and
the remaining costs will be paid in 2004 and 2005.

In 2001, we recognized a restructuring and special charge
of $18,556 consisting of a special charge of $9,937 in connec-
tion with a transition in executive management and a restructur-
ing charge of $8,619 in connection with the expiration of a
pre-press publishing contract in December 2002. As a result
of the pending SPA acquisition during late 2002, management
determined that certain costs originally anticipated in the
restructuring charge would not be incurred. Specifically, the
idle leased space in the Merrisville publishing facility would be
utilized, planned severance and other related costs would be
significantly less and we believed at that time, the corporate
headquarters would not be relocated. Accordingly, $6,694 of the
original charge was reversed during 2002. During 2003, these
restructuring actions were completed, resulting in payments
of $1,162 and the remaining balance of $513 was reversed and
included in income.



The table below shows the activity in our restructuring reserves during 2001, 2002 and 2003.

2001 2003
Restructuring Restructuring
Actions Actions Total
Restructuring and special charge $ 18,556 $ 18,556
Reclass of related liabilities 2,735 2,735
Balance at December 31, 2001 21,291 . 21,291
Payments applied against reserve (13,211) (13,211)
Payments charged to expense 289 289
Reserve reversal (6,694) (6,694)
Balance at December 31, 2002 1,675 1,675
Aclditions to reserve charged to goodwill - $ 2,878 2,878
Additions to reserve charged to earnings - 9,531 9,531
Payments (1,162) (3,910) (5,072)
Reserve reve-sal (513) - (513)
Balance at Diacember 31, 2003 $ - $ 8,499 $ 8,499

5. Investment Impairment Charges

We have a 9% interest in ChinaBig.com Limited (“ChinaBig"), which publishes yellow pages directories and offers internet
directory services in the People’s Republic of China. In 2001, an independent third party valuation of ChinaBig’s current
business plan capital needs and outlook for profitability and cash flow, prepared in connection with a proposed equity financing
by ChinaBig, indicated that the carrying value of our investment was permanently impaired. As a result of this valuation, we
recorded an irnpairment charge of $11,432 in 2001. Further, in 2002, ChinaBig did not achieve its sales objective or generate
sufficient operating cash flows to fund cperations and meet its obligations and needed to obtain shareholder lcans to make up
the cash shortfall. As a result, management believed that sufficient doubt existed as to ChinaBig's ability to raise sufficient

cash either through operations or additional investments and that this investment would not provide any value in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, during 2002 an additional impairment charge of $2,000 was recognized to write-off the remaining book value
of this investrent. These investment impairment charges have been included in general and administrative expensas on the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

6. Long-Term Debt, Credit Facilities and Notes

Long-term debt at December 31, 2003 and 2002, consisted of the following:

2003 2002

Credit Facility $ 1,145,888 $ 900,000
8 7/8% Senior Notes due 2010 325,000 325,000
10 7/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2012 600,000 600,000
9 1/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2008 21,245 150,000
Former Term Facilities - 114,250
Total 2,092,133 2,089,250
Less current pertion 49,586 13,780
Long-term debt $ 2,042,547 $ 2,075,470

In connection with the SPA acquisition, in late 2002 we entered into a $1,525,000 Credit Facility ("Credit Facility”), consisting of a
$500,000 Term Loan A, a $900,000 Term Loan B and a $125,000 Revolving Credit Facllity (the “Revolver"), and issued $325,000 8
7/8% Senior Notes (“Senior Notes”) and $600,000 10 7/8% Senior Subordinated Notes (“Subordinated Notes,” and collectively with
the Senior Nofes, the “Notes”). At December 31, 2003, the fair values of Senior Notes and the Subordinated Notes were $365,625
and $711,750, respectively. We also issued $200,000 of 8% redeemable convertible cumulative preferred stock (“Preferred Stock”)
and warrants "o purchase 1,650,000 shares of our Common Stock to partnerships affiliated with the Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
(collectively, "he GS Funds”"). These funds were used to acquire SPA, pay transaction costs, repurchase a portion of the existing

9 1/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2008 (“Pre-acquisition Notes”) pursuant to a tender offer, and repay the former term facilities.
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On December 8, 2003, we amended our Credit Facility, to
accomplish-the following objectives:

m obtain more favorable pricing on our variable rate debt;

m adjust non-financial covenants to make them less restrictive
for corporate-operating-flexibility; -

m obtain the cash resources and the consent for us to redeem
the remaining outstanding Pre-acquisition Notes; and

a obtain consent for a new Term Loan C for potential borrowings
up to $400 million, such proceeds, if borrowed, to be used to
fund acquisitions and retirement of existing Notes and redemp-
tion of equity, subject to certain limitations.

The amendment to our Credit Facility created a new Term Loan
A-2, replacing the initial Term Loan A and created a new Term
Loan B-2 replacing the initial Term Loan B. In connection with
the amendment, we borrowed an additional $32,000 under the
Term Loan B-2. These proceeds were used to redeem the bal-
ance of the Pre-acquisition Notes and pay transaction costs,
including a prepayment premium of $8,930 representing 1% of
the balance of Term Loan B outstanding on the date of the
amendment. The weighted average interest rate of outstanding
debt under the Credit Facility was 3.9% at December 31, 2003
and under the former term facilities was 6.7% during 2002. The
amendment to the Credit Facility was accounted for as a modifi-
cation of the underlying debt instruments.

As amended, our Credit Facility bears interest, at our
option at either:

m The higher of (i) a base rate as determined by Deutsche
Bank Securities Inc., Salomon Smith Barney Inc. or Bear,
Stearns & Co. Inc., plus a 2.50% margin on the Revolver and a
1.50% margin on the Term Loans A-2 and B-2; and (ii) the
Federal Funds Effective Rate (as defined) plus 1/2 of 1%, plus a
2.50% margin on the Revolver and a 1.50% margin on the Term
Loans A-2 and B-2; or

m LIBOR rate plus a 3.50% margin on the Revolver and a 2.25%
margin on the Term Loans A-2 and B-2. We may elect interest
periods of 1, 2, 3, 6, 9 or 12 months for LIBOR borrowings.

The Credit Facility, as amended, and the indentures governing
the Notes contain usual and customary negative covenants that,
among other things, place limitations on our ability to (i) incur
additional indebtedness, including capital leasées and liens; (i)
pay dividends and repurchase our capital stock; (iii) enter into
mergers, consolidations, acquisitions, asset dispositions and
sale-leaseback transactions; {iv) make capital expenditures; and
{v) issue capital stock of our subsidiaries. The Credit Facility
also contains financial covenants relating to maximum consoli-
dated leverage, minimum interest coverage, minimum fixed
charge coverage and maximum senior secured leverage as
defined therein. The Revolver and Term Loan A-2 mature in
December 2008 and the Term Loan B-2 matures in June 2010.
Substantially all of our assets, including the capital stock of our
subsidiaries, are pledged to secure our obligations under the
Credit Facility.

On January 3, 2003, we repurchased through a tender offer
and exit consent solicitation $128,800 of the Pre-acquisition
Notes. We borrowed an initial $1,410,000 under the Credit
Facility contingent upon our repurchase of the entire $150,000
aggregate principal amount of the Pre-acquisition Notes. Any
proceeds that were not used to repurchase the Pre-acquisition _
Notes were required to be repaid to the lenders under the Credit
Facility. Accordingly, $21,200, representing the amount of Pre-
acquisition Notes that remained outstanding following the tender
offer and exit consent sclicitation, was repaid to the lenders
under the Credit Facility shortly after the consummation of the
SPA acquisition. On February 6, 2004, utilizing the proceeds
from Term Loan B-2, we redeemed the remaining aggregate
principal amount of the Pre-acquisition Notes. See Note 18,
Subsequent Events. Prior to redemption, interest was paid on
the Pre-acquisition Notes on a semi-annual basis.

As of December 31, 2003, there were no borrowings under
the Revolver. Interest is paid on the Notes semi-annually on June
15 and December 15, commencing June 15, 2003. The Senior
Notes mature in 2010 and are redeemable at our option begin-
ning in 20086 at the following prices:

Redemption Year Price
20086 104.438%
2007 102.219%
2008 and thereafter 100%

The Senior Subordinated Notes mature in 2012 and
are redeemable at our option beginning in 2007 at the
following prices:

Redemption Year Price
2007 105.438%
2008 103.625%
2009 101.813%
2010 and thereafter 100%

On January 3, 2003, we repaid the former term facilities consist-
ing of $74,250 outstanding balances under committed bank
facilities and $40,000 outstanding under our then-existing
$100,000 revolving credit facility. The former term facilities bore
interest at floating rates based on a spread over LIBOR or the
greater of either the prime rate or the Fed Funds rate plus 50
basis points, at our election.

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt at December 31,
2003 were:

2004 $ 49,586
2005 49,586
2006 49,586
2007 59,711
2008 80,956
Thereafter 1,802,708
Total $ 2,092,133




7. Partnership Investment

DonTech. DonTech acts as the exclusive sales agent for yeliow
pages directories published by SBC in illinois and northwest
indiana. Income from DonTech consists of 50% of the net profits
of DonTech and revenue participation income received directly
from SBC, which is based on the value of advertising sales.
Income from DonTech consisted of the following:

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

50% share of

DonTech net profits  $ 17,347 $ 18,480 $ 19,313
Revenue part cipation

income 96,705 98,666 103,106
Total DonTech income  $ 114,052 $117,146 $122,419

Summarized financial information of DonTech is shown in the
table below. These results are not consolidated in our financial
statements.

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Net revenues $ 99,711 $101,792 $106,849
Operating income $ 33,526 $ 35230 $ 37435
Net income $ 34,694 $ 36,959 $ 38,626

Total assets of DonTech were $117,506 at December 31, 2003.
Our investment in DonTech, including the revenue participation
receaivable frorn SBC, was $175,728 and $185,969 at December
31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

CenDon. Throcugh 2002, we were the exclusive sales agent in
certain markets in Nevada, Florida, Virginia and North Carolina
for CenDon, a joint venture with Centel Directory Company
(“Centel”), a subsidiary of Sprint. Income from CenDon consist-
ed of a priority distribution based on a percentage of CenDon
advertising sa'es. Income from CenDon was $19,727 and
$17,545 in 2002 and 2001, respectively. In connection with the
SPA acquisition, we became the sole owner of CenDon. The
operating restlts of CenDon subsequent to the SPA acquisition
are included in our consolidated results of operations.

8. Redeemable Preferred Stock and Warrants

We have 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock autherized for
issuance. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, we had 200,604
and 70,000 srares of Preferred Stock outstanding, respectively.
On January 3, 2003, we issued through a private place-
ment 130,000 shares of Preferred Stock and warrants to pur-
chase 1,072,500 shares of our common stock to the GS Funds
for gross proceeds of $130,000. In November 2002, we issued

through a private placement 70,000 shares of Series B-1
Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase 577,500 shares of our
common stock to the GS Funds, for aggregate gross considera-
tion of $70,000. On January 3, 2003, the 70,000 shares of
Series B-1 Preferred Stock automatically converted into 70,604
shares of Preferred Stock. The Preferred Stock, and any accrued
and unpaid dividends, are convertible into common stock at any
time after issuance at a price of $24.05 and earns a cumulative
dividend of 8% compounded quarterly. We cannot pay cash
dividends on the Preferred Stock through September 2005, dur-
ing which time the dividend will accrue. After October 1, 2005,
we may pay the Preferred Stock dividend in cash, subject

to any limitations under our Credit Facility, or allow it to accrue,
at our option.

We may redeem the Preferred Stock in cash at any time on
or after January 3, 2006 if the market price (as defined) of our
common stock exceeds 200% of the conversion price for 30 of
45 trading days. The Preferred Stock is redeemable in cash by
us at any time on or after January 3, 2013. The Preferred Stock
is redeemable in cash at the option of the GS Funds in the event
of a change in control (as defined). At December 31, 2003, the
redemption value of the Preferred Stock was $216,998 and it
was convertible into 9,022,798 shares of common stock.

The net proceeds received from the issuance of Preferred
Stock in January 2003 and November 2002 were allocated to
the Preferred Stock, warrants and the beneficial conversion fea-
ture (“BCF") of the Preferred Stock based on their relative fair
values. The fair value of the Preferred Stock was estimated using
the Dividend Discount Method, which determines the fair value
based on the discounted cash flows of the security. The BCF is
a function of the conversion price of the Preferred Stock, the fair
value of the warrants and the fair market value of the underlying
common stock on the date of issuance. The fair value of the
warrants of $12.18 on January 3, 2003 and $10.43 in November
2002 was determined based on the Black-Scholes model, with
the following assumptions:

Dividend yield 0%
Expected volatility 35%
Risk-free interest rate 3.0%

Expected holding period 5 years

In connection with each issuance of our Preferred Stock and
each subsequent quarterly dividend date, a BCF was recorded
because the fair value of the underlying common stock at the
time of issuance was greater than the conversion price of the
Preferred Stock. The BCF is treated as a deemed dividend
because the Preferred Stock was convertible intc common stock
immediately after issuance. The Preferred Stock dividend in
2003 and 2002 of $58,397 and $24,702, respectively, consisted
of the stated 8% dividend of $16,454 and $544, respectively,
and a BCF of $41,943 and $24,158, respectively.
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9. Stock Option Plans

We maintain a shareholder approved stock option plan whereby
certain employees and non-employee directors are eligible to
receive stock options, stock appreciation rights, limited stock
appreciation rights in tandem with stock options and deferred
shares. Options are typically granted at the fair market value of
our common stock at the date of the grant. We follow APB No.
25, and related interpretations in accounting for our stock option
plan, and, accordingly, we typically do not recognize compensa-
tion expense related to the issuance of stock options. The
options expire not more than ten years from the grant date and
the Board determines termination, vesting and other relevant
provisions at the date of the grant. We have yet to grant any
stock appreciation rights or fimited stock appreciation rights.

Non-employee directors receive options to purchase 1,500
shares and an award of 1,500 deferred shares upon election to
the Board. Non-employee directors also receive, on an annual
basis, options to purchase 1,500 shares and an award of 1,500
deferred shares. Non-employee directors may also elect to
receive additional options in lieu of all or a portion of their annual
cash retainer fee.

Changes in options outstanding under our stock option plan for

the last three years were as follows:
Weighted
Average Exercise
Shares  Price Per Share

Options outstanding,

December 31, 2000 2,898,585 $14.35
Granted 539,084 25.23
Exercised (585,913) 12.82
Canceled or expired (222,402) 17.22

Options outstanding,

December 31, 2001 2,629,354 16.70
Granted 1,925,995 26.01
Exercised (255,386) 14.70
Canceled or expired (17,342) 24.82

Options outstanding,

December 31, 2002 4,282,621 20.97
Granted 484,676 30.54
Exercised (1,278,643) 16.76
Canceled or expired (144,242) 25.28

Options outstanding,

December 31, 2003 3,344,412 $23.78
Available for future grants at

December 31, 2003 1,608,008

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2003:

Stock Options Outstanding

Stock Options Exercisable

Weighted Average
Remaining Contractual Average Exercise

Weighted Weighted

Average Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Shares Life (in years} Price Per Share Shares Price Per Share
$ 999 - $14.75 260,302 3.3 $ 1298 260,302 $12.98
15.22 - 19.41 560,269 5.0 $ 15.74 536,786 $15.70
2475 - 2554 1,676,861 6.0 $ 2545 512,126 $25.32
26.45 - 29.59 442,555 5.4 $27.74 215,979 $27.18
$30.11 - $39.21 404,425 6.1 $ 3062 1,000 $ 30.11
3,344,412 5.5 $23.78 1,626,193 $ 2010

At December 31, 2002, there were 4,282,621 options outstanding at a weighted average exercise price per share of $20.97 and
1,664,657 options exercisable at a weighted average exercise price per share of $15.18. At December 31, 2001, there were
2,629,354 options outstanding at a weighted average exercise price per share of $16.70 and 1,350,153 options exercisable at a

weighted average exercise price per share of $14.02.

The options granted in 2002 included a grant of 1,486,000 options (“Founders Grant”) to certain employees, including senior
management, in connection with the SPA acguisition. These options were granted in October 2002 with a strike price equal to the fair
market value of the Company's cormmon stock on the date of grant. However, the award of these options was contingent upen the
successful closing of the SPA acquisition. Therefore, these options were subject to forfeiture until January 3, 2003, by which time the
fair market value of the Company’s common stock exceeded the strike price. Accordingly, these options were accounted for as com-

pensatory options and resuited in a charge of $1,705 in 2003.

The sale of Preferred Stock in connection with the SPA acquisition triggered a change in control under the terms of the
Company'’s stock option plans. Accordingly, all options granted through the end of 2002, with the exception of the Founders Grant
options and options held by senior management (who waived the change in control provisions), became fully vested.



10. Income Taxes

Provision (bensfit) for income taxes consisted of:

2003 2002 2001

Current provision (benefit)

U.S. Federal $ 4768 $ 31545 $39977

State and local (556) 5,110 4,313
Toial current provision 4,212 36,655 44,290
Deferred (benefit) provision

U.S. Federal (31,722) 6,915 (7,233)

State and local (8,508) 1,236 (1,048)
Total deferrecl (benefit)

provision (40,230) 8,151 (8,281)
(Benefit) provision for

income taxes $ (36,018) $ 44,806 $ 36,009

The following “able summarizes the significant differences
between the U.S, Federal statutory tax rate and our effective
tax rate.

2003 2002 2001

Statutory U.S. Federal ‘
tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State and local taxes,
net of U.S. Federal

tax benefit 6.8 3.6 2.5
Non-deductible expense - 1.4 4.4
Effective tax -ate 41.8% 40.0% 41.9%

Deferred tax assets and liabilities consisted of the following
at December 31, 2003 and 2002:

2003 2002
Deferred tax assets
Reorganization and
restructuring costs $ 3245 $§ 774
Bad debts 3,869 1,837
Postretirement benefits 2,267 2,246
Capital lo3s carryforward 5,738 6,094
Net operzting loss
carryforwards 71,101 -
Other 9,283 1,450

95,503 12,401
{5,738) (6,094)

Total deferred taxes
Valuation allowance

Net defer-ed tax assets 89,765 6,307

Deferred tax liabilities

Equity investment 52,399 56,216
Pension 7,652 8,556
Depreciation and amortization 48,712 2,318
Other 1,555 -
Total deferred tax liabilities 110,318 67,090

Net deferred tax liability $ 20,553 $60,783

The 2003 tax benefit is based on an effective tax rate of 41.8%
and results from the tax benefit generated in 2003 attributable to
a net operating loss of approximately $176,000 related to tax
deductions ir connection with the SPA acquisition. The federal
net operating loss carryforward will begin to expire in 2023, and
the state net operating loss carryforwards will begin to expire in

2008. The 2003 effective tax rate reflects an increase in the state
and local tax rate as a result of the acquisition of SPA, combined
with the favorable settlement in 2003 of certain prior year state
and local tax audits.

The 2002 and 2001 tax provision is based on an effective
tax rate of 40.0% and 41.9%, respectively, and was adversely
impacted by the ChinaBig investment impairment charges of
$2,000 and $11,432 in 2002 and 2001, respectively. In 2002 and
2001, a valuation allowance was established for the deferred tax
asset generated by the write-down of the ChinaBig investment.
The write-down of this investiment was treated as a capital loss
for income tax purposes, which can only be offset against capi-
tal gains. We do not believe that future capital gains will be gen-
erated to offset against this capital loss. Accordingly, a valuation
allowance was established for the total amount of the ChinaBig
investment. However, with regard to the other deferred tax
assets, we believe that we will obtain the full benefit of such
assets based on an assessment of the Company’s anticipated
profitability during the years the deferred tax assets are expect-
ed to become tax deductions.

11. Benefit Plans

Retirement Plans. We have a defined benefit pension plan cov-
ering substantially all employees with at least one year of serv-
ice. The benefits to be paid to employees are based on years of
service and a percentage of total annual compensation. The
percentage of compensation allocated to a retirement account
ranges from 3.0% to 12.5% depending on age and years of
service (“cash balance benefit"). Benefits for certain employees
who were participants in the predecessor The Dun & Bradstreet
Corporation (“D&B") defined benefit pension plan are also deter-
mined based on the participant’s average compensation and
years of service (“final average pay benefit") and benefits to be
paid will equal the greater of the final average pay benefit or the
cash balance benefit. Pension costs are determined using the
projected unit credit actuarial cost method. Our funding policy is
to contribute an amount at least equatl to the minimum legal
funding requirement. No contributions were required to be made
in 2003, 2002 or 2001. The underlying pension plan assets are
invested in diversified portfolios consisting primarily of equity
and debt securities. We use a measurement date of December
31 for the majority of our plan assets.

We alsc have an unfunded non-qualified defined benefit
pension plan, the Pension Benefit Equalization Plan ("PBEP”),
which covers senior executives and certain key employees.
Benefits are based on years of service and compensation
(including compensation not permitted to be taken into account
under the previously mentioned defined benefit pension plan).
We also had an additional unfunded non-qualified defined bene-
fit plan, the Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan (“SEBP"),
which was discontinued at the end of 2001.

We offer a defined contribution savings plan to substantial-
ly all employees and contribute $0.50 for each dollar contributed
by a participating employee, up to a maximum of €% of each
participating employee's salary (including bonus and commis-
sions). Contributions under this plan were $1,142, $724 and
$776 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.
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Other Postretirement Benefits. We have an unfunded postretirement benefit plan that provides certain healthcare
and life insurance benefits to those fuli-time employees who reach retirement age while working for the Company.
A summary of the funded status of the benefit plans at December 31, 2003 and 2002 was as follows:

Retirement Plans Postretirement Plan

2003 2002 2003 2002
Change in benefit obligation
Benefit abligation, beginning of period $ 57,862 $ 50,660 $ 5,840 $ 5,270
Service cost 3,246 1,414 490 140
Interest cost 3,671 3,726 490 370
Plan participant contributions - - 120 70
Amendments (14) 9 2,830 -
Actuarial loss 4,161 4,960 2,220 280
Benefits paid {3,208) (2,907) (700) (290)
Benefit obligation, end of period $ 65718 $ 57,862 $ 11,290 $ 5,840
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of period $ 56,108 $ 63,762 $ - $ -
Return on plan assets 1,895 (4,818) - -
Employer contributions 3 71 580 220
Plan participant contributions - - 120 70
Benefits paid (3,208) (2,907) (700) (290)
Fair value of plan assets, end of period $ 64,798 $ 56,108 $ - $ -
Funded status of pians $ (920) $ (1,754) $ (11,2000 § (5.840)
Unrecognized net loss 20,965 22,789 2,440 320
Unrecognized prior service costs 1,069 1,191 2,600 (300)
Net amount recognized $ 21,114 $ 22,226 $ (6,250) $ (5,820)

Net amounts recognized in the consclidated balance sheets at December 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

Retirement Plans Postretirement Plan
2003 2002 2003 2002
Other non-current assets $ 21,704 $ 22,748 $ - 3 -
Cther non-current liabilities (590) (522) {6,250) (5,820)
Net amount recognized $ 21,114 $ 22226 $ (6,250) $ (5,820)
The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $61,143 and $53,299 at December 31, 2003
and 2002, respectively.
The projected benefit obligation and accumulated benefit obligation for the unfunded PBEP at December 31, 2003
and 2002 was as follows:
2003 2002
Projected benefit obligation $ 678 800
Accumulated benefit obligation $ 529 247
The net periodic benefit expense (income) of the retirement plans for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001 was as follows:
2003 2001 2001
Service cost $ 3,246 $ 1,414 $ 1,876
Interest cost 3,671 3,726 3,777
Expected return on plan assets (5,910} (6,852) (6,690)
Unrecognized prior service cost 108 145 210
Net pericdic benefit expense (income) $ 1,115 $ (1667) $ (827)




Additionally, a charge of $4,823 was recognized in 2001 for
special benefits, the settlement of a portion of the liability under
the PBEP and ihe curtailment of the SEBP in connection with the
executive management transition arrangements. These costs
were included as part of the restructuring and special charge.
The following assumptions were used in determining
the benefit obligations for the retirement plans and postretire-
ment plan:

2003 2002 2001
Weighted average
discount rate 6.00% 6.50% 7.25%
Rate of increzse in
future comr pensation 3.66% 3.66% 4.41%

The following assumptions were used in determining the net
periodic benelit expense (income) for the retirement plans:

2003 2002 2001
Weighted average
discount rate 6.50% 7.25% 7.50%
Rate of increzise in
future compensation 3.66% 4.41% 4.66%
Expected return on
plan assets 8.25% 9.75% 9.75%

The weighted average discount rate used to determine the net
periodic expense for the postretirement plan was 6.5%, 7.25%
and 7.50% for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

For 2004, we will use a rate of 8.25% as the expected iong-
term rate of return assumption on plan assets for the retirement
plan. This assumption is based on the plan’'s present target
asset allocaticn of 65% equity securities and 35% debt securi-
ties. It reflects long-term capital market return forecasts for the
asset classes employed, assumed excess returns from active
management within each asset class, the portion of plan assets
that are actively managed, and periodic rebalancing back to tar-
get allocations. Current market factors such as inflation and
interest rates are evaluated before the long-term capital market
assumptions are determined. Although we review our expected
long-term rate of return assumption annually, our plan perform-
ance in any one particular year does not, by itself, significantly
influence our =valuation. Our assumption is generally not revised
unless there is a fundamental change in one of the factors upon
which it is based, such as the target asset allocation or long-
term capital market return forecasts.

The net periodic benefit expense of the postretirement
plan for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
was as follows:

2003 2002 2001
Service cost $ 490 $ 140 $ 120
Interest cost 490 370 360

Amortization of

unrecognized prior

service credit (70) (70) (70)
Amortization of

unrecognized net loss 100 - -
Net periodic benefit
expense $ 1,010 $ 440 $ 410

The following table reflects assumed healthcare cost trend rates.

2003 2002
Healthcare cost trend rate
assumed for next year 9.5% 10.0%
Rate to which the cost trend
rate is assumed to decline 5.0% 5.0%
Number of years that it takes to
reach the ultimate trend rate 10 9

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have a significant effect
on the amounts reported for healthcare plans. A one-percent-
age-point change in assumed healthcare cost trend rates would
have the following effects:

One One
Percentage-Point Percentage-Point
Increase Decrease

Effect on total of service and
interest costs $ 30 $  (30)
Effect on postretirement
benefit obligation 1,480 {1,300)
The pension plan weighted-average asset allocation at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, by assets category, are as

follows:

Plan Assets at December 31,

2003 2002
Equity securities 67% 82%
Debt securities 33% 38%
Total 100% 100%

A total return investment approach in which a mix of equity and
debt investments are used to maximize the long-term return on
plan assets at a prudent level of risk. The plan’s target asset
allocation is presently 65% equity securities and 35% debt secu-
rities. The target allocation is controlled by periodic rebalancing
back to target. Plan assets are invested using a combination of
active and passive (indexed) investment strategies.

The plan's equity securities are diversified across U.S. and
non-U.S. stocks. The plan's debt securities are diversified princi-
pally among securities issued or guaranteed by the United
States government or its agencies, mortgage-backed securities,
including collateralized mertgage obligations, investment-grade
corporate debt obligations and dollar-denominated obligations
issued in the U.S. and by non-U.S. banks and corporations.

Investment risk is controlled through diversification
among asset classes, managers and securities. Risk is further
controlled at the investment manager level by requiring active
managers to follow formal written investment guidelines.
Investment results are measured and monitored on an ongoing
basis, and quarterly investment reviews are conducted. The
plan’s active United States investment manager is prohibited
from investing plan assets in equity or debt securities issued
or guaranteed by RHD. However, the plan may hold Donnelley
stock if it is part of a total United States equity market index
fund in which the plan invests.

We do not expect to make significant contributions to the
retirement and postretirement benefit plans in 2004.
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12. Commitments

We lease office facilities ang equipment under operating leases
with non-cancelable lease terms expiring at various dates
through 2015. Rent and lease expense for 2003, 2002 and 2001
was $10,171, $3,090 and $3,534, respectively. The future non-
cancelable minimum rental payments applicable to operating
leases at December 31, 2003 are:

2004 $ 5,169
2005 3,810
2006 3,445
2007 3,911
2008 3,973
Thereafter 15,492
Total $ 35,800

We have entered into a long-term purchase agreement for
paper used in the publishing of our directories. The purchase
commitment for the paper is with one supplier and is estimated,
based on minimum required quantities, 1o aggregate approxi-
mately $43,260 through 2006. Minimum purchases required
under this agreement are $13,920 in 2004, $14,220 in 2005 and
$15,120 in 20086.

13. Litigation

We are involved in various legal proceedings arising in the ordi-
nary course of our business, as well as certain litigation and tax
matters described below. We periodically assess our liabilities
and contingencies in connection with these matters based upon
the latest information available to us. For those matters where it
is probable that we have incurred a loss and the loss or range of
loss can be reasonably estimated, we record reserves in our
consolidated financial statements. In other instances, we are
unable to make a reasonable estimate of any liability because of
the uncertainties related to both the probable outcome and
amount or range of loss. As additional information becomes
available, we adjust our assessment and estimates of such lia-
bilities accordingly.

Based on our review of the latest information available, we
believe our ultimate liability in connection with pending legal
proceedings, including the litigation and tax matters described
below, will not have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations, cash flows or financial position, as described below.

In order to understand our potential exposure under the liti-
gation and tax matters described below under the captions
“Information Resources, Inc.” and “Tax Matters,” you need to
understand the rélat\'onship between us and D&B, and certain of
our predecessors and affiliates that, through various corporate
reorganizations and contractual commitments, have assumed
varying degrees of responsibility with respect to such matters.

In November 1996, the company then known as The Dun &
Bradstreet Corporation separated through a spin-off (“1996
Distribution”) into three separate public companies: The Dun
and Bradstreet Corperation, ACNielsen Corporation
(“ACNielsen”), and Cognizant Corporation (“Cognizant”). In June

1998, The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation separated through a
spin-off (“1998 Distribution”) into two separate public compa-
nies: R.H. Donnelley Corporation (formerly The Dun & Bradstreet
Corporation) and a new company that changed its name to The
Dun & Bradstreet Corporation. Later in 1998, Cognizant separat-
ed through a spin-off (“Cognizant Distribution”) into two separate
public companies: IMS Health Incorporated (“IMS”"), and Nielsen
Media Research, inc. ("NMR"). In September 2000, The Dun &
Bradstreet Corporation separated into two separate public com-
panies: Moody’s Corporation, (“Moody's") (formerly The Dun &
Bradstreet Corporation), and a new company that changed its
name to The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation. As a result of the
form of R.H. Donnelley Carporation's separation from The Dun &
Bradstreet Corporation in 1998, we are the corporate successor
of and technically the defendant and taxpayer referred to below
as D&B.

Rockland Yellow Pages

In 1999, Sandy Goldberg, Dellwood Publishing, Inc. and
Rockland Yellow Pages initiated a lawsuit against the Company
and Bell Atlantic Corporation in the United States District Court
for the Southern District of New York. The Rockland Yellow
Pages is a proprietary directory that competes against a Bell
Atlantic directory in the same region, for which we served as
Bell Atlantic’s advertising sales agent through June 30, 2000.
The complaint alleged that the defendants disseminated false
information concerning the Rockland Yellow Pages, which result-
ed in damages to the Rockland Yellow Pages. in May 2001, the
District Court dismissed substantially all of plaintiffs’ claims, and
in August 2001, the remaining claims were either withdrawn by
the plaintiffs or dismissed by the District Court. The plaintiffs
then filed a complaint against the same defendants in New York
State Supreme Court, in Rockland County, alleging virtually the
same state law tort claim previously dismissed by the District
Court and seeking unspecified damages. In October 2001,
defendants filed a motion to dismiss this complaint. On May 5,
2002, the Court granted defendants’ motion to dismiss the com-
plaint. Plaintiffs filed an appeal of this dismissal. On April 1G,
2003, the Appellate Division heard oral arguments on the
appeal, and on April 28, 2003, the Appellate Division dismissed
all but one count of the complaint, which count alleges immateri-
al compensatory damages with respect to only one advertiser.
Accordingly, we presently do not believe that the final outcome
of this matter will have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations or financial condition.

Information Resources, Inc.

in 19986, Information Resources, Inc. (“IR1") filed a complaint in
the United States District Court for the Southern District of New
York, naming as defendants the Company, as successor of D&B,
ACNielsen and IMS, at the time of the filing, all wholly owned
subsidiaries of D&B.

The complaint alleges various violations of U.S. antitrust
laws under Sections 1 and 2 of the Sherman Act. The complaint
also alleges a claim of tortious interference with a contract and a
claim of tortious interference with a prospective business rela-
tionship. These claims relate to the acquisition by defendants of
Survey Research Group Limited ("SRG"). IR! alleges SRG viclat-



ed an alleged agreement with 1Rl when it agreed to be acquired
by the defendants and that the defendants induced SRG to
breach that agreement.

IRI's antitrust claims allege that the defendants developed
and implementad a plan to undermine IRI’s ability to compete
within the U.S. and foreign markets in North America, Latin
America, Asia, Europe and Australia/New Zealand through a
series of anti-competitive practices, including: unlawfully
tying/bundling services in the markets in which defendants
allegedly had rnonopoly power with services in markets in which
ACNielsen competed with IR!; entering into exclusionary con-
tracts with retailers in certain countries to deny IRI's access to
sales data necassary o provide retail tracking services or to
artificially raise the cost of that data; predatory pricing; acquiring
foreign market competitors with the intent of impeding IRI's
efforts to expand; disparaging IRi to financial analysts and
clients; and denying IRl access to capital necessary for it to
compete.

IRI's complaint originally sought damages in excess of
$350,000, which amount IRl sought to treble under antitrust
laws. IRl has s nce revised its allegation of damages to exceed
$650,000, which IRl also seeks to treble. IR also seeks punitive
damages of ar unspecified amount.

In April 2003, the court denied a motion for partial summa-
ry judgment by the defendants that sought to dismiss certain of
IRl's claims and granted in part a motion by IR! seeking recon-
sideration of certain summary judgment rulings the Court had
previously made in favor of the defendants. The motion granted
by the court concerns IRI's claims of injuries from defendants’
alleged condust in certain foreign markets.

In connection with the 1996 Distribution, Cognizant (now
“NMR”), ACNielsen and D&B entered into an Indemnity and
Joint Defense Agreement (the “JDA"), pursuant to which they
agreed to:

m allocate potential liabilities that may relate to, arise out of

or result from the IRI lawsuit (“IR} Liabilities"), and

= conduct a jcint defense of such action.

In particular, the JDA provides that:

r ACNielsen will assume exclusive liability for IRl Liabilities

up to a maximum amount to be calculated at such time as such
liakilities became payable as a result of a final non-appealable
judgment or any settlement permitted under the JDA (the "ACN
Maximum Amount™); and

= D&B and Cognizant will share liability equally for any amounts
in excess of tte ACN Maximum Amount.

As noted above, ACNielsen is responsible for the IR Liabilities
up to the ACN Maximum Amount. The JDA provides that
ACNielsen initally is to determine the amount that it will pay at
the time of settlement or a final judgment, if any, in IRI’s favor
(the "ACN Payment”). The ACN Payment could be less than the
ACN Maximum Amount. The JDA also provides for D&B and
Cognizant to pay IRl 50% of the difference between the settle-
ment or judgment amount and the ACN Payment. In exchange,
the JDA requires ACNielsen to issue a secured note (the “ACN
Note"), subject to certain limits and offsets, to each of D&B and
Cognizant for the amount of their payment. The ACN Notes

would become payable upon the completion of any recapitaliza-
tion plan described in the next paragraph.

The ACN Maximum Amount will be determined by an
investment banking firm as the maximum amount that ACNiglsen
is able to pay after giving effect to:

B any recapitalization plan submitted by an investment bank
that is designed to maximize the claims-paying ability of
ACNielsen without impairing the investment banking firm's ability
to deliver a viability opinion and without requiring stockholder
approval; and

m payment of interest on the ACN Notes and related fees

and expenses.

For these purposes, “viability” means the ability of ACNielsen,
after giving effect to such recapitalization plan, the payment of
interest on the ACN Notes, the payment of related fees and

expenses, and the payment of the ACN Maximum Amount, to:

® pay its debts as they become due; and

m finance the current and anticipated operating and capital
requirements of its business, as reconstituted by such recapital-
ization plan, for two years from the date any such recapitaliza-
tion plan is expected to be implemented.

in 2001, ACNielsen was acquired by VNU N.V. (“VNU"). We
understand that VNU has assumed ACNielsen's liabilities under
the JDA. Under the agreements relating to the Cognizant
Distribution, IMS and NMR are each jointly and severally liable
for all Cognizant liabilities under the JDA, although we under-
stand that amongst themselves they have agreed to share the
liability for these amounts as follows: 75% IMS and 25% NMR
up to a maximum of $125,000.

Under the agreements relating to the 1998 Distribution,
D&B assumed the defense and agreed to indemnify us against
any payments that we may be required to make, including any
liabilities arising under the JDA, and IRI Liabilities arising from
the IR} action itsef, and in each case related legal fees. As
required by those agreements, Moody's Corporation, which sub-
sequently separated from D&B in the 2000 Distribution, has
agreed to be jointly and severally liable with D&B for the indem-
nity obligation to us. We understand that D&B and Moody's
have agreed to share equally {(50% each) these indemnity obli-
gations to us.

However, because liability for violations of the antitrust laws
is joint and several and because many of the rights and obliga-
tions relating to the JDA are based on contractual relationships,
the inability or failure of any party to the JDA to fulfill its obliga-
tions could result in the other parties, including us, bearing a
greater share of the IRI Liabilities. Joint and several liability
means that even where more than one defendant is determined
to have been responsible for alleged wrongdoing, the plaintiff
can collect all or part of a judgment from any one cr more of the
responsible defendants. This is true regardless of any contractu~
al allocation of responsibility or indemnification provisions,
including those described above among VNU, ACNielsen, D&B,
IMS, Moody's, NMR and us.

Discovery in the lawsuit is ongoing, and although the court
originally set a trial date for September 2004, the court rescind-
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ed that date in January 2004, and there is currently no trial date
set. We are unable 1o predict at this time the outcome of the IRI
action or the financial condition of ACNielsen and VNU at the
time of any such outcome (and hence we cannct estimate the
ACN Maximum Amount and the portion of any judgment to be
paid by VNU and ACNielsen under the JDA). Nonetheless, while
we cannot assure you as to the outcome of this matter, manage-
ment presently believes that (i) D&B and Moody's have sufficient
financial resources, borrowing capacity and indemnity rights
against IMS and NMR (who succeeded to Cognizant’s indemnity
obligations under the Cognizant Distribution} and (i) IMS and
NMR in turn have sufficient financial resources and borrowing
capacity to satisfy their indemnity obligations to D&B and
Moody's, so as to reimburse us for any payments we may be
required to make and related costs we may incur in cannection
with this matter.

Tax Matters

D&B entered into global tax-planning initiatives in the normal
course of its business, primarily through tax-free restructurings
of both its foreign and domestic operations. The status of
internal Revenue Service reviews of these initiatives is summa-
rized below.

Pursuant to a series of agreements relating to the spin-offs
and separations referred to above, IMS and NMR are jointly and
severally liable for, and must pay one-half, and D&B and
Moody's are jointly and severally liable for, and must pay the
other half, of any payments over $137,000 for taxes, accrued
interest and other amounts resulting from unfavorable IRS rul-
ings on the matters summarized below (other than the matter
summarized below under "~ Amortization and Royalty Expense
Deductions — 1997-2003," for which D&B and Moody's, jointly
and severally, are solely responsible). D&B, on our behalf, was
contractually obligated to pay, and did pay, the first $137,000 of
tax liability in connection with the matter summarized below as
“— Utilization of Capital Losses — 1889-1990." Under the terms of
the 1998 Distribution, D&B agreed to assume the defense and to
indemnify us for any tax liability that may be assessed against
us and any related costs and expenses that we may incur in
connection with any of these tax matters. Also, as required by
those agreements, Moody’s has agreed to be jeintly and several-
ly liable with D&B for the indemnity obligation to us. Under the
terms of certain of the other spin-offs and separations, D&B and
Moody's have, between each other, agreed to be financially
responsible for 50% of any potential liabilities that may arise to
the extent such potential liabilities are not directly attributable to
each party’s respective business operations.

While we cannot assure you as to the outcome in these
matters, management presently believes that D&B and Moody’s
have sufficient financial resources, borrowing capacity and
indemnity rights against IMS and NMR (who succeeded to
Cognizant's indemnity obligations under the Cognizant
Distribution) and IMS and NMR in turn have sufficient financial
resources and borrowing capacity to satisfy their respective
indemnity obligations to D&B and Moody's, so as to reimburse
us for any payments we may be required to make and related
costs we may incur in connection with these tax matters.

Utilization of Capital Losses ~ 1989-1990

in 2000, D&B filed an amended tax return with respect to the uti-
lization of capital losses in 1989 and 199Q in response te a for-
mal IRS notice of adjustment. The amended tax return reflected
an additional $561,600 of tax and interest due. In 2000, D&B
paid the IRS $349,300 while IMS (on behalf of itself and NMR})
paid approximately $212,300. We understand that this payment
was made under dispute in order to stop additional interest from
accruing, that D&B is contesting the IRS’s formal assessment
and would also contest the assessment of amounts, if any, in
excess of the amounts paid, and that D&B has filed a complaint
for a refund in the United States District Court. This case is
expected to go to trial in 2005. We believe that the fact that D&B
and IMS have already paid the IRS a substantial amount of addi-
tional taxes with respect to the contested tax planning strategies
significantly mitigates our risk.

Royalty Expense Deductions — 1993-1997

In the second quarter of 2003, D&B received (on our behalf) an
IRS examination report with respect to a partnership transaction
entered into in 1993. Specifically, the IRS is proposing to disal-
fow certain royalty expense deductions claimed by D&B on its
1993 through 1996 tax returns. We understand that D&B esti-
mates that the disallowance of the 1993 and 1994 royalty
expense deductions would result in a loss of $5,000 in pending
tax refunds and that the additional tax liability with respect to the
disallowance of the 1885 and 1996 royalty expense deductions
could be up to $44,100 (tax, interest and penalties, net of asso-
ciated tax benefits).

In addition, and also in the second quarter of 2003, D&B
received on behalf of the partnership associated with the above
transaction an IRS examination report chaltenging the tax treat-
ment of certain royalty payments received by the partnership in
which D&B was a partner. In that report, the IRS is seeking to
reallocate certain partnership income to D&B. In January 2004,
D&B received additional IRS Natices (similar to those received in
the second quarter of 2003) reflecting an additional tax liability
of $1,800 (tax, interest, and penalties, net of associated tax ben-
efits) associated with D&B’s remaining interest in the partnership
transaction (as described above) for the three months in 1997
for which the entities were partners. The additional tax liability
with respect to D&B’s share of this income for the notices
received in the second quarter of 2003 and January 2004 could
be up to $21,900 (tax, interest and penalties, net of associated
{ax benefits). We understand that D&B believes that these posi-
tions regarding the partnership are inconsistent with the IRS’
position with respect to the same royalty expense deductions
described above. This $21,300 additional liability would be in
addition to the $44,100 of additional liability related to royalty
expense deductions discussed in the previous paragraph.

D&B has filed protests relating to these proposed adjust-
ments with the IRS Office of Appeals. The parties are attempting
to resolve these matters at the Appeals phase before proceed-
ing to litigation, if necessary. If the IRS were to prevail in its posi-
tion, D&B would share responsibility for the matter with Moody's,
IMS and NMR, as disclosed above. If D&B were to challenge
any of these IRS positions at any time in a U.S. District Court or



the U.S. Court of Federal Claims, rather than in U.S. Tax Court,
the disputed amounts would need 10 be paid in advance for the
Court to have jurisdiction over the case.

Amortization and Royalty Expense Deductions — 1997-2003
in the fourth quarter of 2003, D&B received (on our behalf) IRS
Notices of Proposed Adjustment with respect to a partnership
transaction entered into in 1997. In addition, D&B received, on
behalf of the partnership, various IRS materials further explain-
ing the examining agent’s position with respect to the activities
of the partnership in 1887 and 1998. Specifically, the IRS assert-
ed that certain amortization expense deductions claimed by
D&B on its 1397 and 1998 tax returns should be disallowed. We
understand that D&B estimates that the additional tax liability
as a result of the disaliowance of the 1997 and 1998 amortiza-
tion deductions and the disallowance of such deductions
claimed fromr 1999 to date could be up to $52,000 (tax, interest
and penalties, net of associated tax benefits). This transaction is
scheduled tc expire in 2012 and, unless earlier terminated,
based on current interest rates and tax rates, additional tax
exposure would increase at a rate of approximately $2,500 per
quarter (including potential penalties) as future amortization
expenses are deducted.

In addition, the IRS has asserted that royalty expense
deductions, claimed by D&B on its tax returns for 1997 and
1998 for royzlties paid to the partnership should be disallowed.
Relatedly, the IRS has asserted that the receipt of these
same royalties by the partnership should be reallocated to and
reported as royalty income by D&B, including the portions
of the royalties that were allocated to third party partners in the
partnership, and, thus, included in their taxable income. We
understand that D&B believes that the IRS’ stated positions
with respect to the treatment of the royalty expense and royalty
income are mutually inconsistent, making it unlikely that the IRS
will prevail on both of the positions. As a result, we understand
that D&B estimates that after taking into account certain other
tax benefits resulting from the IRS' position on the partnership it
is unlikely that there will be any additional cash tax payments
due in addition to the amounts noted above related to the amor-
tization expense deduction.

In the event the IRS were to prevail on both positions with
respect to tha royalty expensefincome, which D&B believes
unlikely, D&B estimates that the additional tax liability as a result
of the disallonvance of the 1997 and 1998 royalty expense
deductions, the disallowance of such deductions claimed from
1999 to date and the inclusion of the reallocated royalty income
for all relevant years could be up to $137,000 (tax, interest and

penalties, net of associated tax benefits). This $137,000 would
be in addition to the $52,000 noted above related to the amorti-
zation expense deduction.

D&B is attempting to resclve these matters with the IRS
before proceeding to RS Appeals or litigation, if necessary. If
D&B were to challenge any of these IRS positions at any time in
U.S. District Court or the U.S. Court of Federal Claims, rather
than in U.S. Tax Court, the disputed amounts for each applica-
bie year would need to be paid in advance for the Court to have
jurisdiction over the case.

As a result of our assessment of our exposure in these
matters relating to our prior relationship with D&B and its former
affiliates, especially in light of our indemnity arrangements with
D&B and Moody's, and their respective financial resources, bor-
rowing capacity and indemnity rights against IMS and NMR (and
ACNielsen and VNU with respect to the IRl matter), and in turn
IMS and NMR's (and ACNielsen’s and VNU’s with respect to the
IRl matter) respective financial resources and borrowing capaci-
ty o satisfy their respective indemnity obligations to D&B and
Moody's, no material amounts have been accrued in our consoli-
dated financial statements for any of these D&B-related litigation
and tax matters.

Coastal Termite and Pest Control

in 2001, Marnan Group, Inc., doing business as Coastal Termite
and Pest Control ("Coastal”), filed a complaint in the U.S. District
Court for the Middle District of Florida against SPA. The com-
plaint, as amended, alleged that SPA breached certain directory
advertising contracts between 1936 and 1998, fraudulently
induced Coastal to enter into another directory advertising con-
tract and tortiously interfered with Coastal's business relation-
ships with its customers. Coasta!l was seeking damages for lost
contract benefits, lost profits and diminution of business value in
an unspecified amount, including pre-judgment interest. In
Octaober 2003, the parties settled this dispute for an amount less
than the $500 reserved in the Company’s financial statements in
connection with the SPA acquisition.

Other Matters

We are also involved in other legal proceedings, claims and
litigation arising in the ordinary conduct of our business.
Although we cannot assure you of any outcome, management
presently believes that the outcome of such legal proceedings
will not have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations or financial condition and no material amounts have
been accrued in our consclidated financial statements with
respect to these matters.
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Part Il, ltem 8, Notes, continued

14. Business Segments

We revised our historical segment reporting in the first quarter of 2003 to reflect the change in the business that resulted

from the SPA acquisition and to reflect the way management now reviews and analyzes the business. Our reportable operating
segments are Donnelley and DonTech. Donnelley includes the revenue from our 260 Sprint-branded yellow pages directories,
revenue from our pre-press publishing services contract with SBC and all operating and administrative expenses. The DonTech
segment includes revenue participation income and our 50% interest in the net profits of DonTech. Although DonTech provides
advertising sales of yellow pages and other directory products similar to Donnelley, the partnership is considered a separate
operating segment since, among other things, it has its own Board of Directors and the employees of DonTech, including officers
and managers, are not employees of the Company.

We evaluate the performance of our segments based primarily on operating income and earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA"). We evaluate and report the performance of our segments based on EBITDA because
we believe that EBITDA is a useful measure of our underlying operating performance and the ability to satisfy our significant debt
service requirements. Segment information for 2002 and 2001 has been adjusted to be comparable to the
2003 presentation.

We also evaluate the performance of Donnelley and DonTech based on advertising sales. Advertising sales are a critical
measure of performance that we review and play an important role in our decision to allocate financial resources between
our segments.

Segment information for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 is presented below:

Consolidated

Donnelley DonTech Totals

2003
Net revenue $ 256,445 $ - $ 256,445
Operating (loss) income (21,526) 114,052 92,526
Depreciation and amortization 65,779 - 65,779
EBITDA’ 45,776 114,052 159,828
Total assets 2,363,005 175,729 2,538,734
Consolidated
Donnelley DonTech Totals

2002
Net revenue $ 75,408 $ - $ 75,406
Operating income 28,836 117,146 145,982
Depreciation and amortization 6,249 - 6,249
EBITDA' 34,634 117,146 151,780
Total assets 2,037,406 185,969 2,223,375
Consolidated
Donnelley DonTech Totals

2001
Net revenue $ 80253 $ - $ 80,253
Operating income (loss) (10,947) 122,419 111,472
Depreciation and amortization 10,767 - 10,767
EBITDA (180) 122,419 - 122,239
Total assets 102,171 193,810 295,981

' EBITDA is not a measurement of operating performance computed in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
("GAAP") and should not be considered as a substitute for operating income or net income prepared in conformity with GAAP.
In addition, EBITDA may not be comparable to similarty titled measures of other companies. See the reconciliation of EBITDA to
net (loss) income, the most comparable GAAP measure, below.

The most comparable GAAP measure for EBITDA is net income. The reconciliation of net (loss) income
to EBITDA is presented below.

2003 2002 2001
Net (loss) income $ (49,953) $ 67,177 $ 49815
+ tax (benefit) expense (36,018} 44,806 36,009
+ interest expense, net 180,020 33,548 25,648
+ depreciation and amortization 65,779 6,249 10,767

EBITDA § 159,828 $ 151,780 $ 122,239




15. Guarantees

R.H. Donnelley Inc. is a direct wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and the issuer of the Pre-acquisition Notes, which were
redeemed in fLll in February 6, 2004, and the Senior Notes and Subordinated Notes. The Company and the direct and indirect wholly
owned subsidiaries of R.H. Donnelley Inc. jointly and severally, fully and unconditionally, guarantee these debt instruments.

At December &1, 2003, R.H. Donnelley Inc.’s direct wholly owned subsidiaries were R.H. Donnelley Publishing & Advertising, Inc.,
R.H. Donnelley APIL, Inc. and Get Digital Smart.com Inc.

At December 31, 2002, R.H. Donnelley Inc.’s direct wholly owned subsidiaries were R.H. Donnelley APIL, Inc., R.H. Donnelley
CD, Inc., R.H. Donnelley Acquisitions Il, Inc. and Get Digital Smart.com Inc. R.H. Donnelley Acquisitions Il, Inc. is a wholly owned
subsidiary of R.H. Donnelley APIL, Inc. R.H. Donnelley Finance Corporation | and Il, subsidiary borrowers established in connection
with the financing for the SPA acquisition, were non-guarantor subsidiaries at December 31, 2002. Subject to the technical default
that was subsequently cured, there were nc non-guarantor subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2001. The following consol-
idating condensed financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

As of December 31, 2003, R.H. Donnelley Corporation has issued 200,604 shares of its Preferred Stock. See Note 8.
Redeemable Preferred Stock and Warrants for a further description of the terms of the Preferred Stock and the related dividend
requirements. See Note 13. Litigation for a description of various legal proceedings in which the Company is involved in and
related contingencies.

R.H. Donnelley Corporation receives dividends from R.H. Donnelley Inc. for the payment of income taxes. Dividends received
for the payment of income taxes were $0, $38,940 and $39,608 for the years 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Dividends for
other items in any of these years were not significant.

In genera, the Company and its subsidiaries are restricted from paying dividends to any third party, and our subsidiaries
are restricted from paying dividends, loans or advances to R.H. Donnelley Corporation with very limited exceptions, under the terms
of our Credit Facility. See Note 6. Long-Term Debt, Credit Facilities and Notes for a further description of our debt instruments.

R.H. Donnelley Corporation
Consolidatecl Condensed Balance Sheet
December 31, 2003

R.H. Donnelley Consolidated
R.H.Donnelley R.H.Donnelley Publishing & Guarantor R.H. Dennelley
(amounts in thousands) Corp.(Parent) Inc. (Issuer) Advertising subsidiaries Eliminations Corporation
Assets
--Cash and cash equivalents . $ 6,900 3 801 $ 21 $ 7.722
- Accounts receivable, net 210,981 210,981
Deferred costs 37,907 37,907
Other current assets 12,696 15,285 27,981
Total current assets 19,596 264,974 21 284,591
Investment in subsidiaries $ 141,978 $ 2,362,171 (2,124,955)  4250,311  $ (4,453,776) 175,729
Fixed assets, net 17,201 3,424 (1) 20,624
Other assets 95,583 95,583
Intangible asssts 1,865,167 1,865,167
Goodwill 97,040 97,040
Total assets $ 141,978 $ 2494551 § 105650 $4,250,332 §(4,453,777) $ 2,538,734
Liabilities, Preferred Stock
and Shareholders’ Deficit
Accrued liabilities $ 119155 $ 19,292 $ (104,945) $ 33,502
Deferred revenue 216,525 216,525
Current portion LTD 49,586 49,586
Total current liabilites 168,741 235,817 (104,945) 299,613
Long-term debt 2,042,547 2,042,547
Deferred tax (22,739} (50,480) $ 106,848 33,629
Other long-term liabilities 20,940 27 20,967
Redeemable convertible preferred stock $ 198,223 198,223
Shareholders' {deficit) equity (56,245) 285,062 (79,714) 4,143,484 (4,348,832) (56,245)

Total liabilitizs, preferred stock and
shareholders’ deficit $ 141978 $2494551 § 105650 $4,250,332 $(4,453,777) $2,538,734
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R.H. Donnelley Corporation

Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheet

December 31, 2002

Consolidated
R.H.Donnelley  R.H.Donnelley Guarantor  Non-guarantor R.H. Donnelley
(amounts in thousands) Corp. (Parent) Inc. (Jssuer) subsidiaries subsidiaries Eliminaticns Corporation
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 7,745  $ 42 $ 7,787
Restricted cash 103,700 $ 1,825,000 1,928,700
Other current assets 29,563 1,038 1,586 32,187
Investment in subsidiaries $ 32,859 305,509 124,047 $ (260,179) 202,236
Fixed assets, net 12,008 3 (3} 12,008
Other assets 40,457 99,990 (99,990) 40,457
Total assets $ 32852 3 498,982  $ 225,120 § 1,826,586 $ (360,172) $2223,375°
Liabilities, Preferred Stock and
Shareholders’ Deficit
Current liabilities $ 124874 $ 2943 % 6,214 $ (99990) $ 34,041
Long-term debt 250,470 1,825,000 2,075,470
Other long-term liabilities 81,005 81,005
Redeemable convertible preferred stock  $§ 63,453 63,459
Shareholders’ (deficit) equity (30,600) 42,633 222,177 (4,628) (260,182) (30,600)
Total liabilities, preferred stock and
shareholders’ (deficit) equity $ 32859 § 498982 § 225120 $ 1,826,586 $ (360,172) $2,223,375




R.H. Donnelley Corporation
Consolidatec Condensed Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

R.H. Donnelley Consolidated

R.H. Donnelley R.H. Donnelley Publishing & Guarantor R.H. Donnelley

Corp. (Parent) Inc. (Issuer) Advertising subsidiaries Eliminations Corporation

Net revenue $ 22,198 § 234,247 $ 256,445
Expenses 72,294 205,056 $ 621 277,971
Partnership and equity income $ (49,953) 106,606 222,992 $ (165,593) 114,052
Operating (loss) income (49,953) 56,510 29,191 222,371 (165,593) 92,526
Interest (expense) income (187,149) (191,531) 198,660 (108,020)
Other income 1,523 1,523
Pre-tax (loss) ncome (49,953) (129,116) (162,340) 421,031 (165,533) (85,971)
Income tax (expense) benefit (79,163) (63,699) 106,844 (36,018)
Net (loss) income (49,953) (49,953) (98,641) 314,187 (165,533) (49,953)
Dividend on Freferred Stock 58,397 58,397

(Loss) income available to

common stareholders $(108,350) $ (49953) $ (98,641) $ 314,187 $ (165,593) $(108,350)

R.H. Donnelley Corporation
Consolidated Condensed Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Cansolidated

R.H. Donnelley R.H.Donneliey Guarantor  Non-guarantor R.H. Donnelley
Corp.(Parent) Inc.{Issuer) subsidiaries subsidiaries Eliminations Corporation
Net revenue $ 75,406 $ 75,406
Expenses 65,920 §$ 307 66,297
Partnership and equity income 67,177 85,378 121,669 $ (137,351) 136,873
Operating income 67,177 94,794 121,362 (137,351) 145,982
Interest (expense) income {29,521) 7,129 % (11,156) (33,548)
Other expense (451) (451)
Pra-tax incomz (loss) 67,177 64,822 128,491 (11,156) (137,351) 111,983
Income tax benefit (expense) 2,355 (47,161) (44,806)
Net income (loss) 67,177 67,177 81,330 (11,156) (137,351) 67,177
Dividend on Freferred Stock 24,702 24,702
Income (loss) available to
common shareholders $ 42,475 $ 67,177 $ 81,330 $ (11,156) $ (137,351) $ 42475

R.H. Donnelley Corporation
Consolidated Condensed Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001
Consolidated

R.H.Donnelley ~ R.H.Donneliey Guarantor R.H. Donnelley

Corp. (Parent) Inc. (Issuer) subsidiaries Eliminations Corporation
Net revenue $ 80,253 $ 80,253
Expenses 108,616 129 108,745
Partnership and equity income $ 4,579 99,055 120,944 $ (84,614) 139,964
Operating income 4,579 70,692 120,815 (84,614) 111,472
Interest (expense) income (32,777) 7,128 (25,648)
Pre-tax income 4,579 37,915 127,944 (84,614) 85,824
income tax (expense) benefit (33,336) (46,792) 44,118 {36,009)

Net income $ 4579 $ 4579 3 81,152 $ (40,495) $ 48,815
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R.H. Donnelley Corporation
Consolidated Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

R.H. Donneiley Consolidated
R.H. Donnelley R.H.Donnelley Publishing & Guarantor  R.H, Donnelley
Corp. (Parent) tnc. (Issuter) Advertising subsidiaries Corporation
Cash flow from operations $(136,482) $ (31,100) $ 416,179 $ 248,597
Cash flow from investing activities $(125,683) (219,175) (33,056) - (377,914)
Cash flow from financing activities 125,683 354,812 64,957 (416,200) 129,252
Change in cash - (845) 801 21) (65)
Cash at beginning of period - 7,745 - 42 7,787
Cash at end of period $ - $ 86900 % 801 $ 21 8 7,722
R.H. Donnelley Corporation
Consolidated Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
Consolidated
R.H. Donnelley R.H. Donnelley Guarantor  Non-guarantor R.H. Donnelley
Corp. (Parent) Inc. (Issuer) subsidiaries subsidiaries Eliminations Corporation
Cash flow from operations $ 14342 $ 40554 $ (4,941) - 3 49,955
Cash flow from investing activities $ (69,300) (107,443) ~  (1,825000) $ 69,300 (1,932,443)
Cash flow from financing activities 69,300 86,179 (40,566} 1,829,941 (69,300) 1,875,554
Change in cash - (6,922) (12) - - (6,934)
Cash at beginning of period - 14,667 54 14,721
Cash at end of period $ - $ 7745 § 42§ - 3 - 3 7,787
R.H. Donnelley Corporation
Consalidated Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001
Consolidated
R.H. Donnelley Guarantor ~ R.H. Donnelley
Inc. (Issuer) subsidiaries Corporation
Cash flow from operations $ (30,197) $ 117,051 % 86,854
Cash flow from investing activities (6,100) - (6,100)
Cash flow from financing activities (4,467) (117,003) (121,470)
Change in cash (40,764) 48 (40,716)
Cash at beginning of period 55,431 6 55,437
Cash at end of period $ 14,667 $ 54 § 14,721




16. Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Net Additions Net Additions
Balance to Allowances Charged to Write-offs
at Beginning from SPA Revenue and Other Balance at

of Period Acquisition and Expense Deductions End of Period
Allowance for Dioubtful Accounts and Sales Claims
For the year ended December 31, 2003 $ 4772 31,052 1,611 (25,479) $ 11,956
For the year ended December 31, 2002 $ 6,339 - 3,300 (4,867) $ 4,772
For the year ended December 31, 2001 $ 7,355 - 3,372 (4,388) $ 6,339
Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance
For the year ended December 31, 2003 $ 6,094 - (356) - $ 5,738
For the year ended December 31, 2002 $ 4,287 - 1,807 - $ 6,094
For the year ended December 31, 2001 3 - - 4,287 - $ 4,287
17. Quarterly Information (unaudited)

Three Months Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 Full Year
2003
Net revenue ' $ 12,419 $ 38,634 $ 89,309 $ 116,083 $ 256,445
Operating (loss) income? {21,918) 10,464 50,840 53,140 92,526
Net (ioss) income (41,187) (18,911) 3,903 6,242 (49,953)
Preferred dividend 42,154 5,978 5,082 5,183 58,397
(Loss) income available to common shareholders (83,341) {24,889) (1,179) 1,059 (108,350)
Basic (loss) earnings per share $ (2.76) $ (0.81) $ (0.04) $ 0.03 $ (3.53)
Diluted (Ioss) earnings per share $ (2.76) $ (0.81) $ (0.04) $ 0.03 $ (3.59)

Three Months Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 312 Full Year
2002
Net revenue $ 18,828 $ 19,894 $ 21,376 $ 15,308 $ 75,406
Operating income 27,857 40,393 45,092 31,940 145,982
Net income 13,182 21,169 25,059 7,767 67,177
Preferred dividend - - - 24,702 24,702
Incorne (loss) available to common shareholders 13,182 21,169 25,059 (19,935) 42,475
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 045 $ 071 $ 084 $ (0.57) $ 1.42
Diluted earnings {loss) per share $ 044 $ 070 $ 083 $ (0.57) $ 1.40

The full year (loss) earnings per share amount may not equal the sum of the quarters due to weighting of shares.

! Revenue from the sale of advertising is deferred when a directory is published and recognized ratably over the life of the directory. Due to purchase
accounting rules, we were not able to recognize any revenue from directories published by SPA prior to the acquisition or for any directories published
in January 2003.

2 The second, third 2nd fourth quarters of 2003 include restructuring charges of $3,121, $4,340 and $2,071, respectively, for the closing of redundant
facilities and the re ocation of the Company’s corporate offices to Cary, North Carolina.

3 The fourth quarter of 2002 includes a benefit of $6,694 from the reversal of a restructuring reserve, an investment impairment charge of $2,000,
a loss on hedging activities of $1,523 and a benefit of $1,072 from the reversal of reserves established in connection with the disposition of the former
Bell Atlantic business.

18. Subsequent Events

On February 8, 2004, utilizing the proceeds from Term Loan B-2, we redeemed the remaining aggregate principal amount
of the Pre-acquisition Notes totaling $21,245 at a redemption price of 104.563% of the principal amount thereof, plus
accruad and unpaid interest. A loss of $1,228 will be recorded in the first quarter of 2004 consisting of a premium over par
value paid at redemption of $969, plus the write-off of $259 of unamortized deferred financing costs.
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DonTech

Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors and
Partners of DonTach:

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheets and the relat-
ed statements of partners’ capital, operations and cash flows
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the DonTech Il Partnership (“DonTech”), at December 31, 2003
and 2002, and tre results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United. States.of. America. These.financial statements are
the responsibility of DonTech's- management; our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based

on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in

the United States of America, which require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence support-
ing the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made oy management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Chicago, Hlinois
February 12, 2004
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Balance Sheels

December 31,
(in thousands) 2003 2002
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,775 $ 9016
Commission receivable from related party 97,730 102,358
Prepaid expenses 560 843
Total current assets 103,065 112,217
Fixed assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization 5,677 6,036
Pension asset 7,199 8,819
Other 1,565 1,842
Total Assets $ 117,506 $ 128,914
Liabilities and-Partners’ Capital B - T
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,752 $ 1,602
Accrued liabilities 9,904 9,640
Distribution payable to partners - 3,600
Total current liabilities 11,656 14,842
Deferred rent credits 1,435 1,550
Total liabilities 13,091 16,392
Commitments and contingencies (Note 6)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (349) -
Partners’ capital 104,764 112,522
Total Liabilities and Partners' Capital $ 117,506 $ 128,914

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.




DonTech

Statements of Partners’ Capital

The R.H. Donnelley

Ameritech Publishing

(in thousands) Corporation of lllinois, Inc. Total
Balance, January 1, 2001 $ 92,492 $ 32,695 $ 125,187
Net income 19,313 19,313 38,626
Distributions t2 partners (21,700) (21,700) (43,400)
Balance, Decamber 31, 2001 $ 90,105 $ 30,308 $ 120,413
Net income 18,479 18,480 36,959
Distributions to partners (22,425) (22,425) (44,850)
Balance, Decamber 31, 2002 $ 86,159 $ 26,363 $ 112,522
Net income ) 17,347 17,347 34,694
Distributions to partners (21,226) (21,226) (42,452)
Balance, Decamber 31, 2003 $ 82,280 $ 22,484 $ 104,764

The accompany ng notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of Operations

Years Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Sales commission, net - related party $ 99,711 $101,792 $106,849
Expenses
Selling 46,773 48,016 48,810
Administrative 11,832 10,273 10,356
Occupancy and depreciation 6,720 7,388 9,058
Other 860 885 1,190
Total operating expenses 66,185 66,562 69,414
Operating income 33,526 35,230 37,435
Other income 1,168 1,729 1,191
Net income 34,694 36,959 38,626
Comprehensive {Loss) Income
<o Minimum-pension liability adjustment - - (349 - -~—\——————~ =
Comprehensive income $ 34,345 $ 36,959 $ 38,626

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



DonTech

Statement of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income $ 34,694 $ 36,959 $ 38,626
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 1,603 1,702 2,360
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 205 26 -
Changes in assets and liabilities
Decrease in commission receivable 4,628 6,177 2450
Increase (decrease) in prepaid rent expense 94 (743) -
Increase in receivable from landlord - (450) -
Decrease (increase) in other assets 2,086 1,322 (115)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 150 29 (548)
(Decrease) increase in accrued liabilities 84) 457 533
(Decrease) increase in deferred rent credits (115) 1,579 -
Net cash provided by operating activities 43,261 46,998 43,306
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of squipment {1,450) (678) (1,331)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Distributions to partners (42,452) (44,850) (43,400)
(Decrease) increase in distribution payable {3,600) 3,600 -
Net cash used in financing activities (46,052) (41,250) (43,400)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (4,241) 5,070 (1,425)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 9,016 3,946 5,371
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 4,775 $ 9,016 $ 3,946

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

(in thousands)

1. Form of Organization and Nature of Business

The DonTech Il Partnership ("DonTech”) is a general partnership
between Reuben H. Donnelley, Inc. (formerly known as The
Reuben H. Donnelley Corporation) (“RB.H. Donnelley”), a
Delaware corporation, and Ameritech Publishing of lllinais, Inc.
(*API/IL"), a unit of SBC Communications (“SBC"). The partner-
ship was established in August 1997 and was preceded by AM-
DON (“DonTech 1"}, a general partnership between the same
parties which, as of December 31, 2000, ceased business oper-
ations and distributed its remaining assets to its partners.

DonTech is the exclusive sales agent in perpetuity for yel-
low pages, white pages and street address directories pub-
lished by SBC in Itlinois and northwest Indiana. The partnership
receives a 27% commission on sales net of provisions (capped
at 6.1% subject to certain exclusions). DonTech’s cost structure
includes principally sales, sales operations, office services,
finance, facilities and related overhead. DonTech profits are
shared equally between the partners. During the term of the
partnership agreement, neither partner may compete directly
against the business of DonTech without the consent of the
Board of Directors.

A Board of Directors (the “Board”) was appointed to admin-
ister the activities of the partnership. From time to time during
the term of the partnership, the Board may call for additional
capital contributions in equal amounts from each of the partners
if, in the opinion of the Board, additional capital is required for
the operation of the partnership.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash eguivalents
include all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity date
of three months or less. The carrying value of cash equivalents
approximates fair value due to their short-term nature.

Revenue Recognition. Revenue is comprised of sales commis-
sions reflected net of provisions (capped at 6.1% per annum
subject to certain exclusions) and. is recognized upon execution
of contracts for the sale of advertising. Greater than 99% of
DonTech's revenue is generated from DonTech's sales agency
agreement with API/IL.

Fixed Assets. Fixed assets are recorded at cost and are depre-
ciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets. Upon asset retirement or other disposition, the cost
and the related accumulated depreciation are removed from the
accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is included'in the state-
ment of operations. Amounts incurred for repairs and mainte-
nance are charged to operations.

Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions. DonTech provides
postretirement benefits consisting mainly of life and health insur-
ance to substantially all employees and their dependents. The
accrual method of accounting is utitized for postretirement
healthcare and life insurance benefits.

fncome Taxes. No provision for income taxes is made as the
proportional share of partnership income is the responsibility of
the individual partners.

Concentration of Credit Risk. Financial instruments which poten-
tially subject DonTech to a concentration of credit risk consist
principally of commission receivable. DonTech's commission
receivable is due from one of its partners (SBC). Collateral is not
required.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclo-
sure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the finan-
cial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expense during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Effects of Recent Accounting Pronouncements. In December
2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB")
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

("SFAS") No. 132 (revised 2003) Employers' Disclosures about
Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits. SFAS No. 132
(revised 2003) amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS 132
to require more complete information about pension and postre-
tirement benefits. It does not change the measurement or recog-
nition of those plans required by SFAS No. 87, Employers'
Accounting for Pensicns, SFAS No. 88, Employers’ Accounting
for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension
Plans and for Termination Benefits, and SFAS No. 108,
Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than
Pensions. DonTech has adopted the disclosure provisions of
SFAS No. 132 (revised 2003) as of December 31, 2003,

On December 8, 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug,
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the "Act”) was
signed into law. The Act introduces prescription drug care bene-
fits under Medicare and also allows for certain sponsors of
postretirement benefit plans with a drug benefit to receive a non-
taxable federal subsidy if certain criteria are met. In response to

. the passage of this.legislation,.on. January. 12, 2004, the FASB_ .

issued FASB Staff Position ("FSP") No. FAS 106-1, Accounting
and Disclosure Requirements Related fo the Medicare
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003.
The FSP permits employers that sponsor postretirement benefit
plans that provide prescription drug benefits to retirees to make
a one-time election to defer accounting for any effects of the
Act. In accordance with the FSP, DonTech has elected to defer
accounting for any effects of the Act and accordingly, any
measures of the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation
or net periodic postretirement benefit cost in the financial
statements and as disclosed in Note 8 - Postretirement Benefits
Other than Pensions do not reflect the effects of the Act on
DonTech's plan. Authoritative guidance on the accounting for
the federal subsidy is currently being considered by the FASB
that, when issued, could require DonTech to change previously
reported informaticn.



In November 2002, the Emerging Issues Task Force
(“EITF") reached a consensus on Issue No, 00-21, Revenue
Arrangemerits with Multiple Deliverables. EITF issue No. 00-21
provides guidance on how to account for arrangements that
involve the clelivery or performance of multiple products, servic-
es and/or rights to use assets. The provisions of EITF [ssue No.
00-21 are efective for fiscal periods beginning after June 15,
2003. Adoption of EITF Issue No. 00-21 on January 1, 2004
is not expected to have a material impact on DonTech’s results
of operations or financial position.

In December 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation
("FIN"} No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an
Interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin ("ARB") 51
(revised December 2003). The primary objectives of FIN 46 are
to provide guidance an the identification of entities for which
control is achieved through means other than through voting
rights (variable interest entities or “VIES”) and how to determine
when and which business enterprise should consolidate the VIE.
FIN 46 is effactive for VIEs created after December 31, 2003
and is effective for all other VIEs in the first reporting period
beginning aiter December 15, 2004. The adoption of FIN 48 is
not expected to have a significant effect on DonTech’s financial
position or results of operations.

3. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets consist of the following at December 31:

2003 2002
Furniture and fixtures $ 7,109 7,178
Computers and software 5,913 16,508
L easehold ‘mprovements 1,969 1,969
14,991 25,655

l_ess accumulated depreciation
and amortization (9,314) (19,619)

Net fixed assets and

computer software $ 5,677 $ 6,036

Depreciation and amortization expense for the three years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $1,603, $1,702
and $2,360, respectively. During the year ended December 31,
2003, DonTech disposed of fixed assets with a cost of $12,118.
The assets disposed had a net book value of $205 resulting

in a loss on disposal which is reflected in the statement of
operations.

4. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consist of the following at December 31:

2003 2002
Accrued bonuses, commissions
and cther employee expenses $ 5,521 $ 4657
Accrued postretirement ‘
benefits other than pensions 3,718 3,599
Deferred compensation 466 1,350
Other accrued liabilities 199 34
Total $ 9,904 $ 9,640

5. Related Party Transactions

DonTech purchases insurance services from R.H. Donnelley and
general ledger and purchasing services from SBC. Payments
made to R.H. Donnelley for insurance services totaled $837,
$510 and $442 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Payment
made to SBC for general ledger and purchasing services were
insignificant in each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2003.

DonTech also provides facility space for certain employees
of SBC under an agreement entered into in 1998 (see Note 6).

6. Contingencies and Commitments

DonTech leases certain office facilities under noncancelable
lease arrangements. Rent expense under these operating
leases was approximately $2,232, $2,254 and $2,223 for 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

During 2000, DonTech entered into a sublease agreement
with SBC whereby DonTech received $58, $56 and $54 of
sublease rental income from SBC during 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

The future minimum lease payments required under
noncancelable operating leases that have initial or remaining
lease terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 2003
are as follows:

December 31,

2004 $ 4,168
2005 4,236
2006 4,220
2007 3,930
2008 and thereafter 9,532

$ 26,086
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Part 1, Item 8, Note 6, continued

During 2002, DonTech renegotiated the lease for its headquar-
ters facility, which was originally scheduled to terminate on
January 31, 2010. The renegotiated lease extends the terms of
the agreement two additional years (through January 31, 2012)
in exchange for certain cash concessions totaling $1,579. Cash
concessions received in connection with the amended lease
have been recorded as deferred rent credits in the balance
sheet and are being recognized on a straight-line basis as a
reduction to rent expense over the lease term. At December 31,
2003, the long-term deferred credit related to these concessions
was $1,435. In connection with the renegotiation of the leass,
DonTech incurred brokers fees of $669 which have been reflect-
ed in the balance sheet as a non-current other asset as of
December 31, 2003. These fees are being amortized to rent
expense over the lease term.

in September 1998, DonTech entered into a maintenance
service agreement with Ameritech Advertising Services to pro-
vide certain maintenance services pertaining to telecommunica-
tions support, including parts, to DonTech. This agreement was
set to expire in September 2003. In September 2003, DonTech
entered into a new agreement with SBC Global Services for the
provision of these maintenance services. The new agreement
has a five-year term expiring in August 2008. According to the
terms of the agreement, DonTech's remaining obligation as of
December 31, 2003 is $617.

7. Employee Retirement and Profit Participation Plans

DonTech sponsors a defined benefit pension plan covering sub-
stantially all of its employees (the “Principal Plan”). The benefits
to be paid to employees are based on years of service and a
percentage of total annual compensation. The percentage of
compensation allocated to a retirement account ranges from
3.0% to 12.5% depending on age and years of service. Pension
costs are determined using the projected unit credit actuarial
cost method. DonTech’s funding policy is to contribute an
amount at least equal to the minimum legal funding requirement.
No contributions were required to be made in 2003, 2002 or
2001. The Principal Plan’s assets are invested in equity funds
and, debt securities fixed income funds and real estate.
DonTech uses a measurement date of December 31 for the
majority of its plan assets.

DonTech also has an unfunded non-qualified defined bene-
fit pension plan, the Pension Benefit Equalization Plan (“PBEP"),
which covers senior executives and certain key employees.
Benefits are based on years of service and compensation
(including compensation not permitted to be taken into account
under the previously mentioned defined benefit pension plan).

The following provides a reconciliation of benefit obligations,
plan assets, and the funded status of the Principal Plan and
PBEP (the "Plans”):

2003 2002

Change in benefit obligation
Projected benefit abligation,

beginning of year $29,230 $26,280
Service cost 1,208 1,262
Interest cost 1,947 1,903
Benefits paid (1,269) (975)
Actuarial loss 3,929 278
Effect of plan amendments,

assumption changes and

other charges 37 638
Plan curtaiiment - (156)
Projected benefit obligation,

end of year $35,082 $29,230
Change in plan assets
Market value of assets,

beginning of year $26,899 $30026
Benefits payments (1,269) (975)
Contributions 190 64
Actual return on assets 5,965 (2,216)
Market value of assets,

end of year $ 31,785 $ 26,899
Funded status of plans $ (3,297) $ (2,330)
Unrecognized net ioss 9,239 9,750
Unrecognized prior service costs 619 781
Additional minimum pension liability (441) -
Prepaid pension cost $ 6,120 $ 8,201
Prepaid benefit cost $ 7,199 §$ 8819
Accrued liability {987) (618)
Accumulated other

comprehensive income 349 -
Net amount recognized $ 6,561 $ 8,201

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Principal Plan and
PBEP was $30,572 and $24,472 at December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively.

Net periodic pension cost for the Plan in 2003, 2002 and
2001 includes the following components:

2003 2002 2001
Service cost $ 1,208 $ 1262 $ 1,116
Interest cost 1,947 1,903 1,765
Expected return on assets  (2,180) (2,791) (3,282)
Amortization of net gain 655 263 4
Amortization of
unrecognized prior
service cost 107 291 426
Adjustment 92 - -
Curtailment loss - 58 -
Total pension cost $ 1,829 $ 986 $ 29




Assumptions usad to determine the benefit obligation
are as follows:

2003 2002 2001
Discount rate 6.00% 6.50% 7.25%
Weighted average
compensaticn increases 3.66% 3.91% 3.91%
Expected long-term
rate of returr 8.25% 9.75% 10.50%

Assumptions uszd to determine the net periodic benefit
cost are as follows:

2003 2002 2001
Discount rate 6.50% 7.25% 7.50%
Expected long-term
rate of return 8.25% 9.75% 10.50%
Weighted average
compensation increases 3.66% 3.91% 3.81%

Principal Plan participates in a Master Trust along with R.H.
Donnelley, the assets of which are administered by The Northern
Trust Company. A total return investment approach is used to
maximize the long-term return on plan assets at a prudent level
of risk. The Principal Plan’s target asset allocation is 65% equity
securities and 35% debt securities. The target allocation is con-
trolled by periodic rebalancing back to target. Principal Plan
assets are invested using a combination of active and passive
(indexed) investment strategies.

The Principal Plan's equity securities are diversified across
U.S. and non-U.S. stocks. The Principal Plan's debt securities
are diversified principally among securities issued or guaran-
teed by the Uniced States government or its agencies, mort-
gage-backed sicurities, including collateralized mortgage aobli-
gations, investment-grade corporate debt obligations and dollar-
denominated obligations issued in the U.S. and by non-U.S.
banks and corgoraticns.

Investment risk is controlled through diversification among
asset classes, ranagers and securities. Risk is further con-
trolled at the investment manager level by requiring active man-
agers to follow “ormal written investment guidelines. Investment
resuits are measured and monitored on an ongoing basis, and
guarterly investment reviews are conducted. The Principal Plan’s
U.S. investmeni manager is prohibited from investing Principal

Plan assets in equity or debt securities issued or guaranteed by
R.H. Donnelley. However, the Principal Plan may hold R H.
Donnelley stock if it is part of a total U.S. equity market index
fund in which the Principal Plan invests.

The weighted-average asset allocation of the Principal
Plan at December 31, 2003 and 2002, by asset category are
as follows:

Plan Assets at December 31

2003 2002
Equity securities 67% 62%
Debt securities 33% 38%
Total 100% 100%

DonTech does not expect to make significant contributions
to the Principal Plan or the PBEP in 2004,

For 2004, DonTech will use a rate of 8.25% as the expect-
ed iong-term rate of return assumption on pian assets for the
Plans. This assumption is based on the plans’ target asset allo-
cation of 65% equity securities and 35% debt securities. It
reflects long-term capital market return forecasts for the asset
classes employed, assumed excess returns from active man-
agement within each asset class, the portion of plan assets that
are actively managed, and periodic rebalancing back to target
allocations. Current market factors such as inflation and interest
rates are evaluated before the long-term capital market assump-
tions are determined. Although DonTech reviews its expected
long-term rate of return assumption annually, DonTech’s plan
performance in any one particular year does not, by itself, signif-
icantly influence its evaluation. DonTech's assumption is general-
ly not revised unless there is a fundamental change in one of the
factors upon which it is based, such as the target asset alloca-
tion or long-term capital market return forecasts.

Additionally, DonTech offers a defined contribution savings
plan (the “Profit Plan”) to substantially all employees and con-
tributes fifty cents for each dollar contributed by a participating
employee, up to a maximum of 6% of the participant's compen-
sation including salary, commission and short-term bonus.
DonTech also makes contributions to the Profit Plan contingent
upon the attainment of financiai goals set in advance as defined
in the Profit Plan agreement. There were no contributions made
based upon the attainment of any financial goals for any of the
periods presented. The matching contributions made to the plan
were $861, $876 and $944 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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Part ll, item 8, Notes, continued

8. Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions

DonTech provides postretirement healthcare and life insurance
benefits to certain retired employees and their dependents.
The following provides a reconciliation of benefit obliga-
tions, plan assets, and the funded status of the health and life
insurance plans.
Change in benefit obligation:

2003 2002
Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 4690 $ 4,052
Service cost 134 157
Interest cost 299 286
Plan participants’ contributions 59 47
Amendments (264) -
Actuarial gain (loss) 434 390
Other 8 -
Benefits paid (472) (242)
Benefit obligation, end of year $ 4,888 $ 4,690
Change in plan assets
Market value of assets,
beginning of year $ - 8 -
Employer contributions 413 195
Plan participants' contributions 59 47
Benefits paid 472) (242)
Market value of assets, end of year $ -~ 3 -
Funded status of benefit obligations $ 4888 $ 4690
Unrecognized actuarial loss {1,404) (1,022)
Unrecognized prior service costs 264 (69)

Accrued cost $ 3,748 $ 3,599

Net periodic postretirement benefit costs for 2003, 2002 and
2001 included the following components:

2003 2002 2001
Service cost $ 134 $ 157 $ 126
Interest cost 299 286 261
Amortization of prior
service cost 69 97 97
Amoartization of
unrecognized loss 53 23 1
Other 8 - -
Net periodic benefit cost $ 563 $ 563 $ 488

The discount rate used in determining the benefit obligation
as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 was 6.0% and 6.5%,
respectively. The assumed healthcare cost trend rate used in
measuring the benefit obligation as of December 31, 2003
and 2002 was 9.5% and 10%, respectively. The rates are
assumed to decrease gradually to 5.0% for 2011 and remain
at that level thereafter.

Increasing or decreasing the healthcare cost trend rates
by one percentage point would not have had a material effect
on the net periodic postretirement expense for the year ended
December 31, 2003. A one percentage point increase would
have increased the benefit obligation at December 31, 2003 by
$277. A one percentage point decrease would have decreased
the benefit obligation at December 31, 2003 by $252.



R.H. Donnelley Corporation

tem 9. Changes In and Disagreements
with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosures

There have been no changes in, or disagreements with the
Company’s independent auditors for the three-year period
ended December 31, 2003.

Item 9a. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluatior: of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Based
on their evaluation, as of December 31, 2003, of the effec-
tiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and proce-
dures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), the
principal executive officer and principal financial officer
of the Cornpany have each concluded that such disclosure
controls and procedures are effective and sufficient
to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the
Company in reports that it files or submits under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed,
summarizad and reported within the time periods specified
in Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms.

{b) Changes in Internal Conirols. There have not been any
changes in the Company's internal control over financial
repo'rting that occurred during the Company's most recent
fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control
over finar cial reporting.

Part 11

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers
of the Registrant

Information in response to this ltem is incorporated herein by
reference to the sections entitled “Board of Directors” and
“Other Information - Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance” in the Company’s Proxy Statement to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission prior to
March 31, 2004, except that "Executive Officers of the
Registrant” on page 8 of this Report responds to ltem 401(b),
(d) and (e) of Regulation S-K with respect to executive officers.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information in response to this Item is incorporated herein by
reference to the section entitied "Director and Executive
Compensation” in the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed
prior to March 31, 2004 with the Securities and Exchange
Commission,

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management and
Related Shareholder Matters

Information in response to this ltem is incorporated herein by
reference to the section entitled “Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management” in the Company’s Proxy
Statement to be filed prior to March 31, 2004 with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, except that "Equity Compensation
Plan Information” on page 14 of this Report responds to ltem
201(d) of Regulation S-K.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions

Information in response to this Item is incorporated herein

by reference to the section entitled “Director and Executive
Compensation-Compensation Committee Interlocks and
Insider Participation; Certain Relationships and Related Party
Transactions” in the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed
prior to March 31, 2004 with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

ltem 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

information responsive to this ltem is incorporated by reference
to the sections entitled "Board of Directors - Committees of the
Board of Directors - Audit and Finance Committee” and "Report
of the Audit and Finance Committee on Financial Reporting -
Fees” in the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed prior to
March 31, 2004 with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules,
and Reports on Form 8-K

15a. (1) and (2) - List of financial statements and
financial statement schedules

The following consolidated financial statements of the
Company are included under ltem 8:

® Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2003

and 2002

m Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three years
ended December 31, 2003

= Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three years
ended December 31, 2003

n Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’
Deficit for the three years ended December 31, 2003

m Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The fellowing financial statements for DonTech are
included under ltem 8:

m Balance Sheets at December 31, 2003 and 2002

= Statements of Partners’ Capital for the three years ended
December 31, 2003

& Statements of Operations for the three years ended
December 31, 2003

a Statements of Cash Flows for the three years ended
December 31, 2003

m Notes to Financial Statements

Financial statement schedules for the Company have not been

prepared because the reguired information has been included

in the Company’s consclidated financial statements, included in
Item 8 of this Annual Report.

15b. Reports on Form 8-K:

On October 29, 2003, the Company furnished a Current Report
on Farm 8-K disclosing under ltem 12 certain financial results

of the Company for the three and nine months ended September
30, 2003 and attached a copy of its related press release as
Exhibit 99.1.

On November 20, 2003, the Company furnished a Current
Report on Form 8-K disclesing under ltem 9 that on November
20, 2003 certain members of senior management of the
Company were scheduled to make a presentation to investors
and securities analysts at the New York Stock Exchange. During
its presentation at that conference, management intended to
present a slide presentation. The Company attached a copy of
the slide presentation as Exhibit 99.1.

On November 20, 2003, the Company furnished a Current
Report on Form 8-K disclosing under item 9 that on November
20, 2003 certain members of senior management of the
Company were scheduled to make a presentation to investors
and securities analysts at the New York Stock Exchange.
During its presentation at that conference, management intend-
ed to present a slide presentation. This slide presentation

was in addition to the slide presentation furnished on a separate
Current Report on Form 8-K also furnished on November 20,
2003. The Company attached a copy of the slide presentation
as Exhibit 99.1.

On February 26, 2004, the Company furnished a Current Report
on Form 8-K disclosing under ltem 12 certain financial results

of the Company for the three months and year ended December
31, 2003 and attached a copy of its related press release as
Exhibit 99.1.

On February 26, 2004, the Company furnished a Current Report
on Form 8-K disclosing under item 9 that management intended
to discuss certain aspects of an amendment to the Company’s
Credit Agreement dated December 8, 2002 during the investor
teleconference scheduled for February 27, 2004. The Company
attached a copy of Amendment No. 1 to the Credit Agreement
as Exhibit 99.1.

On March 8, 2004, the Company furnished a Current Report on
Form 8-K disclosing under Item 9 that certain members of senior
management of the Company were scheduled to make a pres-
entation at 2 media industry conference and that management
intended to make a slide presentation. The Company attached a
copy of the slide presentation as Exhibit 99.1.
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Exhibit Number

Description

2.1

22

23

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

36

4.1

4.2
4.3
4.4

45

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 21, 2002, by and among the Company, Sprint Corpaoration

and Centel Directories LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 1, 2002, Commission File No. 001-07155). The Company
agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of any omitted schedules to the Securities and Exchange Commission
upon request.

Supplemental Agreement to Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 31, 2002, by and among the
Company, Sprint Corporation and Centel Directories LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 17, 2003, Commission

File No. 001-07155). The Company agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of any omitted schedules to the
Commission upon reguest.

Preferred Stock and Warrant Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 21, 2002, among R.H. Donnelley
Corporation and investment partnerships affiliated with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 2.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 1,
2002, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the three months ended March 31, 1998, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
May 14, 1999 Commission File No. 001-07155)

By-laws of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the three months ended March 31, 1999, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 14, 1999
Commission File No. 001-07155)

Certificate of Incorporation of R.H. Donneliey Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to Amendment No. 1
to the Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 7, 1998,
Registration No. 333-59287)

By-laws of R.H. Donnelley Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the Registration Statement on Form $-4,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 17, 1998, Registration No. 333-59287)

Certificate of Designations of Convertible Cumulative Preferred Stock of R.H. Dannelley Carporation (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on January 17, 2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Certificate of Designations of Series B-1 Convertible Cumulative Preferred Stock of R.H. Donnelley Corporation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on December 3, 2002, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Indenture, dated as of June 5, 1998, among R.H. Donnelley Inc., as Issuer, the Company, as Guarantor, and

the Bank of New York, as Trustee, with respect to the 9 1/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2008 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on July 17, 1998, Registration No. 333-59287)

Form of the 9 1/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2008 (included in Exhibit 4.1)
Company Guarantee (included in Exhibit 4.1)

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 25, 2002, among R.H. Donnelley Inc., as Issuer, and the
Company, R.H. Donnelley Acquisitions, inc., R.H. Donnelley APIL, Inc., R.H. Dennelley CD, inc. and Get Digital
Smart.com, Inc., as Guarantors, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee, with respect to the 9 1/8% Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 25, 2002, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Second Supplemental indenture, dated as of December 20, 2002, among R.H. Donnelley Inc., as Issuer,

and the Company, R.H. Donnelley Acquisiticns, Inc., R.H. Donnelley Acquisitions (I, Inc., R.H. Donnelley APIL, Inc.,
R.H. Donnelley CD, Inc. and Get Digital Smart.com, Inc., as Guarantors, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee,
with respect to the 9 1/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to

the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 20, 2002,
Commission File No. 001-07155)
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4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

412

413

4.14

4.15
4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 20, 2002 (operative as of January 3, 2003), among R.H.
Donnelley Inc., as Issuer, and the Company, R.H. Donnelley Acquisitions, Inc., R.H. Donnelley Acquisitions 11, Inc.,
R.H. Donnelley APIL, Inc., R.H. Donnelley CD, Inc. and Get Digital Smart.com, Inc., as Guarantors, and The Bank
of New York, as Trustee, with respect to the 9 1/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2008 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission

on January 6, 2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Rights Agreement, dated as of October 27, 1998, between R.H. Donnelley Corporation and First Chicago Trust
Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to the Registration Statement on Form 8-A, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on November 5, 1998, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Amendment No. 1 to Rights Agreement, dated as of February 26, 2001, by and among R.H. Donnelley Corporation,
First Chicago Trust Company of New York (as initial Rights Agent) and The Bank of New York (as successor Rights
Agent) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December

31, 2000, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 28, 2001, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Amendment No. 2 to Rights Agreement, dated as of September 21, 2002, between the Company and The Bank of
New York, as successor Rights Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 1, 2002, Commission File No, 001-07155)

Form of Warrant Agreement, dated as of November 25, 2002, between the Company and investment

partnerships affiliated with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissicn on January 17, 2003, Commission File
No. 001-07155)

Form of Warrant Agreement, dated January 3, 2003, between the Company and investment partnerships affiliated
with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 17, 2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of November 25, 2002, among the Company and investment partnerships
affiliated with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current

Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 3, 2002, Commission File
No. 001-07155)

Indenture dated as of December 3, 2002 between R.H. Donnelley Inc. (as successor to R.H. Donneliey Finance
Corporation 1), as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee, with respect to the 8 7/8% Senior Notes due
2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.13 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 20, 2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Supplemental Indenture dated as of January 3, 2003 among R.H. Donnelley Inc., as Issuer, the Company and the
other guarantors signatory thereto, as Guarantors, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee, with respect to the

8 7/8% Senior Notes due 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.14 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 20, 2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Form of 8 7/8% Senior Notes due 2010 (included in Exhibit 4.13)

Guarantees relating to the 8 7/8% Senior Notes due 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.16 to the
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 20, 2003, Commission
File No. 001-07155)

Indenture dated as of December 3, 2002 between R.H. Donnelley Inc. (as successor to R.H. Donnelley Finance
Corporation 1), as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee, with respect to the 10 7/8% Senior Subordinated
Notes due 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.17 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 20, 2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Supplemental Indenture dated as of January 3, 2003 among R.H. Donnelley Inc., as issuer, the Company and

the other guarantors signatory thereto, as Guarantors, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee, with respect to the

10 7/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.18 to the Annual Report on
Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 20, 2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Form of 10 7/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2012 (included in Exhibit 4.17)



4.20

4.21"

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4*

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

Guarantees relating to the 10 7/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.20
to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 20, 2003,
Commission File No. 001-07155)

Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of January ___, 2004 among R.H. Donnelley Inc., as Issuer, the Company
and other guarantors signatory thereto, as Guarantors, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee, with respect to the
10 7/8% Senior Suberdinated Notes due 2012

Form of Distribution Agreement between the Company (f/k/a The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation) and The New
Dun & Bradstreet Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of the
Company (f/k/a The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

June 30, 1998, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Form of Tax Allocation Agreement between the Company {f/k/a The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation) and The New
Dun & Bradstreet Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 89.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K

of the Company (f/k/a The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
June 30, 1998, Commission File No. 001-07155)

DonTech Il Partnership Agreement, effective August 19, 1997, by and between R.H. Donnelley Inc. (f/k/a The
Reuben H. Donnelley Corporation) and Ameritech Publishing of lllinois, Inc. {incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.10 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on August 7, 1998, Registration No. 333-59287)

Amendment No. 1 to DonTech 1l Partnership Agreement dated as of January 28, 2000 between R.H. Donneliey Inc.
and Ameritech Publishing of lllinais, Inc.

Revenue Participation Agreement, dated as of August 19, 1997, by and between APIL Partners Partnership and
R.H. Donnelley Inc. (f/k/a The Reuben H. Donnelley Corperation) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to
Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on August 7, 1998, Registration No. 333-59287)

Master Agreement, executed August 19, 1997, by and among R.H. Donnelley inc. (f/k/a The Reuben H. Donnelley
Corporation), the Company (f/k/a The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation), The Am-Don Partnership a/k/a DonTech,
DonTech Il, Ameritech Publishing, Inc., Ameritech Publishing of lllinois, Inc., Ameritech Corporation, DonTech |
Publishing Company LLC and the APIL Partners Partnership (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to
Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on August 7, 1998, Registration No. 333-59287)

Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement, effective August 19, 1997, between APIL Partners Partnership and
DonTech Il (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form
S-4, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 7, 1998, Registration No. 333-59287)

Agreement for Publishing Services, dated as of January 1, 2002 between Ameritech Publishing Inc. and

R.H. Donnelley Inc. (certain portions of this exhibit have been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to an Application for an Order Granting Confidential Treatment) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended March 31,
2002, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission ocn May 10, 2002, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Limited Liability Company Agreement of CenDon, L.L.C. dated April 27, 2000 between R.H. Donnelley inc. and
Centel Directory Company (certain portions of this exhibit have been omitted and filed separately with the Securities
and Exchange Commission pursuant to an Application for an Order Granting Confidential Treatment) (incorporated

_ by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended June 30,

2002, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 14, 2002, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Sales Agency Agreement dated as of April 27, 2000 among R.H. Dennelley Inc., Centel Directory Company and
CenDon, L.L.C. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q

for the three months ended June 30, 2002, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 14, 2002,
Commission File No. 001-07155)

Agreement for Publishing Services dated as of April 27, 2000 between R.H. Donnelley and CenDon, L.L.C. (certain
portions of this exhibit have been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission
pursuant to an Application for an Order Granting Confidential Treatment) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16
to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended June 30, 2002, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on August 14, 2002, Commission File No. 001-07155)
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10.12~

10.134

10.147

10.157

10161

10174
10.187
10.197
10.207

10.21n

10.22»

10.23»

10.247

10.25n

10.261

10.27A

Key Employees’ Performance Unit Plan, as amended and restated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15
to Amendment No. 3 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on September 28, 1998, Registration No. 333-59287)

1991 Key Employees’ Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated through April 25, 2000 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended
September 30, 2000, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 13, 2000, Commission
File No. 001-07155)

Amended and Restated 1998 Directors’ Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 27, 2000, Commission File Nc. 001-07155)

Pension Benefit Equalization Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001, fited with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March
27, 2002, Commission File No. 001-07155)

2001 Stock Award and Incentive Plan {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 27, 2002, Commission File No, 001-07155)

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.02 to Registration Statement
on Form $-8, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25, 2001, Registration No. 333-65822)

Form of Annual Incentive Program Award (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.03 to the Registration Statement
on Form 8-8, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25, 2001, Registration No. 333-65822)

Form of Performance Unit Program Award (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.04 to the Registration Statement
on Farm S-8, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25, 2001, Registration No. 333-65822)

Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.01 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-8, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 24, 1999, Registration No. 333-91613)

Employment Agreement effective as of May 1, 2002 between the Company and David C. Swanson (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to the Company’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended June 30,
2002, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 14, 2002, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Employment Agreement effective September 21, 2002 between the Company and Peter J. McDonald (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the nine months ended September 30, 2002,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 12, 2002, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Employment Agreement effective March 1, 2002 between the Company and Steven M. Blondy (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended June 30,
2002, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 14, 2002, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Separation Agreement and Release dated as of July 25, 2003 between the Company and Frank M. Colarusso
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.39 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three month
period ended June 30, 2003, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 13, 20083, Commission
File No. 001-07155)

Employment Agreement dated as of September 26, 2000 between the Company and Willlam C. Drexler {incorporat-
ed by reference to Exhibit 10.35 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2000, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 28, 2001, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement dated as of February 27, 2001 between the Company and
William C. Drexler (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2000, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 28, 2001,
Commission File No. 001-07155)

Employment Agreemenvt dated as of January 1, 2001 betwéen thé Company and Robert J. Bush (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.37 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 28, 2001, Commission File No. 001-07155)



10,281

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement dated as of February 27, 2001 between the Company and Robert J.
Bush (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2000, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 28, 2001, Commission
File No. 001-07155)

Letter Agreement, dated as of November 25, 2002, among the Company, R.H. Donnelley Inc. and investment
partnerships affiliated with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 3, 2002, Commission File
No. 001-07155)

Letter Agreement dated as of January 3, 2003 among the Company, R.H. Donnelley Inc. and investment
partnerships affiiated with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 17, 2003, Commission File

No. 001-07155)

Letter Agreement, dated as of July 22, 2003 among the Company and investment partnerships affiliated with
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to the Company’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the three months ended June 30, 2003, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
August 13, 2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Directory Services License Agreement, dated as of January 3, 2003, by and among R.H. Donnelley Publishing &
Advertising, Inc. (f/k/a Sprint Publishing & Advertising, Inc.), CenDon L.L.C., R.H. Donnelley Directory Company
{f/k/a Centel Directory Company), Sprint Corporation, Sprint Directory Trademark Company, LLC and the Sprint
Local Telecommunications Division (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 17, 2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Trademark License Agreement, dated as of January 3, 2003, by and among Sprint Directory Trademark Company,
LLC, R.H. Donnelley Publishing & Advertising, Inc. (f/k/a Sprint Publishing & Advertising, Inc.), CenDon L.L.C.

and R.H. Donnelley Directory Company (f/k/a Centel Directory Company) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2
to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 17, 2003,
Commission File No. 001-07155)

Publisher Trademark License Agreement, dated as of January 3, 2003, by and among R.H. Donnelley Publishing &
Advertising, Inc. (f/k/a Sprint Publishing & Advertising, Inc.), R.H. Donnelley Directory Company (f/k/a Centel
Directory Company) and Sprint Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form
8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 17, 2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Non-Competition Agreement, dated as of January 3, 2003, by and among the Company, R.H. Donnelley Publishing
& Advertising, Inc. (f/k/a Sprint Publishing & Advertising, inc.), CenDon L.L.C., R.H. Donnelley Directory

Company (f/k/a Centel Directory Company), Sprint Corporation and the Sprint Local Telecommunications Division
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on January 17, 2003, Commissicn File No. 001-07155)

Subscriber Listings Agreement, dated as of January 3, 2003, by and among R.H. Donnelley Publishing &
Advertising, Inc. (f/k/a Sprint Publishing & Advertising, Inc.), CenDon L.L.C., R.H. Donnelley Directory Company
(f/k/a Centel Directory Company), Sprint Corporation and the Sprint Local Telecommunications Division
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on January 17, 2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Credit Agreement, dated as of December 6, 2002, among the Company, R.H. Donnelley iInc., R.H. Donnelley
Finance Corporation Il (subsequently merged with and into R.H. Donneliey Inc.), the several lenders from time
to time party thereto, Bear Stearns Corporate Lending Inc. and Citicorp North America, Inc., as joint syndication
agents, BNP Paribas and Fleet National Bank, as joint documentation agents, Deutsche Bank Trust Company
Americas, as administrative agent, and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., Salomon Smith Barney Inc. and Bear,
Stearns & Co. Inc., as joint lead arrangers and joint bookrunners (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to
the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 17, 2003,
Commission File No. 001-07155)
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10.38 First Amendment, dated as of December 5, 2003, among the Company, R.H. Donnelley Inc., the financial institutions
parties thereto, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc., as joint
lead arrangers and joint bookrunners, Bear Stearns Corporate Lending Inc. and Citicorp North America, Inc., as
joint syndication agents, BNP Paribas and Fleet National Bank, as documentation agents, and Deutsche Bank Trust
Company Americas, as administrative agent, to the Credit Agreement, dated as of December 6, 2002 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on February 26, 2004, Commission File No. 001-07155)

21* Subsidiaries of the Company
23" Consent of Independent Accountants
31.1" Certification of Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 by David C. Swanson,

Chief Executive Officer under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

31.2" Certification of Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 by Steven M. Blondy,
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

31.3" Certification of Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 by David C. Swanson,
Chief Executive Officer for R.H. Donnelley Inc. under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

314" Certification of Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 by Steven M. Blondy, Senior
Vice President and Chief Financial Cfficer for R.H. Donnelley Inc. under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

32.1" Certification of Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 under Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act by David C. Swanson, Chief Executive Officer, and Steven M. Blondy, Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer, for R.H. Donnelley Corporation

32.2" Certification of Annua! Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 under Section 206 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act by David C. Swanson, Chief Executive Officer, and Steven M. Blondy, Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial Cfficer, for R.H. Donnelley Inc.

* Filed with our Form 10-K with The United States Securities and Exchange Commission on March 12, 2004
~ Management contract or compensatory plan



Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this Annual Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on the
12th day of March 2004,

R.Fl. Donnellev Corporation

By:  /s/ David C. Swanson

David C. Swanson,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1834, as amended, this report has been duly signed by
the following persons in the capacities and on the date indicated.

/s/ David C. Swanson Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Director March 12, 2004
(David C. Swanson) (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Steven M. Blondy Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer March 12, 2004
(Steven M. Blcndy) ‘ (Principal Financial Officer)

{s/ William C. Drexler Vice President and Controller March 12, 2004
(William C. Drexler) (Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Kenneth G. Campbell Director March 12, 2004

(Kenneth G, Campbell)

/s/ Nancy E. Ccoper Director March 12, 2004

(Nancy E. Cocper)

/s/ Robert R. Gheewalla Director March 12, 2004
(Robert R. Gheewalla)

/s/ Robert Kamerschen Director : March 12, 2004

(Robert Kamerschen)

/s/ Terence M. O'Toole Director March 12, 2004

(Terence M. O Toole)

/s/ Carol J. Parry Director March 12, 2004
(Carol J. Parry)

/s/ David M. Veit Director March 12, 2004
(David M. Veit)
/s/ Barry Lawson Williams Director March 12, 2004

(Barry Lawson Williams)
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has

duly caused this Annual Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized,
on the 12th day of March, 2004.

R.H. Donnelley Inc.

By: /s/ David C. Swanson

David C. Swanson,
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been duly
signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the date indicated.

/s/ David C. Swanson

(David C. Swanson)

/s/ Steven M. Blondy

(Steven M. Biondy)

/s/ William C. Drexler

{William C. Drexler)

/s/ Robert J. Bush

(Robert J. Bush}

Director, President and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

Director, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)

Vice President and Controlter

(Principal Accounting Officer)

(Director)

March 12, 2004

March 12, 2004

March. 12, 2004

March 12, 2004
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Unaudited 3chedules to Annual Report

Industry ancl Market Data

Industry and rnarket data cited in this Report are based on analysis by private market research firms and the Yeliow Pages Integrated
Media Association (YPIMA), in addition to internal R.H. Donnelley sources. The estimate of Yellow Pages impact on total consumer
expenditures was made by CRM Associates. Characteristics of Yellow Page users and life events driving usage of directional media
were derived from survey data gathered by YPIMA, CRM Associates and Simmons Market Research Bureau.

Reconciliation for Calculation of Debt to EBITDA outlook 2004

Amounts in millians

Net income outlook 2004 - GAAP 3 116
Plus expected tax provision 76
Plus expected interest expense, net 164
Operating income outlook 2004 356
Plus expected depreciation and amortization 59
EBITDA outlook 2004 $ 415
Total Debt at December 31, 2003 $ 2,092
Debt to EBITDA ratio 5.0x

Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Measures for the year ended December 31, 2003

Amounts in millians, except per share data

Reconciliation of cash flow from operations to Free Cash Flow

Cash flow from operations - GAAP $ 249
Less fixed asset and computer software additions 13)
Free cash flow $ 236

Reconciliation of net loss to EBITDA and reconciliation of EBITDA to Adjusted EBITDA

Net loss - GAAP $ (50)
Plus tax benefit (36)
Plus interest expense, net 180
Operating income 94
Plus depreciztion and amortization 66
EEBITDA 160
Less other income (2)
Plus net revenue that would have been reported for directories published prior to the acquisition and all

January 2C03 published directories absent purchase accounting 316
Less expenses that would have been reported for directories published prior to the acquisition and al!

January 2C03 published directories absent purchase accounting (63)
Adjusted EBITDA 3 411

Reconciliation of GAAP net revenue to adjusted net revenue

Net revenue - GAAP $ 256
Plus net revenue that would have been reported for directories published prior to the acquisition and all

January 2003 published directories absent purchase accounting 316
Adjusted net -evenue $ 572

Reconciliation of full year diluted GAAP EPS to adjusted diluted EPS

Diluted EPS - GAAP $ (3.53)
Per share effect of Preferred Dividend 1.90
Per share effect of purchase accounting adjustments 5.00
Dilutive effect of assuming conversion of Preferred Stock at the beginning of year (0.80)
Adjusted EPS $ 257

As a result of the SPA acquisition, the related financing and associated accounting, 2003 results reported in accordance with

GAAP are not comparable; nor do they reflect the Company’s underlying operational or financial performance. Accordingly, we are
presenting several non-GAAP financial measures in addition to results reported in accordance with GAAP to better communicate
underlying operational and financial performance for 2003. See the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 26, 2004
for further dstzils regarding the non-GAAP financial measures.
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Schedules, continued

Reconciliation of Reported EPS to Adjusted EPS for the years ended December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001

Year Ended December 31, 2002

Amounts in millions,

Year Ended December 31, 2001

except per share data Reported Adjustments As Adjusted Reported Adjustments As Adjusted
Operating income
DonTech Partnership $ 1174 $ 117.1 $ 1224 $ 1224
Directory Advertising Services 38.2 38.2 328 329
General & Corporate (9.3) $ (4.4) (13.7) (43.8) $ 300° (13.8)
Total operating income 146.0 (4.4) 141.6 1115 30.0 141.5
Interest expense, net (33.5) 11.2°2 (22.3) (25.7) 0.7 (25.0)
Other expense, net (0.5) 052 - - -
Pre-tax income 112.0 7.3 119.3 858 30.7 116.5
Tax provision (44.8) (1.1)° (45.9) (36.0) (7.4)° (43.4)
Net income 67.2 6.2 73.4 49.8 233 731
Preferred dividend (24.7) 24.7°¢ - - -
Net income available to common  $ 425 $ 309 $ 734 $ 498 $ 233 $ 731
Earnings per share (EPS):

Basic $ 142 $ 1.08 $ 248 $ 185 $ 078 $ 243

Diluted $ 140 $ 102 $ 242 $ 1.8t $ 075 $ 236
Shares used in computing EPS:

Basic 20.6 29.6 302 302

"Diluted” o . ’ 303 30.3 310 T 310

! General & Corporate in 2001 is adjusted to exclude a restructuring and special charge of $18.6 million and an Investment impairment charge
of $11.4 million. General & Corporate in 2002 is adjusted to exclude a reversal of $6.4 million of the 2001 restructuring and special charge and

an additional investment impairment charge of $2.0 million.

2 Interest expense in 2002 is adjusted to exclude additional net interest expense on acquisition financing; other expense, net is adjusted to

exclude losses from hedging activities and the reversal of non-operating reserves.
3 Tax effect of adjustments.

* Represents the dividend on preferred stock that was issued in November 2002.



Reconciliation of Reported EPS to Adjusted EPS for
the year ended December 31, 2000

Year Ended December 31, 2000

Amounts in millions,

Reconciliation of Reported EPS to Adjusted EPS for
the year ended December 31, 1998

Year Ended December 31, 1998

Amounts in millions,

except per share data Reported Adjustments As Adjusted except per share data Reported  Adjustments As Adjusted
Operating incame Operating income
DonTech Partnership $ 124.0 $ 124.0 Directory Advertising A
. o Services 32.1 $ 32.1
Directory Advert
ree or}y vertising , DonTech Partnership 120.1 120.1

Selrwlces 481 $ (15.8) 323 Directory Publishing
Get Digital Smart (8.9) (8.9) Services (3.0) (3.0)
General & Corporate (15.8) (15.8) General & corporate (24.0) $ (44" (28.4)
Total operating income 147.4 (15.8) 131.6 Total operating income 125.2 (4.4) 120.8
Interest expenss, net (32.0) 1.12 (30.9) Interest expense, net (23.1) (18.4)° (41.5)
Gain from dispositions, net  86.5 (86.5)° -
Pre-tax income 201.9 (101.2) 100.7 Pre-tax income 102.1 (22.8) 79.3
Tax provision (77.1) 386 (38.5) Tax provision (40.8) 9.12 (31.7)
Net income $ 1248 $ (62.6) $ 822 Net income $ 613 $ (13.7) $ 4786
Earnings per share (EPS): Earnings per share (EPS):

Basic $ 3.91 $ (1.96) $ 195 Basic $ 1.79 $ (0.40) $ 139

Diluted $ 3.83 $ (1.92) $ 191 Diluted $ 1.77 $ (0.39) $ 138
Shares used in computing EPS: Shares used in computing EPS:

Basic 318 319 Basic 34.2 34.2

Diluted 32.6 32.6 Diluted 345 34.5

' Represents the ona-time operating income benefit from the restructuring
of the CenDon relationship,

2 Represents the write-off of deferred financing costs related to the
accelerated repayment of debt.

% Represents the nef gain from the disposition of the former Bell Atlantic
and Giet Digital Srrart businesses,

* Tax effect of the abiove adjustments.

! Represents the adjustment to include the estimated additional stand-alone
corporate overhead expenses and interest expense that would have been
incurred had the Company been a stand-alone public company at the
beginning of the year.

2 Tax effect of the above adjustments.

Note: The reconciliation of reported EPS to adjusted EPS for the year ended December 31, 1999 has been omitted as there

were no adjustments to the reported amounts.
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